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Thirteen

months
ended
31 March
2018~
Bz Year ended 28/29 February
20184 HE2A28/290 L FE
3A31H 2017 2016 2015 2014
IE+=@EAe 20174 20164 20154 20144
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (HK$'M)
FEEZARER(BEEET)
Turnover HHERR 4,137 3,411 3,539 3,871 4,057
Profit before tax R IpR 90 52 46 63 101
Profit for the Period/year NERE R E R AR 50 23 24 40 74
Profit attributable to owners of the Company AR &HEA ARG EF| 49 23 24 40 75
PER SHARE (HK$)
LSt GBT)
Earnings &R 0.20 0.09" on 019 035
Dividend %2 0.094 0.0525 0.041 0.049 0.092
Dividend payout ratio R B L& 47% 48% 37% 26% 26%
Net assets attributable to owners PIN/NGIEZZS DN
of the Company Bl FEE 4.67 4.63 4.90 5.20 5.09
Market price PR 2.20 2.50 2.00 2.74 2.99
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (HK$'M)
FEMBEARRER(EEEET)
No. of shares ("M Shares) AR (E &%) 247 210 210 210 210
Shareholders’ funds fRRE S 1,153 974 1,031 1,095 1,071
Borrowings BE 787 1,023 1,060 924 857
Cash and cash equivalent RERBLEEY 268 324 203 130 141
Net gearing ratio FEELE 40% 55% 59% 58% 67%
Market capitalisation mE 543 526 421 576 629

Pursuant to a resolution of the Board dated 23 May 2017, the Company’s financial year end date has been changed from 28 February (of 29 February in a leap year)
to 31 March commercing from the financial year of 2017/18.

RIBEEEN2017F5A230 ZRFAR - B2017/BNFBFERL - ARRZMBFEEAEAR2A28A (LNEFR2A29R)EHXRIA3A -

Adjusted for the bonus issue effected in the current period
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| am pleased to present the annual report and consolidated financial statements of
Tse Sui Luen Jewellery (International) Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) for the thirteen months ended 31 March 2018 (the “Period”)
following the change of the Group’s financial year end from 28 February (or 29
February in a leap year) to 31 March.

As shareholders are aware, the retail jewellery industry has faced a bleak retail
environment over the past few years particularly in Hong Kong where visitor
numbers decreased year on year and in the Mainland where structural changes
required us to adjust our business model to better address that market going
forward. To counter the above, the Group took a more prudent and cautious
approach to its business during that time embarking on the tighter control of
expenditures and a streamlining of its operations where possible to better align it
with the realities of the subdued business conditions it was facing, both of which
proved effective and have placed the Group in a much healthier operational position
overall. Further, a more effective restructuring of our finance facilities and inventory
management made way for an improvement of our key financial indicators, such as
cash level, inventory turnover days and net gearing ratio and creating greater values
for our shareholders by gradually increasing our dividend payout ratio.

In the second half of the Period, we started to witness some meaningful signs of
recovery in the retail markets in which we operate which, in turn, resulted in the
Group announcing a positive profit alert earlier this year. With a steady momentum
observed from the retail market in recent months, the Group can now move on to
capitalize on the benefits of its improvement programs and market repositioning
undertaken over the last 3 to 4 years. We believe that we are well equipped to take
full advantage of this current market revival going forward.

BAEBBRFEELEEAHR2A288 (FREFAE2A298)
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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS (CONTINUED)
HBCR A (48)

From business perspective, we adopted the “store-for-store” strategy in Hong Kong
and undertook a network optimization exercise in Mainland China so as to improve
our retail network portfolio and market penetration in both markets. Besides the
conventional model of “bricks & mortar” retail outlets, we have continued to develop
our online network by establishing our own official websites (the China version)
which has enabled us to better penetrate into new customer groups and to boost
both the online-to-offline and offline-to-online effect.

In terms of products, we launched The Signature Collection, “Raindrop and Eternity”,
during the Period which has received a favourable reception and further helped in
creating a greater recognition of our distinguished line of products that demonstrate
our quality design and Trendsetting Craftsmanship.

Being a leader and pioneer in the jewellery industry, we always keep our fingers on
the market pulse and strive to offer the best and most diversified range of products
to our customers to suit their various needs. This year, | am thrilled about the launch
of another new Signature Collection of ours, The 12 Treasures. As implied in the
name, The 12 Treasures are originated from the 12 symbols of the Chinese zodiac.
Not only does this collection invoke the traditional Chinese concept, but it also
integrates the western artistry as a fusion of perfection. Unlike the public perception,
this novel Signature Collection is not intended for “pursuing good fortune and avoid
mishap”. Instead, we wish to make use of The 12 Treasures to transport you towards
the wanderland of happiness, a mystical place where power and energy grasp your
hand, opportunity and love embrace your heart, confidence fills your soul, friendship
follows your every step, your mind is clear and spring is always fresh in the air.

To visualize this idea, we collaborated with Isa Parvex, a French designer, who
incorporated the exquisiteness from France into a unique art jewellery collection
which is full of positive energy and happiness. With this refreshing message behind,
we venture to assure that this Signature Collection can represent the Group’s

spirit and its persistence to bring international lifestyles and perspectives to our
customers.
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The Group has always been committed to being a responsible corporate citizen
and is keen on participating in various kinds of charitable activities. During the
Period, besides our continuing support of UNICEF, we have also devoted our time
to the preservation of Cantopop music as well as to the promotion of astronomy
and astrophotography among Hong Kong amateurs through pecuniary aid to or
collaborations with The TSL|#t w8 Foundation, a charitable trust for sustaining
the development of creative industries of Hong Kong. Under these two streams,
we made an ardent support to lectures, workshops and sponsorship projects on
astronomical topics and to a number of concerts by certain renowned Cantopop
musicians. Further details of our activities in relation to corporate social responsibility
will be disclosed in a separate Environmental, Social and Governance Report
pursuant to the regulatory requirements.

On behalf of the Board of Directors of the Company, | would like to extend my
heartfelt gratitude to all shareholders, our conscientious staff members, loyal
customers, business partners and other stakeholders for their ongoing trust and
support. As always, TSL will strive to seize the opportunities in the jewellery retail
industry and to achieve sustainable business growth and improve management and
operation efficiency, and to ultimately create greater values for our shareholders,
stakeholders and the community in the long run.

Yau On Yee, Annie
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 June 2018
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The Group will keep on bringing novel and refreshing ideas in terms of product assortments
and retail store functionality to remold its brand a pioneer in the jewellery industry.
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MANAGEMENTS
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIEE & T

RESULTS OF THE GROUP

The consolidated sales turnover of the Group for the Period was HK$4,137 million,
representing an increase of 21.3% when compared with HK$3,411 million for the
twelve months ended 28 February 2017 (“Year 2016/17"). The profit attributable

to owners of the Company for the Period grew by 113.2% to HK$49.4 million from
HK$23.2 million in Year 2016/17. Earnings per share for the Period was 20.0 HK cents.

As announced and disclosed recently in our second interim results for the twelve
months ended 28 February 2018, the profit attributable to owners of the Company
had increased remarkably during that time and this trend continued through into
March 2018 resulting in a slightly increased profit for the Period as compared to the
second interim results. Coupled with our strategy of more strategic deployment of
our resources and the implementation of cost saving measures, we are pleased to
report an improvement in the Group’s net profit margin, inventory turnover days and
its effective tax rate for the Period as compared to that in Year 2016/17.

Being a leader in the jewellery retail market, we understand the importance of
offering quality products and enhanced customer experiences in order to drive
customers’ spending sentiment. Accordingly, bearing this philosophy in mind, we
launched The Signature Collection during the Period to reinforce our distinguished
Trendsetting Craftsmanship. The KUHASHI Collection was also introduced to furnish
our customers with a refined, simple and elegant line of products and a wider
exposure of various styles and cultures. To meet our customers’ changing needs and
to further strengthen our market position, we will keep on bringing innovative ideas
incorporating TSL’s intrinsic values into our product assortment.

Continued expansion of our retail network in all our operating regions is one of our
key objectives both now and going forward. With a cautious approach to monitoring
the rental level and identifying appropriate business partners for our franchising
business, we were delighted by the healthy growth in our store network in Hong
Kong and Mainland China during the Period.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EIEZuTuHE& q‘ﬁ—(zm)

BUSINESS REVIEW
Retailing Business
Hong Kong and Macau

Driven by an improved market environment since September 2017 and the increased
number of tourists visiting Hong Kong and Macau from Mainland China, the retail
market in both Hong Kong and Macau have performed better than that in Year
2016/17. During the Period, the sales turnover of our retail businesses in Hong Kong
and Macau increased by 19.5% overall and the same store sales growth of retail chain
stores in Hong Kong, other than those at Headquarters, was 19.0%. As a result of the
gold product promotions and enrichment of our product assortments, the average
amount per invoice increased promisingly by 20.3%.

To seize the opportunities arising in Hong Kong from both increased tourist traffic
and local customers in residential precincts, we opened two more stores during the
Period, one in New Town Plaza in Sha Tin and the other in YOHO Mall in Yuen Long.
On the condition that we can negotiate a reasonable rental level, we will continue
to identify suitable locations to expand into so as to better reach and serve our
customers.

Mainland China

The growing demand for daily jewellery products and the continuing emergence

of the middle class creates an ongoing opportunity for us to continue to develop
our business in Mainland China. Our self-operated stores continue to play a
significant role as the Group’s growth engine accounting for 39.3% of the Group’s
turnover. However, as mentioned in our second interim report, due to the shift of
the consumers shopping pattern away from department stores to shopping malls,
we are undergoing a transition in terms of the repositioning of our retail network to
focus more on shopping malls and less on department stores. Encouragingly, during
this transition, we have still been able to maintain our sales turnover at a similar level
to that achieved in Year 2016/17 and the same store sales growth was 10.4%, that
includes a 13-month effect for the Period.
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At the end of the Period, the Group had a total of 380 stores (including 193 self-
operated stores and 187 franchised stores) in Mainland China. We will continue to
develop there and intend to expand our network by opening a further 100 stores,
including franchised stores, over the next 2 years.

From the experience gained thus far from our existing online platforms, we

are optimistic that this line of business will continue to grow and will ultimately
contribute a substantial and sustainable source of new revenue to the Group going
forward. In order to capture this growth, we launched a new official website for
mobile users in June 2018 that will further boost both the online-to-offline and
offline-to-online business.

Malaysia

Our retail business in Malaysia, which accounts for an insignificant contribution to
the Group’s performance, recorded an increase in sales turnover of 48.0% for the
Period. This encouraging performance has bolstered our confidence in the strategic
development of our business outside of the Greater China region. With a total of 4
retail stores operating in Malaysia at the end of the Period, we remain positive about
this business and will continue to expand further in appropriate locations when
opportunities present themselves.

Wholesale Business

We are delighted to report that a net 55 new franchise stores were opened via

the Group’s franchising network during the Period bringing the total number of
franchised stores to 187 as at 31 March 2018. The Group will continue to explore
more opportunities to work with local business partners to facilitate the more robust
growth of the Group’s franchised store sales network.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EIRE 2w m R T (4)

Other Business

During the Period, the sales performance of the Group’s e-business platforms
continued to improve showing an increase of 33.8%. It is observed that shoppers
have become more accustomed to and comfortable with this consumption model
over recent years and so we will continue to invest in this business to take advantage
of this changing trend in consumer behaviour. We will continue to develop our own
official mobile website, together with reinforcing our cooperation with the existing
e-platforms to uplift the ranking of the Group’s brand and to further boost both the
online-to-offline and offline-to-online effect.

Outlook

The stabilization of the retail market and the political environment in Hong Kong
together with the growing number of tourists from Mainland China all point to

a better consumption sentiment being present in the upcoming financial year.

We anticipate that the retail market remains static in Mainland China whereas it

will continue to progress in an L-shape with positive outlook in Hong Kong. In
particular, statistics from Hong Kong Tourism Board illustrate an upward trend in the
number of the same-day travelers. This group of visitors, who are shoppers of daily
consumer goods, should lead to an increased demand for daily jewelry accessories.
For Mainland China, domestic consumption and spending from visitors will keep the
momentum of the steady growth of the jewellery retail market. Notwithstanding a
shifting trend away from higher price point items over the past few years, we are
thrilled to see the average amount per invoice improved during the Period. To grasp
the opportunity arising under these current market conditions, we will introduce
more product promotions, such as, limited-time offers, and continue to enrich our
product assortments and the customer experience in our retail stores. Besides, from
our experience in augmenting the product types of the Snoopy series and launching
The KUHASHI Collection during the Period, we realized that this appealed to and
caught the attention of younger generation customers, who were attracted by these
lines of elegant and lovely products. We will continue to invest in developing the
younger generation market by bringing more distinguished and dynamic products
to the market going forward.
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Generally, we will continue to critically review and monitor our tenancies as they
expire with a view to achieving a more reasonable market rental rate so as to
make our retail businesses more sustainable going forward. Examples of our

latest development are further opening of our self-operated stores in the major
cities of Mainland China, such as Beijing and Shanghai in the second half of 2018,
the enlargement of our existing retail store in Times Square, Hong Kong and the
inception of our retail business in Genting, Malaysia in 2018. Despite careful cost
control and streamlining the workflow and organizational structure at the moment,
the Group will continue to invest in and enhance its brand awareness, inventory,
store network and human resources to ensure that it can continue to deliver higher
returns to our customers and shareholders in the future.

Enhancing the customer experience is another vital element in the jewellery retail
business and we always devote ourselves to bringing novel and refreshing ideas in
terms of our product assortments and retail store functionality. With a view to re-
molding our brand as a pioneer in the jewellery industry and to enable our customers
to enjoy styling solutions we provide for different occasions, we are working towards
this direction by keeping on evolving the concept of our retail stores and the
customer experience.

FINANCIAL STRUCTURE

Capital expenditure, comprising mainly store renovation and expansion, furniture
& fixtures and machinery, incurred during the Period amounted to approximately
HK$57 million (28 February 2017: HK$63 million), which was mainly financed by
borrowings and funds generated from internal resources.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s interest-bearing liabilities decreased to HK$787
million from HK$1,023 million as at 28 February 2017. Net borrowings (total interest-
bearing liabilities less cash and cash equivalents and time deposits) decreased from
HK$532 million to HK$466 million.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EIRE 2w m R T (4)

Internally generated funding and borrowings have mainly been applied during the
Period to finance the enhancement of the Group’s inventory, the opening of new
stores and capital expenditure.

The net gearing ratio (the ratio of total interest-bearing liabilities (less cash,

cash equivalents and time deposits) to total equity) decreased from 55% to 40%
during the Period and is at a more healthier level. All borrowings of the Group are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars or RMB. Interest on bank borrowings is calculated
on either the inter-bank interest rate or the prime rate or the benchmark interest
rate.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had time deposits, cash and bank balances, and
undrawn banking facilities of approximately HK$321 million and HK$160 million
respectively which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, should be
sufficient to meet the Group’s present working capital requirements.

Exchange Rates

During the Period, the transactions of the Group were mainly denominated in local

currencies and United States dollars. The impact of any fluctuation of the exchange
rate of these currencies to the Group is minimal.

Charge on Group Assets and Contingent Liabilities

Save as disclosed in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group did

not have any material contingent liabilities which have not been provided for in the
financial statements as at 31 March 2018 (28 February 2017: Nil).
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2018, the total number of employees of the Group was approximately
3,100 (28 February 2017: 3,280). The change was mainly due to normal staff
turnover which is in line with the Group’s business strategy with due regard to the
market conditions. There were no major changes in human resource policies.

Employees are rewarded on a performance basis with reference to market rates.
Other employee benefits include medical cover and subsidies for job-related
continuing education. Retail frontline staff are provided with formal on-the-

job training by internal senior staff and external professional trainers. There are
discussions and in-house seminars for experience sharing.
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Tse Sui Luen, aged 81, the Group’s Founder. Mr. Tse provides general advisory &
strategic advice to the Group. He was the Chairman of the Group from 1987 to 2000
and re-joined the Group in September 2011. He is a veteran jewellery expert having
over 50 years of experience in jewellery industry. He has a wide range of experience
in gem setting, quality control, administration, operations, management and
marketing. He also has very good personal networks with the peers and suppliers,
which facilitate the Group’s business development. He is the father of Mr. Tse Tat
Fung, Tommy, the Deputy Chief Executive Officer and the controlling shareholder of
the Group, and the father-in-law of Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie, the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Group.
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Independent Non-Executive Director
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Yau On Yee, Annie, aged 47, is the Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer, the
chairman of the Executive Committee and a member of both the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. She joined the Group
in 2002, and became an Executive Director of the Company in 2006. She is also a
director of most subsidiaries of the Company. In the early years at the Company,

she pioneered the Group’s Jewellery ERP discipline and modernised the Company’s
management through business process re-engineering. Prior to joining the Group,
she worked for multi-national companies such as Motorola Semiconductors and IBM.
She has over 25 years of management experience in the USA and Hong Kong. She is
a director of each of Partner Logistics Limited and Blink Technology Limited which
have discloseable interests in the Company under provisions of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance. She graduated from Boston University, USA and holds a Bachelor
of Science degree in Computer Engineering. Ms. Yau is the spouse of Mr. Tse Tat
Fung, Tommy, the Deputy Chief Executive Officer and the controlling shareholder of
the Group, and the daughter-in-law of Mr. Tse Sui Luen, the Founder of the Group.

Ms. Yau is a member of each of Jewellery Industry Training Advisory Committee and
Hong Kong Retail Management Association Executive Committee. She is also an
elected member of Quality Tourism Services Association Governing Council (Retailer
Category).
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DIRECTORS PROFILE (CONTINUED)
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ng Yi Kum, Estella, aged 60, is an Executive Director, the Deputy Chairman, the Chief
Strategy Officer & Chief Financial Officer, the Company Secretary and a member of
both the Remuneration Committee and the Executive Committee of the Company.
She joined the Group in 2015 and is responsible for Group Finance and other
administrative functions as well as defining corporate strategies of the Group. She is
also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

From January 2008 to April 2014, Ms. Ng was the Chief Financial Officer of Country
Garden Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 2007), a company whose shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
From September 2005 to November 2007, she was an executive director of Hang
Lung Properties Limited (“Hang Lung”) (Stock Code: 101), a company whose

shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. Prior to her joining in Hang Lung in 2003,
she was employed by the Stock Exchange in a number of senior positions, most
recently as Senior Vice President of the Listing Division. Prior to that, she gained
valuable auditing experience with Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. Ms. Ng is a qualified
accountant and holds a Master of Business Administration degree from the Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology. She is an associate of The Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators, a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She has also contributed her time
to various public service appointments, including being a co-opted member of the
audit committee of the Hospital Authority until November 2013.

Ms. Ng is an independent non-executive director of China Power New Energy
Development Company Limited (Stock Code: 735) and Tianjin Development
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 882), both companies whose shares are listed on the
Stock Exchange. Ms. Ng served as an independent director of DS Healthcare Group,
Inc. until 16 May 2017, a company the shares of which are listed on the Nasdag Capital
Market in the United States and it was delisted on 23 December 2016. She served as
an independent non-executive director of China Mobile Games and Entertainment
Group Limited, a company whose shares are listed by way of American Depositary
Shares on the Nasdag Global Market in the United States, until 10 August 2015. Ms.
Ng also served as an independent non-executive director of Hong Kong Resources
Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 2882) until 31 July 2015, a company whose
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Erwin Steve Huang, aged 52, is a Non-executive Director and the Deputy Chairman
of the Company. He was the Chief Executive Officer of the Company for the period
from 24 April 2008 to 28 February 2010. Prior to joining the Group in March 2005,
he was a seasoned entrepreneur in different industries, including publishing,
education, telecom and information technology. Mr. Huang has built and developed
multiple companies in London, San Francisco, Tokyo and Hong Kong in the past
years. He holds double degrees in Science in Business Administration and Business
Administration and Management from Boston University, USA.

Mr. Huang is a non-executive director of Sky Light Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
3882), a company whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Huang is actively engaged in social entrepreneurship with a view to bridging
social needs through innovation and information technology. He is currently
Associate Professor of Engineering Practice of the Department of Electronic

& Computer Engineering, Adjunct Professor of the Department of Information
Systems, Business Statistics and Operations Management and Senior Advisor
(Entrepreneurship) of The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology. He
is currently the Deputy Chairman of Junior Achievement Hong Kong, dedicated to
inspiring and preparing young leaders to succeed in the global economy through
entrepreneurship. In 2011 and 2016, he was elected as an Election Committee
Member (Information Technology) for the Legislative Council and Chief Executive of
HKSAR.
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DIRECTORS PROFILE (CONTINUED)
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Chui Chi Yun, Robert, aged 61, is an Independent Non-executive Director, the
chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee of
the Company, who joined the Group in 1999.

Mr. Chui is a practising Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong. He holds a
Bachelor’s degree in Commerce (Major in Accounting) and is a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom. Mr. Chui is an independent non-
executive director of each of National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited
(Stock Code: 8228), PPS International (Holdings) Limited (Stock Code: 8201), Wing
Lee Property Investments Limited (Stock Code: 864) and F8 Enterprises (Holdings)
Group Limited (Stock Code: 8347), all of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.

He served as an independent non-executive director of Aurum Pacific (China)
Group Limited (Stock Code: 8148) and a non-executive director of Addchance
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 3344), both companies whose shares are listed on
the Stock Exchange, until 2 March 2016 and 23 May 2017 respectively. He served as
the Commissioner of the Hong Kong Road Safety Patrol and a member of the Road
Safety Campaign Committee of the Road Safety Council, until 30 November 2016.
He is also a director of a number of private companies and associations.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Chan Yue Kwong, Michael, aged 66, is an Independent Non-executive Director, the
chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of both the Audit Committee
and the Remuneration Committee of the Company, who joined the Group in 2010.

Mr. Chan was the former chairman and is currently a non-executive director of Café
de Coral Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 341) and is a non-executive director of Tao
Heung Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 573) and an independent non-executive
director of each of Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1382), Starlite
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 403), Modern Dental Group Limited (Stock Code:
3600) and Human Health Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1419), all shares of which are
listed on the Stock Exchange. He served as an independent non-executive director
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of Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1888), a company whose
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange, until 31 July 2015. Mr. Chan has worked as

a professional town planner with government bodies in Hong Kong and Canada.

He holds a double major degree in Sociology and Political Science, a Master degree
in City Planning from the University of Manitoba, Canada, an Honorary Doctorate
degree in Business Administration, as well as being bestowed the Honorary Fellow
from Lingnan University. Mr. Chan has many years of professional experience in the
public sector and over 30 years of management experience in the food and catering
industry. He is the Adviser of the Quality Tourism Services Association, the Honorary
Chairman of the Hong Kong Institute of Marketing, and the Chairman of the Business
Enterprise Management Centre of the Hong Kong Management Association. In the
public sector, Mr. Chan is appointed by the Government of the HKSAR as member of
the Business Facilitation Advisory Committee.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Chow Chee Wai, Christopher, aged 51, is an Independent Non-executive Director,
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of both the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company, who joined the Group
in 2013.

Mr. Chow is the Founding Partner of TCC Capital, an advisory and private equity fund
management company. He holds a Diploma of Investment and Finance from The
Securities Institute of Australia, a Bachelor of Economics degree from The University
of Sydney and is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Chow has over 20 years’ experience in auditing and merger and
acquisition advisory. Prior to founding TCC Capital, he worked for two of the “Big
Four” international accounting firms in Sydney, Hong Kong and Beijing and was the
Partner in charge of the mergers and acquisitions practice. He possesses in-depth
understanding of financial and capital markets and has built up substantial
experience in advising multinational companies, state owned enterprises and private
companies in Hong Kong and Mainland China on a number of direct investments,
and mergers and acquisitions transactions.
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DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Tse Tat Fung, Tommy, aged 50, is the Group’s Deputy Chief Executive Officer. He

is responsible for the Group’s sales and operations in all markets plus the Group’s
creative directions and supply chain management. Mr. Tse joined the Group after
returning from the USA in 1994. He was the Chairman of the Group from 2000 to
2008 and was, during that time, responsible for the Group’s overall strategy and
business development. During his absence, his life had been enriched through
touching the hearts and souls of the inmates. He re-joined the Group in September
2011, Mr. Tse graduated from Boston University and holds a Bachelor of Science
(Business Administration) degree, Bachelor of Science (Mathematics) degree, and
Master of Arts (Mathematics) degree. He is a director of Partner Logistics Limited
and Blink Technology Limited which have discloseable interests in the Company
under provisions of the Securities and Futures Ordinance. He is the son of Mr. Tse Sui
Luen, the Founder of the Group, the spouse of Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie, the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Group, and is the controlling shareholder of the
Group.
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ANNUAL REPORT AWARDS
FHEE

International ARC Awards 2017:
2017% International ARC Awards :

Silver Non-Traditional Annual Report: Retail: Jewelry
Silver Interior Design: Retail: Jewelry

Silver Printing & Production: Retail: Jewelry
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Galaxy Awards 2017:
2017% Galaxy Awards :

Gold  Design - Non-Traditional: Asia Pacific
Bronze Design - Covers - Artistic/lllustrations
Bronze Design - Covers - Special Treatment
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LACP 2017 Spotlight Awards:
20174 LACP Spotlight Awards :

Gold Award Print - Annual Report
Top 100 Communications Materials
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Mercury Excellence Awards 2017:
20175 Mercury Excellence Awards :
Bronze Cover Design - Special Treatments
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Astrid Awards 2017:

20174 Astrid Awards :

Honors Non-Traditional: Dual Language
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BEST EMPLOYER BRAND AWARDS
REEEERE

Employer of Choice Award
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by Sing Tao Daily
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Best Employer Award
Best Practice for Compensation and Performance Management
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by Guangzhou Daily
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SERVICE AWARDS
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2017 Outstanding QTS Merchant Service Staff Award

207 BERF 8 TR EE

Gold Award - Frontline Staff Level
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2017 Outstanding QTS Merchant
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Silver Award
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2017 Service & Courtesy Award
20174k i BR i 58

Gold Award - Best Service Outlet
S8 — GHREIER

Total Service Assurance Regime
2 HEERKE

Quality Service Award 2017

BEERREAL2017

QTS Merchant Recognition
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15-Year QTS Merchant Recognition
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REPORT OF
THE DIRECTORS

EREWmS

The directors of the Company (the “Directors” or the “Board”) have pleasure in
presenting their report together with the audited consolidated financial statements
for the Period.

CHANGE OF FINANCIAL YEAR END DATE

As a result of the change of the financial year end date from 28 February (or

29 February in a leap year) to 31 March, this directors’ report and the audited
consolidated financial statements presented cover thirteen months from 1 March
2017 to 31 March 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities
and other particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The profit of the Group for the Period and the financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2018 are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 80 to 184
of this annual report.

An interim dividend of 2.1 HK cents (31 August 2016: 1.5 HK cents) per ordinary
share of the Company together with a second interim dividend of 7.3 HK cents (28
February 2017: 3.75 HK cents) were declared, amounting to a total dividend of 9.4
HK cents (2017: 5.25 HK cents) per ordinary share of the Company for the Period.
The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the Period.

BUSINESS REVIEW

An overview and the outlook of the Group’s business are provided in the sections
headed “Letter to Shareholders” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report. Save as the declaration and payment of a second interim dividend

for the period of twelve months ended 28 February 2018, no important event
affecting the Group has occurred since the end of the Period. Certain financial key
performance indicators can be found in the section headed “Financial Highlights”.
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The financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group are shown in
note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

An account of the Group’s relationship with its key stakeholders and discussions

on the Group’s environmental policies and performance are included in a separate
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report”, which will be published in
compliance with the stipulations under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), and in the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report”.

The Company is in compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Company for the Period.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Friday, 7 September
2018 to Wednesday, 12 September 2018 (both days inclusive), for the purpose of
ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on Wednesday, 12 September 2018

(the “2018 AGM”). During the above closure period, no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to be entitled to attend and vote at the 2018 AGM, all completed
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited of Rooms 17121716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong Time) on
Thursday, 6 September 2018.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the Period are
set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-laws or the
laws in Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing shareholders.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme of the Company as set out on pages 42 to 50, no
equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group during the Period.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Period amounted to
HK$235,000 (2017: HK$673,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the
Period are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2018, the Company’s reserves available for distribution, calculated in
accordance with the provisions of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (as amended
from time to time) (“Bermuda Companies Act”) and the Company’s bye-laws,
amounted to approximately HK$616,020,000, which represented the contributed
surplus and retained profits of the Company.

Under the Bermuda Companies Act and the Company’s bye-laws, the contributed
surplus of the Company is available for distribution. However, the Company cannot
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of this contributed surplus if: (i)
itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due;
or (ii) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of
its liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium.

Details of the above are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The five largest customers in aggregate accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s
turnover for the Period. The five largest suppliers in aggregate and the largest
supplier of the Group accounted for approximately 71.8% and 25.2% respectively by
value of the Group’s total purchases.

Rosy Blue Hong Kong Limited, one of the Group’s five largest suppliers, is a fellow
subsidiary of Rosy Blue Overseas Holdings Limited, which is a preference shareholder
of Partner Logistics Limited (the Company’s immediate holding company).

Except for the above, none of the Directors or any of their associates or any
shareholders of the Company (which, to the knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the
major customers and suppliers noted above.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the Period and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Yau On Yee, Annie (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)

Ng Yi Kum, Estella (Deputy Chairman, Chief Strategy Officer &
Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary)

Non-executive Director
Erwin Steve Huang (Deputy Chairman)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Chui Chi Yun, Robert

Chan Yue Kwong, Michael

Chow Chee Wai, Christopher

TEEFRMUER

AEERAPRzAREPAREAEBZ EEBER
30% @ MAEE T AHER REAHEED IR EERER

BEEEA 71.8% 12 25.2% ©

N5 B R oA R 2 — B Rosy Blue Hong Kong Limited &
Rosy Blue Overseas Holdings Limited (tt T3 R R 7] 7 & B %
%X &]Partner Logistics Limited A8 oA A% 3R ) K9 [R) 2 Ff B A

Al e

B bt ESN

BUBEARRIMNES A EABHEALTHER

BROBESAA - FHAERRB D EITRAS%A L) A Z

FXBEP RHUEENEAES -

=
RAHEARBEANREBHIENESOT

WITES
R (F/E RITIAREL)
hiaZ(FEE  BEREENFERARANE)

FMITES
BEK(BIEE)

BIUFTES
EEC
BRAE K

[EafE

035 |



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EFEERE®E)

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s bye-laws and to comply with
the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, Ms.
Yau On Yee, Annie and Mr. Chow Chee Wai, Christopher will retire as Directors

at the 2018 AGM. Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie and Mr. Chow Chee Wai, Christopher,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election as an executive Director and
independent non-executive Director for a term of three years respectively. All other
Directors continue in office for the ensuing year.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from each of the
current independent non-executive Directors and as at the date of this report still
considers them to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the 2018 AGM has a service contract with the
Group which is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF
THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2018, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief
executive and/or their respective associates of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFO™)), which were required to be notified to the Company and on the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or which were required to be entered in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”), were as follows:
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®

Interests and long positions in ordinary shares of the Company

0]

AR A BB # K uf

Ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each

SREERE0.25 T ER
Approximate
percentage
Derivative of total issued
interest share capital*
Personal Family Corporate  (share options) Other EERT
Name of Director interest interest interest TTEIE#ER interest R 48 8
EEME B AR Rk AT (R rE) HithiE s BABE D
Yau On Yee, Annie 119,082 179,559,829 - 1,411,666 - 73.93%
gt (NotePffzE4)  (NotesPfzE1 & 4) (NotesPi3¥2 & 3)
4,762 1,411,666
(NotesHi#F1 & 4) (NotesPff712 & 3)

Notes:

The percentage was calculated based on 246,836,860 ordinary shares in issue of
the Company as at 31 March 2018.

179,559,829 ordinary shares of the Company are held by Partner Logistics
Limited, a company which is owned and controlled by Blink Technology Limited.
Blink Technology Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Tse Tat Fung,
Tommy, the spouse of Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie, an executive Director. By virtue of
the SFO, Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie is deemed to be interested in all the shares held
by Partner Logistics Limited.

4,762 ordinary shares of the Company are held by Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy. By
virtue of the SFO, Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie is deemed to be interested in all the
shares of the Company held by Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy.

1,210,000 share options of the Company, which was adjusted to 1,411,666 upon
the completion of issuance of bonus shares on the basis of one bonus share for
every six existing ordinary shares (the “Bonus Issue”) on 4 August 2017, were
granted to each of Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie and Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy on 1
March 2013. For details of adjustment, please refer to the section (ii) “Interests
and long position in underlying shares of the Company”. By virtue of the SFO,
Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie is deemed to be interested in all the share options of the
Company granted to Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy.

Duplication occurred in respect of the same blocks of share options as separately
set out under section (ii) “Interests and long position in underlying shares of the
Company”.
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4, Upon receipt of scrip shares on 11 June 2018 as to the second interim dividend for 4. 201846 A118 UK B I (7 W ERE = 201842 A28 H
the period of twelve months ended 28 February 2018, Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie’s IE+=EARAZEZRTHRERE  BLELLEFEZ
personal interest in the number of ordinary shares increased to 122,942, family &l AR 2R3 DN Z2122,942 % E i A% - i) SR & #E 2 388 00
interest in the number of ordinary shares increased to 180,146,799, in which 180,146,799 L i@ A% - E 180,141,883k L i@k F
180,141,883 ordinary shares were held by Partner Logistics Limited and 4,916 Partner Logistics Limited¥% A K& 4,916 % & i# A% i 51 1=
ordinary shares were held by Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy. B EHE -

(i) Interests and long position in underlying shares of the Company (i) AAERREEROAER A

The Directors during the Period who had interests in option to subscribe for EFNAHEREEE A RIEAR T @R G B R
ordinary shares of the Company are set out as follows: WERERRIT ¢
Number of share options
BRENER
Outstanding

Outstanding Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed Adjustment asat Adjusted
Date of Grant asat during the during the during the during the during the 31March  exercise price Exercise period
(dd/mm/yyyy)  1March 2017 Period Period Period Period Period 2018 per share (dd/mm/yyyy)
Name of Director RERE  BZUE KEER b TEER KEER BN BE0E fREy g ]
302 (R/B/%) IF1ALE Rit i B %% #&  3ANEEE  BROFER (R/R/8)

(Notefffz#) (NotefffzF)
Yau On Yee, Annie 0J03/03 1200000 - - - - 201666 14666 HKSEEISE T 0/0%/201 -
BRE 29/02/2020
15%: 01/03/2015 -
29/02/2020
30%: 01/03/2016 -
29/02/2020
40%: 01/03/2017 -
29/02/2020

1038



Note:

On 19 July 2017, an ordinary resolution was duly passed by the shareholders at the annual
general meeting of the Company to approve the Bonus Issue. As a result of the Bonus
Issue, adjustments were made to the exercise price and the number of shares to be
allotted and issued upon full exercise of subscription rights attaching to the outstanding
share options with effect from 4 August 2017. The exercise price per share indicated in
the above table is the exercise price per share after the said adjustments were made

on 4 August 2017. Prior to the adjustments, the exercise price per share in relation to
share options granted on 1 March 2013 was HK$4.13. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 4 August 2017.

Save as disclosed above and in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”, as at 31
March 2018, none of the Directors, chief executive and their respective associates
of the Company, had any other interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which required notification to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which any such Director or chief executive of the
Company is taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO);

or which were required pursuant to section 352 of the SFO to be entered into the
register maintained by the Company; or which were required, pursuant to the Model
Code contained in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company or the Stock
Exchange.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS FERRREAMA TRAAFRD RIBER A HNER
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF ERAE

THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2018, the interests, all being long positions, of any substantial HZE2018F3A310 » EfAIE B E M AT (WIEERRF]
shareholders or other persons (not being Directors or chief executive of the NEERRSTTHRAB)EARREINRMN &, SABRER (D
Company) in the shares and/or underlying shares of the Company which have been BEOBREZESRASENEXVEFE2RID EBHRERARD
disclosed to the Company pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part AMEL T - REBBEBEHF RIS KPIEIZ6GELARA
XV of the SFO and have been recorded in the register required to be kept by the BTN ERMANER(BATE)INT -

Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each

SREEBE0.25THEER
Approximate
percentage of
Number of total issued
ordinary share capital*
Number of shares BT
Name Capacity share options TER BAREg
a8 54 BRESE RHEE BABE D
(i) Partner Logistics Limited (NoteHi 1) Beneficial owner - 179,559,829 72.74%
EnHBA (NotePff#E3)
(i) Blink Technology Limited (Notef{5+1) Interest of controlled corporation - 179,559,829 72.74%
S VNGV 3y (NotePffFE3)
(i) Tse Tat Fung, Tommy (NotePf#F1) Interest of controlled corporation - 179,559,829 72.74%
EE T A AR
Interest of Spouse 1,411,666 119,082 0.62%
[ Ry
Beneficial owner 1,411,666 4,762 0.57%
EnmAA (Notelff7E4)
(iv)  Rosy Blue Overseas Holdings Limited (NotePff7F2)  Interest of controlled corporation - 179,559,829 72.74%
SR AR (Noteft7%3)
(v)  Rosy Blue Jewellery (HK) Limited (Notefff5%2) Interest of controlled corporation - 179,559,829 72.74%
SRty YNCTL 2oy (Notelff#E3)
(vi)  Prime Investments S.A. (Noteff{52) Interest of controlled corporation - 179,559,829 72.74%
SN R (Notelff#E3)
(vii)  Rosy Blue Investments S.a.R.L. (Noteff5E2) Interest of controlled corporation - 179,559,829 72.74%
SR NGV (Notefff7FE3)
(viiiy  Elmas Hong Kong Limited (Notefff5+2) Trustee - 179,559,829 72.74%
EHEA (NoteffiFE3)
(i) Viraj Rusell Mehta (Noteff{52) Settlor of discretionary trust - 179,559,829 72.74%
BIEER s MERTA (Notelff5E3)
* The percentage was calculated based on 246,836,860 ordinary shares of the Company in * B RIEE E2018%3 831 ANA 52 2447246,336,86008
issue as at 31 March 2018. SEEETE o
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Notes:

Rt

179,559,829 ordinary shares of the Company are held by Partner Logistics 1.
Limited, a company which is owned and controlled by Blink Technology Limited.

Blink Technology Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Tse Tat Fung,

Tommy, the spouse of Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie, an executive Director. By virtue

of the SFO, Blink Technology Limited, Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie (her deemed

interest is disclosed under the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s

Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the

Company”) and Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy are deemed to be interested in all the

shares of the Company held by Partner Logistics Limited.

119,082 ordinary shares of the Company are held by Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie. By
virtue of the SFO, Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy is deemed to be interested in all the
shares of the Company held by Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie.

1,411,666 share options of the Company are held by Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie. By
virtue of the SFO, Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy is deemed to be interested in all the
share options of the Company held by Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie.

Another 1,411,666 share options and 4,762 ordinary shares of the Company are
held by Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy.

These ordinary shares of the Company, relating to the same block of shares 2.
mentioned in note 1above, are held by Partner Logistics Limited, a company
which is owned and controlled by Blink Technology Limited. Rosy Blue Overseas
Holdings Limited is the preference shareholder of Partner Logistics Limited.

Rosy Blue Overseas Holdings Limited is wholly owned by Rosy Blue Jewellery
(HK) Limited, which in turn is wholly owned by Prime Investments S.A.. Prime
Investments S.A. is wholly owned by Rosy Blue Investments S.a.R.L., which in turn
is wholly owned by Elmas Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Viraj Rusell Mehta is the settlor
of a discretionary trust (the “Trust”), which in turns holds the interest in Rosy Blue
Investments S.a.R.L. through Elmas Hong Kong Limited, as trustee of the Trust.
By virtue of the SFO, each of Rosy Blue Overseas Holdings Limited, Rosy Blue
Jewellery (HK) Limited, Prime Investments S.A., Rosy Blue Investments S.a.R.L.,
Elmas Hong Kong Limited and Mr. Viraj Rusell Mehta, is deemed to be interested
in all the shares of the Company held by Partner Logistics Limited.

Upon receipt of scrip shares on 11 June 2018 as to the second interim dividend 3.
for the period of twelve months ended 28 February 2018, the number of ordinary

shares in which each of Partner Logistics Limited, Blink Technology Limited,

Rosy Blue Overseas Holdings Limited, Rosy Blue Jewellery (HK) Limited, Prime

Investments S.A., Rosy Blue Investments S.a.R.L., EImas Hong Kong Limited and

Viraj Rusell Mehta is interested in was increased to 180,141,883.

KA A179,559,829% & 38 A% Fa Partner Logistics Limited
A ZARAMERLE(ARTESIREL LT
2B B) 2B E %A 2 Blink Technology Limited #
B RES - REBEFF REAEKA - Blink Technology
Limited * iR {E 2 T (R AT ARG 2 w2 5
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A1 R ERE O KA R | —6) RIER S AR
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ARG 2 o
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RAREEAE 2 FRBRRG 2 iz -

RN TENANGCE6AR M 2 ERE TR EZ LFAE ©
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BLETRARAEE 2B BIREZ s -
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I S @ AL A b Rl BY SE1ATER M &9 B Partner Logistics
Limited$5 5 2 18R A& 19 - % 2 & f Blink Technology
Limited # B & # %] ° Rosy Blue Overseas Holdings
Limited % Partner Logistics Limited #) {8 5 f& A% 3 -
Prime Investments S.A. & B Rosy Blue Jewellery (HK)
Limited % & & Rosy Blue Overseas Holdings Limited °
M Elmas Hong Kong Limited & & # A& #) Rosy Blue
Investments S.a.R.L.Z & # B Prime Investments S.A.
Viraj Rusell MehtaZc £ JhBBEE([ErE ) 2 ER T
A & iBEImas Hong Kong Limited ({E3EZ E5EA) 2
B ARosy Blue Investments SaR.L.  iRIBEEHF LS
1§45 - Rosy Blue Overseas Holdings Limited, Rosy Blue
Jewellery (HK) Limited, Prime Investments S.A. ~ Rosy
Blue Investments S.a.R.L. * ElImas Hong Kong Limited &
Viraj Rusell Mehta%t A9 1% &+5 8 M Partner Logistics
Limited R AN A BIFEE 2 Fi A B 1) 2 HEas ©

7201846 AN H AR BRR ) e ERE = 20184F 2 A 28 B
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4, Upon receipt of scrip shares on 11 June 2018 as to the second interim dividend for
the period of twelve months ended 28 February 2018, Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy’s
personal interest in the number of ordinary shares increased to 4,916, spouse
interest in the number of ordinary shares increased to 122,942 and interest in the
number of ordinary shares via Partner Logistics Limited and Blink Technology
Limited increased to 180,141,883.

Save as disclosed above and in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”, as at 31
March 2018, the Company had not been notified of any persons who had interests or
short positions in the shares and/or underlying shares of the Company, which were
required to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to section 336 of the SFO.

CHANGES OF DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B(1)
OF THE LISTING RULES

Changes in Directors’ emoluments during the Period are set out in note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, there is no change in information of the Directors since
the date of the last interim report which is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A. The 2003 Share Option Scheme
The Company adopted a share option scheme on 26 November 2003 (the
“2003 Share Option Scheme”). The following is a summary of the principal
terms of the 2003 Share Option Scheme:

1. Purpose of the 2003 Share Option Scheme:
The purpose of the 2003 Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives
or rewards to participants thereunder for their contribution to the
Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre
employees and attract human resources that are valuable to the Group
and any entity in which the Group holds any equity interest (“Invested
Entity”).
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Participants of the 2003 Share Option Scheme:

(a

()

©

(d)

(e)

®

Total number of shares available for issue under the 2003 Share Option

any employee (whether full time or part time employee,
including any executive directors but not any non-executive
director) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity;

any non-executive director (including independent non-
executive directors) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or
any Invested Entity;

any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity;

any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;

any person or entity that provides research, development or
technological support or other services to the Group or any
Invested Entity; and

any shareholder or any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity.

Scheme and the percentage of issued share capital as at the date of
this report:

As at 21 June 2018, the total number of shares currently available for
issue under the 2003 Share Option Scheme is 6,136,667, representing
2.47% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this
annual report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the 2003 Share Option

Scheme:
The maximum entitlement of each grantee in any 12-month period is
limited to 1% of the total number of shares in issue of the Company.
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The period within which shares must be taken up under an option:
The Board may in its absolute discretion determine, save that such
period shall not be more than ten (10) years from the date of grant of
the Option.

The minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised:

The Board may at its discretion determine the minimum period for
which the option has to be held or other restrictions before the exercise
of the subscription right attaching thereon.

The amount payable on application or acceptance of the option and
the period within which payments must be made:

An offer of an option shall be deemed to have been accepted within 28
days from the date of offer upon acceptance of the option duly signed
by the grantee together with a remittance of HK$1.

The basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price of the option shall be determined by the Board and
such price shall not be lower than the higher of (i) the closing price

of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the offer date, which must be a trading day; (ii)
the average closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five (5) trading days
immediately preceding the offer date; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share of the Company.

The remaining life of the 2003 Share Option Scheme:

The 2003 Share Option Scheme was expired on 25 November 2013.
Subsequent to the expiry of the 2003 Share Option Scheme, no
further option can be granted thereunder but in all other respects, the
provisions of the 2003 Share Option Scheme shall remain in force and
all options granted prior to such expiry shall continue to be valid and
exercisable in accordance therewith.
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The movements in the number of share options under the 2003 Share Option

MAHIRA - RIF2003F B BT R L BB A

Scheme during the Period were as follows: HEIFRIIA TR ¢
Number of share options
BREYA
Outstanding Outstanding
asat Granted Exercised Cancelled Adjustment Lapsed asat Adjusted
Date of grant 1March during the during the during the during the during the 31March  exercise price Exercise period
Name or category (dd/mm/yyyy) 2017 Period Period Period Period Period 2018 per share (dd/mm/yyyy)
of participant REEH  BR0ME REER AHER THER THER AEEA BZ20wE aREy s
SHEATERASSR (R/B/8)  3pBLH Rt it i it X% 3BNALH  SROEER (B/R/%)
(Notelffzt1) (NoteHfzET)
Substantial shareholder
IZRR
Tse Tat Fung, Tommy 01/03/2013 120,000 - - 201666 - 140666 HKSE®354 15%: 01/09/2014 -
i 29/02/2020
15%: 01/03/2015 -
29/02/2020
30%: 01/03/2016 -
29/02/2020
40%: 01/03/2017 -
29/02/2020
Sub-total 1210,000 - - 201,666 - 1471,666
5t
Associate of Director/
substantial shareholder
EE/IERRNBEA
Tse Sui Luen (Note2) 01/03/2013 800,000 - - 133333 - 933333 HKSB®354 15%: 01/09/2014 -
Eafiof 29/02/2020
15%: 01/03/2015 -
29/02/2020
30% 01/03/2016 -
29/02/2020
40%: 01/03/2017 -
29/02/2020
Sub-total 800,000 - - 133,353 - 933,533
gt
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Number of share options
BREZR
Outstanding Outstanding
asat Granted Exercised Cancelled Adjustment Lapsed asat Adjusted
Date of grant 1March during the during the during the during the during the 31March  exercise price Exercise period
Name or category (dd/mm/yyyy) 2017 Period Period Period Period Period 2018 per share (dd/mm/yyyy)
of participant RERE  BZUE KEER THER REER REER BN BZBE BRRY it
SEATERGSE (B/B/%)  3RIAKH Rt it B Fit ] XM 3ANALH  SROEER (B/R/%)
(NotelitzEn) (NotelifzE)
Employees
8
Inaggregate (NotefifzE3) 01/03/2013 3290,000 - - - 548,333 (513.333) 335000 HK$AMIS4 15%: 01/09/2014 -
8% (NotelffzE4) 29/02/2020
15%: 01/03/2015 -
29/02/2020
30%: 01/03/2016 -
29/02/2020
40%: 01/03/2017 -
29/02/2020
Sub-total 590,000 - - - 548333 (513,3%3) 5325000
N3t
Service providers
i
In aggregate 01/03/2013 800,000 - - - 133333 - 933333 HKGA®3N 15%: 01/09/2014 -
At 29/02/2020
15%: 01/03/2015 -
29/02/2020
30%: 01/03/2016 -
29/02/2020
40%: 01/03/2017 -
29/02/2020
Sub-total 800,000 - - - 133,333 - 933,333
it
Total 6,100,000 - - - 1016,665 (513,333) 6,603,332
g
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Notes:

1. As a result of the Bonus Issue, adjustments were made to the exercise price and
the number of shares to be allotted and issued upon full exercise of subscription
rights attaching to the outstanding share options with effect from 4 August 2017.
The exercise price per share indicated in the above table is the exercise price
per share after the said adjustments were made on 4 August 2017. Prior to the
adjustments, the exercise price per share in relation to share options granted on
1March 2013 was HK$4.13. For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 4 August 2017.

2. Mr. Tse Sui Luen is the father of Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy, a substantial
shareholder of the Company and the father-in-law of Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie, an
executive Director. Pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, Mr. Tse Sui Luen is
an associate of Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy and Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie respectively.

3. This aggregate number includes the number of share options granted to Ms. Yau
On Yee, Annie, an executive Director.

4. 466,666 share options of the Company granted to an employee were lapsed on' 1
June 2018 due to the resignation of such employee.

Details of share options granted to the Directors and the relevant movements
during the Period are set out in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company” in this report of the directors.

The 2016 Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a new share option scheme at its annual general
meeting held on 21 July 2016 (the “2016 Share Option Scheme™). Terms of
the 2016 Share Option Scheme are substantially the same as the 2003 Share
Option Scheme. As at the date of the report, no options have been granted
under the 2016 Share Option Scheme. The following is a summary of the
principal terms of the 2016 Share Option Scheme:

1. Purpose of the 2016 Share Option Scheme:
The purpose of the 2016 Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives
or rewards to participants thereunder for their contribution to the
Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre
employees and attract human resources that are valuable to the Group
and any Invested Entity.
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RRAEFTMI TR B 2 T TS TP ECEE R BT T Z R 1D
HEDWFAE - §2017F8 F4RAER - RATRETI
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B8 o RFTHZERT - ARAR2013E3A1AE L 2 BviE
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NRA017E8F4H Z A% »

2. AP ERA R BRRAEE KA 2 RN
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3 IR BER T TEFDIREL L ZBIIES
B e

4, BF (g B AR 2 466,6660%170 2 BIHED HZ
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Participants of the 2016 Share Option Scheme:

@)

()

(©)

()]

(e)

®

(@

(h)

any employee(s) (whether full time or part time employee(s),
including any director or executive director but not any
non-executive director) of the Company, its subsidiaries or any
Invested Entity;

any non-executive director (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries
or any Invested Entity;

any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity;

any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;

any person or entity that provides research, development or
technological support or other services to the Group or any
Invested Entity;

any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity;

any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to any
area of business or business development of any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity; and

any other group or classes of participants who have contributed
or may contribute by way of joint venture, business alliance or
other business and/or financial arrangement to the development
and growth of the Group.
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Total number of shares available for issue under the 2016 Share Option
Scheme and the percentage of issued share capital as at the date of
this report:

Pursuant to the term of the 2016 Share Option Scheme, the total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the 2016 Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10%

of the total number of shares in issue on 21 July 2016 (the “Adoption
Date”) (i.e. not exceeding 21,033,622 shares on the basis that the

total issued share capital of the Company as at the Adoption Date is
210,336,221 shares). Options lapsed in accordance with the term of

the 2016 Share Option Scheme or any other share option scheme of
the Company will not be counted for the purpose of calculating the
10% limit. However, the maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the 2016 Share Option Scheme any other share option
schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of the total number of
shares in issue from time to time.

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the 2016 Share Option
Scheme:

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the option granted to each participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
total number of shares in issue.

The period within which shares must be taken up under an option:

The period would be commencing from the date of grant of an option
and ending on such date as the Board may determine in granting the
option but in any event not exceeding ten years from the date of grant.

The minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised:

The Board may at its discretion determine the minimum period for
which the option has to be held or other restrictions before the exercise
of the subscription right attaching thereto.
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The amount payable on application or acceptance of the option and
the period within which payments must be made:

Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to

the Company by way of consideration for the grant. Any offer may
be accepted in respect of less than the number of shares for which

it is offered provided that it is accepted in a board lot for dealing in
the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange or an integral multiple
thereof. An offer is open for acceptance within 28 days from the date
of offer provided that no offer shall be open for acceptance after the
expiry of the 2016 Share Option Scheme or after the 2016 Share Option
Scheme has been terminated.

The basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price of the option shall be determined by the Board

and such price must be at least the higher of (i) the closing price of

the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the offer date, which must be a trading day; (ii)
the average closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five (5) trading days
immediately preceding the offer date; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share of the Company.

The remaining life of the 2016 Share Option Scheme:
The 2016 Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for a period of 10
years, which will expire on 21 July 2026.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

With effect from 1 September 2011, (i) Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy (“Mr. Tommy Tse”),
the substantial shareholder of the Company and the spouse of Ms. Yau On Yee,
Annie (“Ms. Annie Yau”), the executive Director, has been employed by a subsidiary
of the Company as the Chief Merchandising Officer (subsequently, re-designated

as Deputy Chief Executive Officer with effect from 1 November 2016) (“Tommy Tse
Employment”); and (ii) Mr. Tse Sui Luen (“Mr. Tse Senior”), the father of Mr. Tommy
Tse and father-in-law of Ms. Annie Yau, has been employed by a subsidiary of the
Company as the Founder (“Tse Senior Employment”). Both Tommy Tse Employment
and Tse Senior Employment constituted continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Both Tommy Tse Employment and Tse
Senior Employment have been revised on 22 June 2012. Further details are disclosed
in the announcements dated 22 June 2012.

During the Period, the amounts in respect of Tse Senior Employment is below de
minimis threshold for the purposes of Rule 14A.76 of the Listing Rules, Tse Senior
Employment is fully exempt from shareholders’ approval, annual review and all
disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules.

With effect from 1 November 2016, the roles and functions of the senior management
of the Group have changed due to the continued development of the Group, Mr.
Tommy Tse has taken up the role in supply chain and wholesale business, as well

as the leadership of China retail, travel trade, alternate channels and the Group’s
branding and creative directions.

In alignment with the abovementioned change of the roles and functions of Mr.
Tommy Tse, the Company through its subsidiary, entered into an employment
agreement with Mr. Tommy Tse on 31 October 2016 (“Tommy Tse Employment
Agreement’), which superseded his previous employment agreement. According to
Tommy Tse Employment Agreement, Mr. Tommy Tse’s basic salary amounts to an
approximately annualised aggregate of HK$2,400,000.00 per annum. There is also
the prospect of his being awarded a bonus under the Discretionary Management
Bonus Scheme (at the discretion of the Company’s Remuneration Committee). To
cater for the possibility of such a bonus being awarded, the Board has revised an
annual cap on the total amount (inclusive of bonus) that may be paid to Mr. Tommy
Tse under the Tommy Tse Employment Agreement for each of the financial year
ended 28 February 2017 and 2018 of HK$4,500,000.00.
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On 29 March 2018, a renewed employment agreement (the “New Employment
Agreement’) was entered into for a further term of 25 months commencing on 1
March 2018 and expiring on 31 March 2020 in light of the change of the Group’s
financial year end date, but is terminable on three months’ notice in writing by either
party. According to the New Employment Agreement, Mr. Tommy Tse’s maximum
basic salary amounts to an approximately annualised aggregate of HK$2,730,000.00
for the thirteen months ending 31 March 2019 and HK$2,646,000.00 for the year
ending 31 March 2020. There is also the prospect of his being awarded a bonus under
the Discretionary Management Bonus Scheme (at the discretion of the Company’s
Remuneration Committee). To cater for the possibility of such a bonus being
awarded, the Board has revised an annual cap on the total amount (inclusive of
bonus) that may be paid to Mr. Tommy Tse under the New Employment Agreement
for the thirteen months ending 31 March 2019 and for the financial year ending 31
March 2020 of HK$4,700,000.00 and HK$4,700,000.00 respectively.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.76(2) of the Listing Rules, all of the relevant percentage ratios
for the aggregate annual package of Mr. Tommy Tse is less than 5%, the Tommy Tse
Employment Agreement, the New Employment Agreement and the annual caps are
only subject to the disclosure in annual report, announcement and annual review

by independent non-executive directors and auditors requirement, but are exempt
from the requirement of circular and independent shareholders’ approval.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above employment
and confirmed that the continuing connected transaction has been entered into:

(@)  inthe ordinary and usual course of the business of the Company;
(b)  onnormal commercial terms; and
(¢)  inaccordance with the relevant agreement governing such employment on

terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole.
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Ernst & Young (“EY”), the Company’s auditor, was engaged to report on the

Group’s continuing connected transaction in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance Engagements Other Than Audlits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information and with reference to Practice Note 740
Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. EY has
issued an unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed above by the Group in accordance with
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by
the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above and disclosed in note 34 of the consolidated financial
statements, there was no connected transactions or contracts of significance to
which the Company, its holding company or subsidiaries was a party, and in which a
Director had a material interest or interest in competing business, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Period or at any time during the Period and
up to the date of this report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Certain significant related party transactions entered into by the Group during the
Period, which do not constitute connected or continuing connected transactions
under the Listing Rules are disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than the Directors’ service contracts, no contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business
of the Company were entered into or existed as at the end of the Period or at any
time during the Period.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws, every Director or other officers of the
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets and profits of the
Company against all losses or damages which he/she may sustain or incur in or
about the execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto.
The Company has arranged appropriate directors” and officers’ liability insurance
coverage, which is currently in force and was in force throughout the Period, for the
Directors and officers of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the listed securities of the Company during the Period.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 March 2018 are
set out in notes 23 to 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 185 of this annual report.

PROPERTIES

Particulars of the major properties of the Group are shown on pages 186 to 187 of
this annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY
The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the Human

Resources Department and the employees’ emoluments are determined on the basis
of their qualifications, experiences and area of expertises.
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The emoluments of the executive Directors and senior management of the Company
are determined by the Remuneration Committee of the Company, having regard

to the Group’s operating results, individual expertises, professional experience and
comparable market statistics.

The emoluments of the non-executive Directors, including independent non-
executive Directors, were decided by the Board as recommended by the
Remuneration Committee of the Company having regard to comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities.

The emoluments of the Directors and employees of the Group include a share option
scheme, details of which are disclosed in section headed “Share Option Scheme” of
this report of the directors.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the Directors as at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float as required under the Listing Rules.

SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE BY THE CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

A, Acting as guarantor for the facilities agreement with O-Bank Co., Ltd.
(formerly known as Industrial Bank of Taiwan Co. Ltd)

In 2016, the Company as guarantor and certain subsidiaries of the Company
as borrowers (the “Borrowers”) entered into a facilities agreement (the
“Facilities Agreement”) with O-Bank Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Industrial
Bank of Taiwan Co. Ltd) acting as mandated lead arranger, facility agent,
original lender and security agent, pursuant to which term loan facilities in
the aggregate amount of HK$573,000,000 (the “Facilities”), inclusive of an
exercised greenshoe option upsize of HK$23,000,000, has been granted to
the Borrowers for a term of 5 years from the date of the first utilisation of the
Facilities.
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Pursuant to the Facilities Agreement, among other things, it will be an event
of default if (a) Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie, the spouse of Mr. Tse Tat Fung,
Tommy (being the controlling shareholder of the Company) ceases to (i) be
the chairman of the Board, (ii) have control of the Company (which includes
the right to determine the composition of a majority of the Board); or (b) Ms.
Yau On Yee, Annie and her immediate family members, together, ceases to (i)
be, directly or indirectly, the single largest shareholder of the Company, or (ii)
have the ability to cast, or control the casting of 60% or more of the maximum
number of votes that may be cast at any general meeting of the Company.

Upon the occurrence of such an event of default which is continuing, the
agent under the Facilities Agreement may, and shall if so directed by the
majority of the lenders, cancel the Commitments (as defined in the Facilities
Agreement) or any part thereof, and/or declare all or part of the loans
outstanding under the Facilities together with accrued interest and other
amounts be immediately due and payable, and/or declare all or part of the
loans outstanding under the Facilities be payable on demand, and/or exercise
any or all of its rights, remedies, powers or discretions under the Finance
Documents (as defined in the Facilities Agreement), as the case may be.

Acting as guarantor for the subscription agreement with two
institutional investors

In 2016, the Company as guarantor and TSL Manufacturing and Distribution
Limited as issuer (the “Issuer”), an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a subscription agreement (the “Subscription
Agreement”) with two institutional investors (collectively “Subscribers™)
pursuant to which the Issuer has agreed to issue, and the Subscribers have
agreed to subscribe from the Issuer, senior secured notes in an aggregate
principal amount of up to HK$200 million (the “Notes”) maturing on the
second anniversary of the issue date of the Notes. The Notes may be
extended for a further term of one year by the Issuer with the consent of the
Note holders.
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Pursuant to the Subscription Agreement, among other things, it will be an
event of default if Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie: (i) ceases to be the chairman of
the Board; or (ii) together with her close relatives (being her parents, spouse
or children), cease to beneficially own, directly or indirectly, the largest
percentage or proportion of the entire issued share capital of the Company
(excluding any part thereof that carries no voting rights) or to control the
Company (where “control” is defined as meaning the power or right (whether
by way of ownership or shares, proxy, contract, agency or otherwise or
directly or indirectly) to: (a) cast or control the casting of more than 50%

of the votes that might be cast at a general meeting of the Company; (b)
appoint or remove all or a majority of the directors or remove any director
of the Company; and/or (¢) direct or cause the direction of the operations,
management and financial or other policies of the Company).

Upon the occurrence of such an event of default, each Note holder shall have
the right to require the Issuer to either redeem all or a part of such Notes
held by such Note holder or in addition to and without prejudice to any of the
Issuer’s other payment obligations, pay default interest to such Note holder in
the amount pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Notes.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance.
Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the Company is set
out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report”.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Period have been audited
by EY. EY will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of EY as independent auditor of the Company is to
be proposed at the 2018 AGM.

By Order of the Board
Yau On Yee, Annie
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 June 2018
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
The Board has committed to achieving high corporate governance standards.

The Board believes that high corporate governance standards are essential in
providing a framework for the Company to safeguard the interests of shareholders
and to enhance corporate value and accountability.

During the Period, the Company has applied the principles and complied with all
the code provisions, except for the code provision A.2.1, as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
The offices of chairman and chief executive officer of the Company are held by Ms.
Yau On Yee, Annie. The Board believes that Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie can provide the
Company with strong and consistent leadership and allows for effective and efficient
planning and implementation of business decisions and strategies. The Board also
considers that the current structure of vesting the roles of chairman and the chief
executive in the same person will not impair the balance of power and authority
between the Board and the management of the Company.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code for dealing in securities of
the Company by the Directors.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and all the Directors have
confirmed their compliance with the Model Code throughout the Period.

The Company has also established written guidelines no less exacting than the Model
Code (the "Employees Written Guidelines”) for securities transactions by employees
who are likely to be in possession of unpublished inside information of the Group. No
incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by the employees
was noted by the Company during the Period.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The composition of the Board during the Period and up to the date of this report is as
follows:

Executive Directors:

Ms. YAU On Yee, Annie (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. NG Yi Kum, Estella (Deputy Chairman, Chief Strategy Officer &
Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary)

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Erwin Steve HUANG (Deputy Chairman)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. CHUI Chi Yun, Robert

Mr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael

Mr. CHOW Chee Wai, Christopher

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Directors Profile” of this annual report.

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual.

The offices of chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company are held by
Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie. The Board considers that the current management structure
has operated efficiently. According to the Company’s practice, all major strategic
decisions are taken by the Board, or relevant committee of the Board, as duly
constituted.

The Board considers that the current structure of vesting the roles of chairman
and chief executive in the same person will not impair the balance of power and
authority between the Board and the management of the Company.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

During the Period, the Board at all times met the requirements of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors,
representing one-third of the Board with one of whom possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors in respect of his independence in accordance
with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Company is of the view that all independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert, an independent non-executive Director, has served the
Board for more than nine years. Notwithstanding his long term service, given his
extensive experience as a professional accountant, would contribute significantly
to the strategy development and continuous improvement on internal controls and
other relevant financial and corporate governance matters of the Company, and
not being connected with any director or substantial shareholder of the Company,
the Board is of the opinion that he continues to bring independent and objective
perspectives to the Company’s affairs.

Non-executive Directors and Directors’ Re-election

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive directors shall be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election, whereas code provision A.4.2
states that all directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to election
by shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment and that every
director, including those appointed for a specific term, shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years.

Each of the Directors is appointed for a specific term of three years and is subject to
retirement by rotation once every three years.
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Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the Board and
Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company and oversees
the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and performance and is collectively
responsible for promoting the success of the Company by directing and supervising
its affairs. The Directors take decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the Company as well
as the services and advice from the company secretary and senior management. The
Directors may, upon request, seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses for discharging their duties to the
Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held by them and
the Board regularly reviews the contribution required from each Director to perform
his/her responsibilities to the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy matters,
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management, material transactions
(in particular those that may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of Directors and other significant operational matters of the Company.
Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board, directing and co-
ordinating the daily operation and management of the Company are delegated to
the management.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors
Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director and of the conduct, business
activities and development of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal, comprehensive and tailored
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and full awareness
of Director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
statutory requirements.
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Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. All Directors are encouraged to attend
relevant training courses at the Company’s expenses.

A summary of training received by Directors during the Period according to the
records provided by the Directors is as follows:
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Attending briefings/trainings/
seminars and/or reading materials

HEBNg 1EH
Directors = Wk, SEEME
Executive Directors: HWITES
Ms. YAU On Yee, Annie & {gEa+ v
Ms. NG Yi Kum, Estella s+ v
Non-executive Director: EHITES -
Mr. Erwin Steve HUANG EHEKEE v
Independent Non-executive Directors: B IEITES -
Mr. CHUI Chi Yun, Robert EECRE v
Mr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael BRAQSEAE 4
Mr. CHOW Chee Wai, Christopher ARETE v

BOARD COMMITTEES EEEEEY

The Board has established the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.
All the said Board committees of the Company are established with defined written
terms of reference, which are posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange and are available to shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of the said Board committees are independent non-
executive Directors and the list of the chairman and members of each Board
committee is set out in the section headed “Corporate Information” of this annual
report.
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Audit Committee
The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee include the following:

. To review the financial statements and reports and consider any significant or
unusual items raised by the Company’s staff responsible for accounting and
financial reporting function, compliance officer, internal auditor or external
auditors before submission to the Board;

. To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting system, internal control system and risk management system; and

. To review the relationship with the external auditor with reference to the
work performed by the auditor, their fees and terms of engagement, and
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of external auditor.

The Audit Committee oversees the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group, reviews the internal audit report submitted by the Internal Audit
Department of the Company (the “IA Department”), reports to the Board on any
material issues, and makes recommendations to the Board.

The Audit Committee held two meetings to review the annual financial results
and the annual report for the year ended 28 February 2017 and the interim results
and the interim report for the six months ended 31 August 2017 respectively and
significant issues on the financial reporting and compliance procedures, internal
control and risk management systems, scope of work, re-appointment of external
auditors, the audit plan in 2018 and approval of audit fee quotation.
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Remuneration Committee
The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include the following:

. To make recommendations to the Board on the establishment of formal and
transparent procedures for developing the remuneration policy and structure
for all Directors and the senior management, which shall ensure that no
director or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration;

. To determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of
the executive Directors and the senior management with reference to the
performance of the individual and the Company as well as market practice
and conditions;

. To make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
the non-executive Directors by reference to the performance of the individual
and the Company as well as market practice and conditions; and

. To review and approve the compensation arrangements for the executive
Directors and the senior management in connection with any loss or
termination of their offices or appointments.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the Period to review and approve
the discretionary bonus to the executive Directors and the senior management,
the remuneration packages of the executive Directors and the senior management
and to review and recommend to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive
Directors.

The remuneration of the members of senior management of the Company by band
for the Period is set out below:

. RETTREAEBEAEZRFUGTEREZNEMN
EEBASNHNBR REBRES SRR E2E - A
REBEFRATAREA LR 2EREEAFOH
B

. BR2EER AL RARRRRE AR TISEN KIG
N EEETHERRE  EENTEERSREEA
BeFEER

. BRSEZENATRARBNRRARTIZEN RIS
N IERTEEMHENNESSREERE &

. W KA ERITEERSRERAEGBEMBEREN
RIS R IR EE R -

HEE B RN AIEANRT T —REH - bAas RIERTT
EELSREBABZIHBILLA  ATEERSREEAR
ZEHWEE  ARBEMAERSRLFRTERSN 22

2%
R °

KRR RMERABRARROFHNERNAT

Number of persons

Range of Remuneration i E AB
HK$3,000,000 to HK$3,999,999 75#£3,000,0007T 275 #3,999,9997T 1
HK$4,000,000 to HK$4,999,999 7 4,000,0007T 2% #4,999,9997T 0
HK$5,000,000 or HK$5,999,999 785,000,000 &8 #£5,999,9997T 2
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Nomination Committee
The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include the following:

. To review the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board;

. To make recommendation to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors;

. To identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members; and
. To assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee would take into
account various aspects set out in the Board diversity policy, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background and professional
experience.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships, the Nomination
Committee would consider the candidate’s character and integrity, qualifications,
experience, time commitment and independence (for appointment of independent
non-executive Director) and other relevant criteria necessary to complement the
corporate strategy and achieve Board diversity, where appropriate, before making
recommendation to the Board.

The Nomination Committee met once during the Period. At the meeting, the
Nomination Committee reviewed and assessed the structure, size, composition and
diversity of the Board, independence of independent non-executive Directors and
recommended on the re-election of Directors at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code provision
D.3.1of the CG Code.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices,
training and continuous professional development of Directors, the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance of the Model Code and Written Employee Guidelines, and the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS BEERZEEHENHERE

The attendance record of each Director at the Board and Board committee meetings &EBEERAHEAHLFEESNEZSZESSRUARAR
and the general meetings of the Company held during the Period is set out in the RAIFTARBRRE A SRR TRE

table below:

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HE SRR
Nomination Remuneration Audit Annual

Directors Board Committee Committee Committee  General Meeting

== BEEg REZEE FMESE EREEE REBFAE

Ms. YAU On Yee, Annie

B&EL L 4/4 /1 /1 - N

Ms. NG Yi Kum, Estella

s+ 4/4 - 1/1 - 1/1

Mr. Erwin Steve HUANG

mEKTE 4/4 - - - /1

Mr. CHUI Chi Yun, Robert

EECxE 4/4 - 1/1 2/2 N

Mr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael

BR¥& S 5o 4/4 /1 1/1 2/2 1/1

Mr. CHOW Chee Wai, Christopher

AaEEE 4/4 /1 /1 2/2 1/1
Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held a meeting with the GKEHRTHESEe SN THERARBBEANRSENITE
non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) without EHBAESENER THEENTES(BIEB Y IEHTES ) S

the presence of executive Director during the Period.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial statements
of the Company for the Period.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of annual and interim reports, inside information announcements and
other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other statutory and
regulatory requirements.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and information
as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed assessment of the
Company’s financial statements, which are put to the Board for approval.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report”.

The remuneration paid/payable to EY, the external auditor of the Company for the
Period was approximately HK$2,860,000 for audit services. No other assurance
services fee was paid/payable to EY. The remuneration paid/payable to EY was
approximately HK$210,000 for non-assurance services.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the risk management

and internal control systems of the Group and reviewing their effectiveness at

least annually through the Audit Committee. The executive management and IA
Department have been delegated the responsibility of identifying and evaluating the
risks faced by the Group and of designing, operating and monitoring an effective
internal control system that covers governance, compliance, risk management,
financial as well as operational control.
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The risk management process includes risk identification, risk evaluation, risk
management measures and risk control and review. The management is delegated
to identify, analyze, evaluate, respond, monitor and communicate risks associated
with any activity, function or process within its scope of responsibility and authority.
It is endeavoured to evaluate and compare the level of risk against predetermined
acceptable levels of risk. For risk control and monitoring, it involves making decisions
regarding which risks are acceptable and how to address those that are not. Any
material risk identified by the management or the IA Department will be reported to
the Audit Committee and the Board. The management and the IA Department assist
the Audit Committee and the Board to manage and control such risks by ensuring
an effective risk management system is maintained and operated within the Group.

The internal control system is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance on the effectiveness and efficiency of operations in achieving the
established corporate objectives, safeguarding the Group’s assets, providing
reliable financial reporting information and complying with the applicable laws
and regulations. Systems and procedures are also established to identify, measure,
manage and control, rather than eliminate, different risks arising from different
business and functional activities.

The |A Department plays an important role in enhancing internal control system

of the Group. It assists the Board in determining whether sound internal control
system is maintained and operated in compliance with the established processes
and standards by performing periodic audits over all major operations of the Group,
under a rotational cycle. An annual audit plan (comprising of annual audit focus

and audit frequencies) is prepared based on the department’s independent risk
assessment. Such work plan is discussed and agreed with the Audit Committee at
the beginning of each financial year. If any material risks or internal control defects
are found, the IA Department will discuss with respective department heads to have
actions agreed and subsequently followed up, in order to ensure that satisfactory
controls is maintained. Major internal audit findings will be submitted to the Audit
Committee for review and all improvement actions will be properly followed up by
management to ensure that they are implemented within a reasonable period of
time.

In addition, the Group has engaged an independent consulting firm to assist the
IA Department to provide professional internal audit services to the Group. Such
appointment aims to provide leadership to and enhance professionalism and
independence of the |IA Department.
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The Group complies with the requirements of SFO and the Listing Rules. The Group
will disclose inside information to the public as soon as reasonably practicable unless
the information falls within any of the “safe harbours” provisions and satisfies the
conditions under the SFO. Before the information is fully disclosed to the public, the
Group will ensure that the information is kept strictly confidential.

The Group has strictly prohibited unauthorized use of confidential or inside
information and established and implemented procedures for responding to
external enquiries about the Group’s affairs, so that only the executive Directors are
authorized to communicate with parties outside the Group.

Through the Audit Committee, the Board has conducted annual review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems for the
Period, covering all material financial, operational and compliance controls, and it has
considered the Group’s risk management and internal control system to be effective
and adequate. There were no suspected material irregularities found or significant
areas of concern identified during the Period that might affect shareholders of the
Company.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene a Special General Meeting (“SGM”)
Pursuant to bye-law 58 of the Company’s bye-laws and the Bermuda Companies
Act registered shareholders of the Company holding not less than one-tenth

(10%) of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company (“SGM Requisitionists”) can deposit a written request to
convene a SGM at the registered office of the Company (the “Registered Office”),
which is presently situated at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda. The SGM Requisitionists must state in their request(s) the purposes of the
SGM and such request(s) must be signed by all the SGM Requisitionists and may
consist of several documents in like form, each signed by one or more of the SGM
Requisitionists.
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The share registrars of the Company will verify the SGM Requisitionists’ particulars
in the SGM Requisitionists’ request. Promptly after confirmation from the share
registrars of the Company that the SGM Requisitionists’ request is in order, the
Company Secretary of the Company will arrange with the Board to convene a
SGM by serving sufficient notice to all the registered shareholders of the Company
in accordance with all the relevant statutory and regulatory requirements. On

the contrary, if the SGM Requisitionists’ request is verified not in order, the SGM
Requisitionists will be advised of the outcome and accordingly, a SGM will not be
convened as requested.

The SGM Requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one-half of the
total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a SGM if within twenty-
one (21) days of the deposit of the SGM Requisitionists’ request, the Board does not
proceed duly to convene a SGM provided that any SGM so convened is held within
three (3) months from the date of the original SGM Requisitionists’ request. A SGM
so convened by the SGM Requisitionists shall be convened in the same manner, as
nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are to be convened by the Company.

Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at a general meeting
Pursuant to Bermuda Companies Act, either any number of the registered
shareholders of the Company holding not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the paid-
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company (“Requisitionists”), or not less than 100 of such registered shareholders,
can request the Company in writing to (a) give to shareholders of the Company
entitled to receive notice of the next annual general meeting notice of any resolution
which may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and
(b) circulate to shareholders of the Company entitled to have notice of any general
meeting any statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter
referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that
meeting.

The requisition signed by all the Requisitionists may consist of several documents
in like form, each signed by one or more of the Requisitionists; and it must be
deposited at the Registered Office with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s relevant expenses, not less than six weeks before the meeting in case
of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution or not less than one week before
the meeting in the case of any other requisition. Provided that if an annual general

meeting is called for a date six weeks or less after the requisition has been deposited,

the requisition though not deposited within the time required shall be deemed to
have been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.

| 070

RABZBNECEEZERREFIARGEFARIZEHE
AP Z BREFRIRE 2BAER - —REEARA ZBNE
RERRREINAGEFAZLZHFTEIER  ARFZA
ARERZEREMEEEEEREERERNARR 228
FRRRBELRRBATRERTS LI ARRREIIAS
R HRRESIAG2FAZEFERERENTAREF
AABREABRFINASZ2FZAMEER - AN T RE
RARBRFRIAE °

HEFSLTENBERBIAGEFARREFET -+ —
CHAERNERBRBREHIAE  BIRREFIAE2HA(K
HPRREEEFALRREFL BN LZERALITETT
BRBERSHARE - R B2 E ARSI AREA
REREIAEEFAERREH 2 BHEF=C)EAR
BT o BRERRRIAG2FAKE AR Z RRFRIAGAE
BEABAARRERERZ A AEM -

RBRAEG LIR2RRZIERF

REAREQNTE  HAARBMEEMNAIRARBBIRA
EREZBRBANDR 02— 6% ZARFELDER
(T2FAD KPP0 ELEHBLKR - AIMARER
REMEN  (MAREET -ERRAFAGREZAR
AIRRE LA - AEFAERAT R ZA S EIER B R
RELBRIRFER - ROAAREZXIMNRRASE
E2 AR RRRERTEBBEIL000F 2Rl E - IAEHHRZ
RE LREZREBFMMETIMEE 2 EA °

HAAB2BARBZE2F A BE THERBRZXMHER - &
BAR—BINLEFARE AEFAETIR(HAR
SORAHPRARZ 258 0 KEBITANER (HAEMNEA
EF)ANGRITH A BEXEZMRER - LA RIA
T AN RIAERE R S 2 FUR - MR 2R VERERE
HEAzX - A EREKRBFERE  MZ2FEREERE
FREAER @ Ut s TEREREZAER -



Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the Board in
writing through the Company Secretary whose contact details are as follows:

The Company Secretary

Tse Sui Luen Jewellery (International) Limited
Ground Floor, Block B, Summit Building,

30 Man Yue Street, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Fax: (852) 2356 0215

Email: enquiry@tslj.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general meetings of the
Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company’s constitutional documents have been posted under the sub-section
“Constitutional Documents” of Corporate Governance section on the Company’s
website at ir.tsli.com. There are no changes in the constitutional documents of the
Company during the Period under review.
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To the shareholders of Tse Sui Luen Jewellery (International) Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Ernst & Young

22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tse Sui Luen Jewellery
(International) Limited (the "Company") and its subsidiaries (the "Group") set out on
pages 80 to 184, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 March 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes

in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the thirteen months
period from 1 March 2017 to 31 March 2018, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2018, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the thirteen
months ended 31 March 2018 in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
"Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description
of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report, including
in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance

of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.

Key audit matter
MAREEE

BAsETER
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
ZEREET PR OMELN

Recognition of deferred tax assets
SRR P IR B B

As at 31 March 2018, deferred tax assets regarding tax losses carried
forward recognised by the Group amounted to approximately HK$22
million. The tax impact of unrecognised tax losses at the applicable tax
rates at 31 March 2018 was approximately HK$22 million. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level
of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.
RZZ—NF=ZA=+—H  E5EEEREERIRATIBEEEY
BEFBEEEANABE T 88T XN /\F=A=+—0"
RERZBHEEBRZEEANENBEREN A T a8 -8
R THERZIELERIEEE 2 2880 RIRBARRERT AT 2 R & H
SR ARCRRFBGETEI 2 5RBE - MIEREREEE HEr -

The accounting policies and disclosure of the recognition of deferred tax
assets in respect of tax losses are included in notes 2.4, 3 and 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.
AERATEBENREHIEEENSHBERARBEEERNEARGEER
M4 - 3%27 ¢

Our audit procedures included reviewing the Group’s latest

profit forecast and approved strategic business plan to evaluate
management’s assessment that there will be sufficient taxable profits
in the future to utilise the tax losses recognised and that it is probable
that the deferred tax assets would be recoverable within the statutory
limited timeframe in the countries for which the tax losses have arisen.

BFNEHEF BAEN BERESNENTEE AR E 2 50K
EBETE - UAHEEIREEHE A R R 2N A (E I S AR R
RBEEE -
HARR AV RT SR 2 T -

WA BRI TR IR A A R AETRRB IR E £ MBI ZOEE

073 |



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B AR HREE(E)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

HMREIER

BASREITBIR(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEREE PR NAES K

Recognition of deferred tax liabilities regarding withholding tax on
unremitted earnings of subsidiaries established in Mainland China

BT B 72 118 23 5.2 2K 7 Bl FI B9 TR FI T 13 B BB AE IR B &

As at 31 March 2018, the Group recognised a deferred tax liability of
approximately HK$14 million for withholding taxes that would be

payable in respect of the unremitted earnings of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in Mainland China that are subject to withholding taxes.
Significant management judgement is required to determine the

amount and timing of the payment of dividends that will be distributed

in the foreseeable future. The estimation process is highly based on
assumptions, which are influenced by projected future market and
economic conditions.

RZZ—NF=ZA=+—H  BEEEEIARFERLZHMBARRS
AR B SHAEEHRIBEEEN BN AEE —TNEEI - &
TE A RASRIREFH AR B 2 88 R H S R EAE IR E HIE - hETaiE
RIEERKRIISNE B GG 2 BRERaEFE -

The accounting policies and disclosures of the recognition of deferred
tax liabilities are included in notes 2.4 and 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.
AERRELEHIEE BN GBI R B EERE N GE MRS
2427 °
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Our audit procedures included evaluating the management’s
assumptions and estimates in relation to the likelihood of the
Group’s operations in Mainland China remitting their earnings in the
foreseeable future, which included the ability of the Company to
generate sufficient cash flows for dividend distribution and other
financing needs of the Group, based on the latest approved strategic
business plan. We also assessed the historical accuracy of the
management’s assumptions used.

BANEFEF R EEE IR ERES e 2 R ERHE - R
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

MREIER

BREITEIRE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEREF T RN

Net realisable value of Inventories
7 A 2B FE

As at 31 March 2018, the Group recorded inventories of HK$1,712 million
before provision for impairment of HK$70 million. The write-down of
inventories to net realisable value is estimated by management through

the application of judgement and the use of highly subjective assumptions.

During the thirteen months ended 31 March 2018, a net additional
provision for impairment of inventories of HK$21 million was debited to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss based on management’s
assessment.

RZZB-N\F=ZA=+—H  BEENGFERBETLE—T=88
TL o AETATEBENAY LTET - ERESBAENRE THER
RIGFTMETFEEAZRFE - REE-T— \F=A=+—HIET+=
&R - RIEEEEELNGE - StAGEERRANTFERELZINFE
AeEAE T B8

The accounting policies and disclosures for the impairment provision on
inventories are included in notes 2.4, 3 and 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.
BEATERENGECRARBEEHE NG M ERENT24 -
3T e

Our audit procedures included the assessment of controls over
identifying and valuing obsolete, damaged, slow-moving, excess
and other inventory items whose costs may not be fully recoverable;
evaluating the methodologies, inputs and assumptions used by the
Group in calculating the impairments; and assessing the adequacy of
the impairments recorded by reviewing subsequent sales after the
year end and a comparison with historical sales records.

BPINEEF BEEER BRI MEERE - 8% - B - BF
AR B R R A BN A FaEmES] - FHE BEREFERE
R ATRETE - BUBMIRER ¢ B ERIHE R EFE £ IHE L8 ED
LB RFEHEE ABRREZ R HAME -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B AR HREE(E)

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary

to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do
so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

1 076
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Our report
is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that

an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

BBE R E A B RRAENERE

BB RUGEMBERREBRD M EARNEFR
R MG BN EAHERERESAIZRE - WHABFERM
BRNBREARE - RFERBEE-NAN—FRQEEE0
GEHZRKEMFEHRE  BRILUIN ARETEEMMA
B o BT S REERENATAEMEMA TR L3k
EEMEE -

SERBEEKFHRE - BTREFRR(EBETEL)D
ETORA - EE - EAHERBATARERER - SRR
HLAT LA BB BREF SR EAER SR - MRS B IEH UM B UEA
RAJRER IR A MR A E KBRS MTE MR ML R
OERTE - RGBSR AT AR E K ©

ERBEBFETEADETEANBRES  RFERTEX
HIET - RIT T FEIERAEE - BT
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BARSERBAMELR - ReT RATEEFAREE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B AR HREE(E)

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and eventsin a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is
Chau Suet Fung, Dilys.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

21 June 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS

e = N/

— = PN
2Ny = /E\JIEL/\

Thirteen months ended 31 March 2018 Thirteen months ended Year ended
HZE2018F3A3H I +=1EA 31March 2018 28 February 2017
B Z2018F3A31H HZE2017%2H28H
Notes IE+=1@A LEFE
Bt % HK$’0008 ¥ F T HK$'0007 ¥ F 7T
Turnover B 5 4,137,179 3,410,923
Cost of sales HEKA (2,505,673) (1,884,203)
Gross profit EF 1,631,506 1,526,720
Other income and gains/(losses), net  E AU A Uz (E518) - T8 6 19,944 (399)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHE (1,339,506) (1,243,051
Administrative expenses T E A (177,746) (167,100)
PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS ReEBF 134,198 116,170
Finance costs A5 5 A 8 (44,348) (64,288)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX R AT 2 R 7 89,850 51,882
Income tax expense Fi58fi & A 11 (40,342) (28,678)
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD/YEAR A HEERA 49,508 23,204
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: AL BFIER G :
Owners of the Company FiN/NETE ¥ =DN 49,419 23,177
Non-controlling interests VTR AR R 2 89 27
49,508 23,204
EARNINGS PER SHARE ARATREEANEEERER
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
OF THE COMPANY
Basic and diluted BEARREE 13 20.0 HK cents &L 9.4 HK cents ;& 1llia
A Adjusted for the bonus issue effected in the current period IRIBAT AR 31T TE A BRI RO 2 2B R
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

%

Thirteen months ended 31 March 2018
H=E2018F3 4318 1+ =MEA

e 2ElE

x~

Thirteen months ended
31 March 2018

Year ended
28 February 2017

B £2018%F3A31H HZE2017F2H28H
Note IE+=@EA IHFE
hEs HK$’0005&% T T HK$' 00088 F T
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD/YEAR AHRE ZEERF 49,508 23,204
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Hit 2wl (EE)
INCOME/(LOSS)
Other comprehensive incomenotto BERAREEF I/ EZEREK
be reclassified to profit or loss in ZHMEEmKEEE -
subsequent years:
Remeasurement gain on defined AERAFTEINEHWA
benefit plan 26 1,570 5,656
Income tax effect B2 (259) (933)
Net other comprehensive income HEAETHREEHFI>EEBRR
not to be reclassified to profit ZHMEmRESEE
or loss in subsequent years 1,31 4,723
Other comprehensive income/(loss) HEATREEHFIEZEBRE
to be reclassified to profit or loss ZHMEEkE S (EE)
in subsequent years:
Exchange differences on BB GINERS 2 [EH =58
translation of foreign operations 137,006 (68,742)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ ZAHiR "ZEEHME2EIE
(LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD/YEAR, (E518) » HIBRTEE
NET OF TAX 138,317 (64,019)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ iR, ‘ZEE2EKE
(LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD/YEAR (8 &% 187,825 (40,815)
Attributable to: FEE2E KA :
Owners of the Company FiN/NETE ¥ =N 187,741 (40,797)
Non-controlling interests IR AR R i 2 84 (18)
187,825 (40,815)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

RA MR

At 31 March 2018 At 31 March At 28 February
201853 A31H 2018 2017
20185 20174
Notes 3A31H 2H28H
ks HK$’00038 ¥ F 7T HK$' 000 ¥+ 7T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BENEE 14 140,117 141178
Intangible assets B|LEE 15 99 99
Other asset HEthEE 16 500 500
Prepayments and deposits B RZE 19 38,398 52,655
Deferred tax assets RERIBE = 27 57,784 55,214
236,898 249,646
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories FE 17 1,641,873 1,478,679
Trade receivables FEURER R 18 189,218 235,709
Prepayments, deposits and other EAR - ke REM
receivables FEUR 19 154,125 163,098
Tax recoverable B EErE 11,163 1,978
Time deposits TEHITE R 20 52,500 166,801
Cash and cash equivalents ReMRSZEEY 20 268,073 323,657
2,316,952 2,379,922
CURRENT LIABILITIES RERE
Trade payables FERTBRR 21 (274,293) (316,392)
Other payables and accruals HEM AR ERER 22 (291,739) (259,317)
Gold loans =oHE 23 - (43,523)
Interest-bearing bank and other AT ERIT R EAMD
borrowings BX 24 (376,563) (269,602)
Finance lease payables FERNRERE 25 (643) -
Tax payable FERIT1E (16,579) (22,448)
(959,817) (911,282)
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 1,357,135 1,468,640
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRBES
LIABILITIES 1,594,033 1,718,286
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At 31 March 2018 At 31 March At 28 February
M2018F3 A31H 2018 2017
A2018F 20174
Notes 3A31H 2H28H
B3 HK$’00038 % F 5T HK$ 0007 ¥ F 7T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Other payables and accruals Hib AR R ER &R 22 (4,720) (6,595)
Interest-bearing bank and other FTEIRTT R EAtL
borrowings B% 24 (408,972) (709,775)
Finance lease payables FERmERE 25 (680) -
Employee benefit obligations EERAEL 26 (9,766) (1,240)
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFRIABE 27 (17,081) (16,394)
(441,219) (744,004)
NET ASSETS EEFE 1,152,814 974,282
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to owners ARATEE AELER
of the Company
Issued capital BEITARAR 28 (61,709) (52,584)
Reserves G 30 (1,091,125) (921,841
(1,152,834) (974,425)
Non-controlling interests EERBRRER 20 143
TOTAL EQUITY R (1,152,814) (974,282)

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 21 June 2018.

EESMN201846 A21B A& AN A T3 o

Yau On Yee, Annie Bl %
Ng Yi Kum, Estella (R %

Directors &%

NN NN
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

GAMNEDE

Thirteen months ended 31 March 2018

HE08F3A3IALT=(EA Attributable to owners of the Company
ARAEE AR
Equity
Share Capital  component Proposed Non-
Issued Share option andother  of convertible Retained final controlling Total
Notes capital premium reserve reserves honds profits dividend Total interests equity
£Ef Tin HikiE BRR  AakEER R8 B AR b3a)

iE: e B BE O ORMEE zEm BH RERE Ak REER 2%
HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSOOD  HKSO000  HKSO0O  HKSOOD  HK$O00  HKSOOO  HKSO00
BETT  B%TT BMTR  BETh B%Tn BMTn BETh A%t BETR BETx

(note 28) (note 38 (note 38 (note 38 (note12)
@) (©iv) (o))
(Wie) (W3 (WE3s (W3S (HzE12)
O0) (i) ©)
At1March 2016 H06E3 AR 52584 123,365 17169 174,453 8600 649,163 5469 1030803 (125 1030678
Profit for the year HEERF - - - - - BI77 - BT 27 23004
Other comprehensive loss for the year:  ZEERHZEES :
Exchange differences on transiation ~ BEEIER
of foreign operations EiEH - - - (68697) - - - (68,697) (45) (68742)
Remeasurement gain on defined REBEREEY
benefit plan, net of tax BRI ABTE - - - - - 4753 - 4703 - 4703
Total comprehensive loss for theyear  ZEE2ABEES - - - (68697) - 27900 - (40,797) (18) (40815)
Equity-settled share option HREEEY
arrangement BlRELS 2 - - (1450) - - - - (1450) - (1450)
Early redemption of convertible bonds 2B RIMARES - - - - (8600) 3093 - (307) - (5507)
Dividends paid BElkE - - - - - (3155 (5.469) (8624) - (8624)
Proposed final dividend (2016/17) BRRERE (2016/7) 17 - - - - - (7888) 7888 - - N
At 28 February 2017 R07E2A28H 52584 123,365* 15,719 105,756 - 669,115* 7.888° 974,425 (143) 974,282
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Thirteen months ended 31 March 2018

HZ0BEIAIRIT=(ER Attributable to owners of the Company
AATREAEL
Equity
Share Capital  component Non-
Issued Share option  and other of convertible Retained  Proposed controlling Total
Notes capital premium reserve reserves bonds profits dividend Total interests equity
gEf it EhRE ERL  WRRES RE 3 FER B

i Bk &R BE AMBE  2EEDH EAl ke &% RiEE ]
HKS000  HK§000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKY000  HKSO00  HKS'000  HK§000  HKS'000  HK$'000
BRTR  ERTR EWTn ERTR ERTR BWTx ERTR ERTR ERTR ERTR

(note 28) (note 38 (note 38 (note 38 (note 12)
(GI0) (e)iv)) (c)(ii))
(Hizrae) (His38 (Hz38 (Hf3¥38 (Kfh2)
() (©)(iv)) (o))

At1March 2017 ROTEIRIR 52,584 123,365 15,719 105,756 - 669,113 7,888 974,425 (143) 974,282
Profit for the period REHRT - - - - - 49,419 - 49419 89 49,508
Other comprehensive income FEREHZENA -

for the period:

Exchange differences on translation A E BN K

of foreign operations ] - - - 137,01 - - - 137,01 5) 137,006
Remeasurement gain on defined EHE
benefit plan, net of tax EEEE  ARHE = > c = = 131 o 131 - 131

Total comprehensive income AHRRENNEE

for the period - - - 137,011 - 50,730 - 187,741 84 187,825
Capital contribution from MBAFHARER

non-contralling shareholders it

of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - 39 39
Issuance of new shares under bonus  RIEALIRE TR TEVER

issue 28 8,764 (8,764) - - - - - - - -
Scrip shares re 2016/17 final dividend ~ 2016/T AR E R 2k 8 203 2,045 - - - - (2,248) - - -
Serip shares re 2017/18 interim 2017/8E— R HRE

dividend RER 28 158 1,320 - - - (1,478) - - - -
Dividends paid BRKEE - - - o o (3,692) (5,640) (9,332) - (9,332)
Second interim dividend (2017/18) 207/188 Z e B 8. 17 - - - - - (18,019) 18,019 - - -
At 31 March 2018 H0BEIA3IE 61,709 117,966* 15,719* 242,167 - 696,654* 18,019* 1,152,834 (20) 1,152,814

N These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$1,091,125,000 (28 * HWEREEBEARGATBERRRZGE A KB LYK
February 2017: HK$921,841,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position. 1,091,125,0007T (20164F: &#921,841,0007T) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

meETMER

Thirteen months ended 31 March 2018 Thirteen months ended Year ended
HZE2018F3/831H LT = A 31March 2018 28 February 2017
HZE20185F3831H EHZE2017%2A28H
Notes IE+=@A IEFE
gz HK$’000& % T 7t HK$'000/8 8 F T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REERCBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax B Al 2 A 89,850 51,882
Adjustments for: FE
Finance costs 7% 8 A 8 44,348 64,288
Interest income F 2 U A 6 (3,393) (5,732)
Loss on disposal of items of BEYE - B REE
property, plant and equipment 1 H 518 7 68 903
Depreciation e 7 61,947 59,642
Reversal of equity-settled share B ARG E B EER
option expense 7 - (1,450)
Movements in employee benefit BIfRMNEKE
obligations 97 (967)
Provision/(reversal of provision) for ~ ##,(BERE)FEE
impairment of inventories AR A 7 21,219 (3,629)
Fair value (gain)/loss on gold EERIEATEBER EAE
loans designated as at fair value ZESHENAFEE
through profit or loss F(E),EiE (162) 10,372
Fair value loss on derivative financial T4 &g T AN QA FEBE
instruments FEiE 7 - 806
Gain on early redemption of RPER TR ES
convertible bonds Wk 6 - (3,000)
213,974 173115
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEEEMm,md (81,159) 79,528
Decrease in trade receivables FEUR BR S0 72,572 14,467
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments,  FERTER - &4 K EAD
deposits and other receivables FEMFRR A (38 hn) 34,100 (72,526)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables JEBEFR ORi2>), /180 (50,146) 51,707
Increase in other payables and EM AR ERT &R
accruals N 5,107 24,732
Decrease in derivative financial PESRITAEAE
liabilities e = (4,454)
Cash flows generated from operations £ & ¥fEEL NI S 194,448 266,569
Hong Kong profits tax paid EXNEBFEH (5,511) (2,665)
Taxes paid other than Hong Kong B EE AN EFIE (40,711) (36,756)
Net cash flows from operating AR EE 2
activities REREFE 148,226 22748
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Thirteen months ended 31 March 2018
HZE2018F3/831HIE+=EA

Thirteen months ended
31March 2018

Year ended
28 February 2017

EZ=2018F3H31H HZE2017%2A828H
Notes IE+=@A IEFE
HiEE HK$’00038 % T 7t HK$' 0007 T 7T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETEZHERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received BB 3,393 5,732
Decrease in time deposits FEERRL 132,879 72,288
Purchases of items of property, plant BB - 22 LREEE
and equipment 14 (55,493) (63,217)
Proceeds from disposal of items of BEWE EBRNEREIER
property, plant and equipment PSR 130 557
Net cash flows from investing WEEBEE
activities BemEFR 80,909 15,360
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING BMETHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from new trade finance %ﬁigféf%mﬁﬁﬁﬁ{?«Alﬁ 30,000 38,364
Repayment of trade finance BiRE p,‘ﬂl (38,364) (266,876)
Proceeds from new bank loans i fﬁﬁ S FT1SKIR = 644,197
Repayment of bank loans =¥ (181,365) (242,510)
Repayment of gold loans (47,659) (57,961)
Proceeds from new other loans SHIH - 200,000
Repayment of other loans EHMES ! (4,113) (4,723)
Redemption of convertible bonds BB REEER = (374,604)
Capital element of finance lease REHEENFH AL IS
payments (408) (1,720)
Interest paid E1ﬁl (44,290) (41,210)
Dividends paid EATAR (9,332) (8,624)
Interest element of finance lease mﬁ@ﬁ?ﬁ‘fﬁ REF S
payments (58) (32)
Capital contribution from non- B AR IEIERR R L E
controlling shareholders of a
subsidiary 39 -
Net cash flows used in financing ME BB R REFE
activities (295,550) (115,699)
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN R REALZEYW=ZORD), M
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FREE (66,415) 126,809
Cash and cash equivalents at WE, FNZEE MRS EEY
beginning of the period/year - B 323,657 202,549
Effect of foreign exchange rate INESTE RSB E - RE
changes, net 10,831 (5,701
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT Rl EXZBERBESZEY
END OF THE PERIOD/YEAR 268,073 323,657
ANALYSIS OF BALANCESOF CASH H&RREEENEFIT
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents RERBLEED 20 268,073 323,657
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NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. REAREEEHR
Tse Sui Luen Jewellery (International) Limited (the “Company”) is a limited HEEBHRE(EBR)ERAT(ARAT ) TRERE
liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the EFMAZzBERETAR - KRR ZEMPE
Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, & fiZ 7 Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company is located at Ground HM 1, Bermuda °» " AR Z EE W BE BB /B NLEEL
Floor, Block B, Summit Building, 30 Man Yue Street, Hunghom, Kowloon, B RAAI05F ELE T i K= TBEE ©
Hong Kong.
The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture, sale and marketing AEBEzFEEKARE  HE  HEKREERKIE
of jewellery products and the provision of service. AR ©
In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding company is Partner EERE  REBE LB S K/ Partner Logistics
Logistics Limited, which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI"), Limited BEBIZER AR HEIZERA B AN EBR K
and the ultimate holding company is Blink Technology Limited, which is BB A2 BIBlink Technology Limited @ M S 4L 2
incorporated in the BVI, and the ultimate controlling party is Mr. Tse Tat Fung, & ALt AHEIR AL -

Tommy (“Mr. Tommy Tse”).

Information about subsidiaries BN aZ &
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: KAGIKIB AR ZFBWOT
Place of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/
registration and registered share  Percentage of equity attributable
Name business capital to the Company Principal activities
R,/ K BRETLBERE
=g EESiE Bl AARERERD L TEER
Direct Indirect
HiE B
TSL Investment (B.V.1.) Limited® BVI HK$1,000 100 - Investment holding
REBRZES 7B #1,0007T REER
Ankenne Jewelry Co. Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Jewellery trading
BREREERAA BE BT HKEg
Beijing Qi Li Yun Jewellery Company The People’s Republic Renminbi (“RMB”) - 100 Jewellery retailing
Limiteg#**@ of China ("PRC") 20,000,000 KETE
ERENERE AR A" AR ARE AR#20,000,0007C
(TRE])
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

NEREBER(E)
B ARz &R (E)

AARIMB AR ZFEBOT : (4)

Place of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/
registration and registered share  Percentage of equity attributable
Name business capital to the Company Principal activities
R,/ Mk BRTLERE
g B AR A AT G RER 2L TEER
Direct Indirect
HiE B
Beijing Qi Li Yun Trading Company PRC RMB3,000,000 N 100 Jewellery retailing
Limited#**@ a2 AR#3,000,00070 KETE
I REFEHERR AR
Beijing Tse Sui Luen Jewellery Company PRC United States - 100 Jewellery manufacturing and
Limited®@ (“BTSL") h dollars (“US$”) trading
I RIRBHREER AR 2,000,000 KERERES
2,000,000 ¢
Concepts Management (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Trademarks holding and
BISER (BB ARAF &8 BT investment in trademarks
BERERRERE
Excellent Ford Development Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Jewellery trading
("EF”) B 7 #£10,0007T KEES
REEERERAR([RHERE])
Guangzhou Hong Yun Jewellery PRC RMB7,800,000 - 100 Jewellery retailing
Company Limited#*@ s AR #7.800,0007T KEZTE
ENSEREARAR
Guangzhou Tai Yi Trading Company PRC HK$8,000,000 - 100 Jewellery trading
Limited#@ H 75#8,000,0007T KEES

EMFEBEERAR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FA TS ERR I RE (AR)

1.

1090

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

Issued ordinary/
registered share

1L RAAREEERGE)

WEAEZER @)

AARIMB AR ZFBMOT - (4)

Percentage of equity attributable

Name business capital to the Company Principal activities
DAV 3ii)e BRTLBERE
g B E ERES ARG RER 2L FEXK
Direct Indirect
HiE i
Guangzhou Xi Yun Jewellery Company  PRC RMB2,000,000 - 100 Jewellery retailing
Limited?***e HE AER#2,000,0007T KETE
BINEEHREBR AR
Guangzhou Xi Yun Trading Company PRC RMB3,000,000 - 100 Jewellery retailing and
Limited#*@ FE AER#3000,0007T franchising
EMEESHEER AR KETERMBEES
Guangzhou Xiang Yun Jewellery PRC RMB3,000,000 - 100 Jewellery trading
Company Limited*e e AR#3,000,0007T GEES
BMNEEHREER AR
Impromptus Asia Pacific Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 = 100 Goldsmith and jewellery trading
BH 75#10,0007T TeRHKEES
Infinite Assets Corp® BVI HK$277,254 - 100 Investment holding
REBRZES 862772547 BEER
Liberty Mark Limited® BVI US$1 - 100 Investment holding
RERLEE E REER
Richfun Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
DEPXERNRA BE T BEER



1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1. RARREEER(E)

B ARz &R (E)
AAFIMBAR ZEHBMT : (4)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

Place of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/
registration and registered share  Percentage of equity attributable
Name business capital to the Company Principal activities
R,/ Mk BRTLERE
g B AR A AT G RER 2L TEER
Direct Indirect
HiE B
Shanghai Fu Yun Jewellery Company PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100 Jewellery retailing
Limited#*@ # AR #1,000,00070 RETE
FEREKRBER QA
Shanghai Fu Yun Trading Company PRC RMB3,000,000 - 100 Jewellery retailing
Limited#*@ H AR#3,000,0007T KETE
LEREMEER QA
Shenzhen Jingyan Jewellery Company ~ PRC HK$8,000,000 - 100 Manufacturing and distribution
Limited#*@ # 718,000,0007T of jewellery
RIHEARE AR AR HRERERD H
Shenzhen Qianhai Tse Sui Luen Trading  PRC RMB100,000 N 100 Jewellery trading
Company Limited#**e@ H AR #100,0007¢ KEZH
RYANEHIRBE H AR AR
Shenzhen Qianhai Tse Sui Luen Logistic  PRC RMB100,000 - 100 Logistic and supply chain
Company Limited®*@ # AR #100,0007T management
RIAE IR AR AR e VI R FESRE 12
Tse Sui Luen Jewellery Company Hong Kong HK$46,982,090 - 100 Jewellery trading and retailing
Limited (“TSLJ")" B 75 #646,982,09070 GKEEHLTE

HHBAE AR AR (HRBIKE )™
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FA TS ERR I RE (AR)

1.

1092

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

1L RAAREEERGE)

WEAEZER @)
AAFIMBAR ZEHBMT - (4)

Place of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/
registration and registered share  Percentage of equity attributable
Name business capital to the Company Principal activities
DAV 3ii)e BRTLBERE
g B E ERES KAATFMERER DL FEXK
Direct Indirect
HiE i
Tse Sui Luen (Guangzhou) Jewellery PRC HK$21,000,000 - 100 Manufacturing, distribution of
Company Limited (“TSLGZ”) #*@ hE 75#£21,000,0007T jewellery, jewellery trading
B (BN KB ER A ) ([ and franchising
BN )e KERE - D KEEHR
e
Tse Sui Luen Investment (China) BVI US$6,863 - 100 Investment holding
Limited® RERLEE 6,863% 7T REER
B E (PR AR AR
Tse Sui Luen Jewellery Retailing Malaysia Malaysian Ringgits - 100 Jewellery retailing
Sdn. Bhd.® BRAD 3,300,000 KETE
SRALSE
3,300,0007T
Tse Sui Luen (Shenzhen) Jewellery PRC HK$12,500,000 - 100 Manufacturing and distribution
Company Limited#*@ H 75#12,500,0007T of jewellery
B ORI KB AR AR HRERER D H
Tse Sui Luen (Shenzhen) Trading PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100 Jewellery trading
Limited?***e H AR#1,00,0007C KEES
g ORI E AR AR
TSL Management Services Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Management and administrative
HInHERERE AR AR B8 2T services

B RATHRT



1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1. RARREEER(E)

B ARz &R (E)
AAFIMBAR ZEHBMT : (4)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

Place of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/
registration and registered share  Percentage of equity attributable
Name business capital to the Company Principal activities
R,/ Mk BRTLERE
g B AR A AT G RER 2L TEER
Direct Indirect
HiE B
TSL Jewellery (Export) Company Hong Kong HK$19,824,775 - 100 Jewellery trading and retailing
Limited Bk 7510,824,7757T KEESHRTE
HIMBRE (L) ARAR
TSL Jewellery (Macau) Limited® Macau Macau Pataca - 100 Jewellery retailing
TSLERE CRFS) AR AR R ("MOP") 100,000 LKETE
SEF9#6100,0007T
TSL Jewellery Retailing (Macau) Macau MOP100,000 - 100 Jewellery retailing
Limited R SRF9#100,0007T KEZE
TSLAEZECRM) BER AR
TSL Jewellery Commercial (Macau) Macau MOP100,000 - 100 Jewellery retailing
Limited” R SRFI#100,0007T KETE
TSLARERECRP) AR AR
TSL Jewellery (H.K.) Co. Limited Hong Kong HK$42,000,390 - 100 Jewellery retailing
HIMEAE (B8 AR AR Bt #5142,000,3907C KETE
TSL Manufacturing and Distribution Hong Kong HK$67,000,000 - 100 Investment holding,
Limited (“TSL M&D”) BB 7#67,000,0007T procurement, manufacturing

B ELE R D HER DR ([HHRE
SUER ]

and distribution of jewellery
BEER - R 2ER
DIHAKE

093 |



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FA TS ERR I RE (AR)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

1L RAAREEERGE)

WEAEZER @)

AARIMB AR ZFBMOT - (4)

Place of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/
registration and registered share  Percentage of equity attributable
Name business capital to the Company Principal activities
DAV 3ii)e BRTLERE
28 B By KAATFMERER DL FEXK
Direct Indirect
HiE i
TSL Properties Management Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 = 100 Property holding and
MR EEEERAF B8 75#£1,0007T investrment
BEMERKAE
TSLJ Kabushiki Kaisha (“TSLIKK”)***@  Japan Japanese Yen - 96.5 Jewellery retailing and
TSLIRA LA ([TSLIKK )@ SR 75,000,000 wholesales
75,000,000 7T RETERIE
# Unofficial translation “ JEERFERDETT
# In addition to the ordinary shares, the issued deferred share capital of TSLJ is # BRI mARIN - SRR E IR AR A
HK$36,574,000 36,574,0007T
. Registered under the laws of the PRC as foreign enterprise . RIBEFRBEREFMAINEDE
- Registered under the laws of the PRC as limited liability company - REFEEEFMAERET AR
e Registered under the laws of Japan as limited liability company e RIEBAEEIMAERETAR
e Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst & @ A BWIER BB LK SR AN BT E 2ok E

Young global network

Incorporated during the Period

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion
of the directors, principally affected the results for the Period or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of

excessive length.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants ("HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for gold loans which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Change of financial year end date

Pursuant to a resolution of the Board dated 23 May 2017, the Company’s
financial year end date has been changed from 28 February (or 29 February
in a leap year) to 31 March commencing from the financial year of 2017/18 in
order to coincide the financial reporting cycle of the Group with the natural
retail cycle in the industry and provide a more meaningful and comparable
basis for shareholders and investors to understand and evaluate the Group’s
financial results. Accordingly, the accompanying consolidated financial
statements for the current financial period cover a period of thirteen months
from 1 March 2017 to 31 March 2018. The comparative figures presented for
the audited consolidated statement of profit or loss, audited consolidated
statement of comprehensive income and related notes cover the audited
figures of the financial year from 1 March 2016 to 28 February 2017, which may
not be comparable with the amounts shown for the current period.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the
thirteen months ended 31 March 2018. A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).
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FA TS ERR I RE (AR)
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1096

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2.1
Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the

voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts

and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee,

including:

(a)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such
control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests,
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
All'intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

fm BLELYE (1)

REEEm)

EARATL REEXEDEEFRELRASHIRERE
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2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2.1

Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets
(including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount
of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (i) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or
retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES 22

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first time for the
current period’s financial statements.

Disclosure Initiative

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: Clarification of the
Scope of HKFRS 12

Amendments to HKAS 7

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKFRS 12 included in Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

The adoption of the above revised HKFRSs has had no significant financial
effect on these financial statements and there have been no significant
changes to the accounting policies applied in these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FA TS ERR I RE (AR)

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2.3
REPORTING STANDARDS

ERMERER BB E R

REE B RRARERERRAATERMERERZ
#a] MRIE AT BB M S XER

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that have
been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

1098

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9
Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 15
Amendments to HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 19
Amendments to HKAS 28
Amendments to HKAS 40
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Annual Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle
Annual Improvements
2015-2017 Cycle

I N

1January 2019

Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts'

Financial Instruments'

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation’

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Revenue from Contracts with Customers'

Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers'

Leases?

Insurance Contracts®

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement*

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures®

Transfers of Investment Property!

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’

Amendments to HKFRS 1and HKAS 28'

Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 and HKAS 232

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
Apply to plan amendments, curtailments or settlements that occur on or after
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the impact of these new
and revised HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state whether these new
and revised HKFRSs would have a material impact on its results of operations
or financial position.

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable
to the Group is described below:

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version of HKFRS 9, bringing
together all phases of the financial instruments project to replace HKAS

39 and all previous versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement, impairment and hedge
accounting. The Group will adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 April 2018. The Group

will not restate comparative information and will recognise any transition
adjustments against the opening balance of equity at 1 April 2018. The Group
is currently assessing the impact of the standard upon adoption and expects
that the adoption of HKFRS 9 will have an impact on the classification and
measurement of the Group’s financial assets.

HKFRS 15, issued in July 2014, establishes a new five-step model to account
for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue
is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a
customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured approach for
measuring and recognising revenue. The standard also introduces extensive
qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements, including disaggregation
of total revenue, information about performance obligations, changes in
contract asset and liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The standard will supersede all current revenue
recognition requirements under HKFRSs. Either a full retrospective application
or a modified retrospective adoption is required on the initial application of
the standard. In June 2016, the HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 15 to
address the implementation issues on identifying performance obligations,
application guidance on principal versus agent and licences of intellectual
property, and transition. The amendments are also intended to help ensure a
more consistent application when entities adopt HKFRS 15 and decrease the
cost and complexity of applying the standard. The Group plans to adopt the
transitional provision in HKFRS 15 to recognise the cumulative effect of initial
adoption as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2.3

1100

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

at 1 April 2018. In addition, the Group plans to apply the new requirements
only to contracts that are not completed before 1 April 2018. The Group
expects that the transitional adjustment to be made on 1 April 2018 upon
initial adoption of HKFRS 15 may not be material. The Group has assessed the
impact of this standard and expects that the standard will not have significant
impact, when applied, on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

HKFRS 16, issued in May 2016, replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15
Operating Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance
of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the
principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases and requires lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for most leases.
The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of low-
value assets and short-term leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a
lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability)
and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the
lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses
unless the right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment property in
HKAS 40, or relates to a class of property, plant and equipment to which the
revaluation model is applied. The lease liability is subsequently increased to
reflect the interest on the lease liability and reduced for the lease payments.
Lessees will be required to separately recognise the interest expense on

the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.
Lessees will also be required to remeasure the lease liability upon the
occurrence of certain events, such as change in the lease term and change

in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to
determine those payments. Lessees will generally recognise the amount of
the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use
asset. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from the
accounting under HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the
same classification principle as in HKAS 17 and distinguish between operating
leases and finance leases. HKFRS 16 requires lessees and lessors to make
more extensive disclosures than under HKAS 17. Lessees can choose to apply
the standard using either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective
approach. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 16 from 1 April 2019 and
certain portions of the operating lease commitments will be required to be
recognised as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities upon adoption of HKFRS
16. The Group will perform a more detailed analysis upon the adoption of
HKFRS 16.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22, issued in June 2017, provides guidance on how to determine
the date of the transaction when applying HKAS 21 to the situation where

an entity receives or pays advance consideration in a foreign currency and
recognises a non-monetary asset or liability. The interpretation clarifies that
the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate
to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of
it) is the date on which an entity initially recognises the non-monetary asset
(such as a prepayment) or non-monetary liability (such as deferred income)
arising from the payment or receipt of the advance consideration. If there

are multiple payments or receipts in advance of recognising the related item,
the entity must determine the transaction date for each payment or receipt
of the advance consideration. Entities may apply the interpretation on a full
retrospective basis or on a prospective basis, either from the beginning of

the reporting period in which the entity first applies the interpretation or the
beginning of the prior reporting period presented as comparative information
in the financial statements of the reporting period in which the entity first
applies the interpretation. The Group expects to adopt the interpretation
prospectively from 1 April 2018. The interpretation is not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23, issued in July 2017, addresses the accounting for income
taxes (current and deferred) when tax treatments involve uncertainty

that affects the application of HKAS 12 (often referred to as “uncertain tax
positions”). The interpretation does not apply to taxes or levies outside

the scope of HKAS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating
to interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments. The
interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether an entity considers uncertain
tax treatments separately; (ii) the assumptions an entity makes about the
examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities; (iii) how an entity
determines taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused tax losses, unused
tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how an entity considers changes in facts
and circumstances. The interpretation is to be applied retrospectively, either
fully retrospectively without the use of hindsight or retrospectively with

the cumulative effect of application as an adjustment to the opening equity
at the date of initial application, without the restatement of comparative
information. The Group expects to adopt the interpretation from 1 April 2019.
The interpretation is not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4
Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The
consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
For each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the
non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event

of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and
liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation in accordance
with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions
as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held equity
interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an
asset or liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of
the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-controlling
interests and any fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests in
the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
If the sum of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of
the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in
profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 March. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated

to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to
those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the goodwill
relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is disposed
of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the
carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on
the relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-
generating unit retained.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2.4
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its gold loans at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either
in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming
that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would
use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use
of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the
financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Levell —  based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 —  based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 —  based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level

input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2.4
Fair value measurement (continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on

a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred

between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole)

at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing
for an asset is required (other than inventories, deferred tax assets and
financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for

an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to
the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether
there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses may

no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss
of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment
loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)  thepartyis a person or a close member of that person’s family and that
person

() has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or
of a parent of the Group;

or
(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:
0] the entity and the Group are members of the same group;
(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or
of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);
(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third
party;

(iv)  oneentity is ajoint venture of a third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity;

(v)  theentity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  theentity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified
in (a);
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)
(b)  (continued)

(vii) aperson identified in (a@)(i) has significant influence over the
entity orisa of the key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,

provides key management personnel services to the Group or to

the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been
put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to
the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of
each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as
follows:

Land and buildings 55 years
Plant and machinery 3to 7 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 1to 10 years
Motor vehicles 41010 years
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2.4
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful

lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts

and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at

each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year the asset

is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at
cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is the
fair value at the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually
either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets
are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite

life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life assessment
continues to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment
from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Trademarks with indefinite useful lives are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets to the Group, other than legal title, are accounted for as finance leases.
At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised
at the present value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase
and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance leases, including prepaid
land lease payments under finance leases, are included in property, plant

and equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and

the estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases are
charged to the statement of profit or loss so as to provide a constant periodic
rate of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing nature are
accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated over their estimated
useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets
remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of any
incentives received from the lessor are charged to the statement of profit or
loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated at cost
and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included in the cost of the
land and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and equipment.

2.4

FTERESTHHERAE(®)

Gk

N EE A OREEERIN) 2 B AED D @3R8
REBEARKEZHEARIFREMLD - BEHED
FtaEs - HEBEZRASEREEEFRRREER
1t WEREEFEHABRINAR - ARRES K
WA BEMCBMEMOMBEE - BEREENZE
NEMBETE - BFADE  BERREAR - 1R
MR EE 2 At A ERFIARREE RE) St EHT
- ARHEZRERAQBRENN - UREHAE
i TE HATE R -

BEAARMEMEANEEANBEANEE - UREH
HERIE - MR EAE A M E AR E -

WEEERARZ2HEH L REBRERNESOREN L
HAZEL - EETELBRIE - HEARERAEA
By REEEAN N 2 BNES R REIHEA 2 2
B - UERXREHN RS -

EERY 2 AN LB ENREAIRR AT - BH
HEABEREEROFHIRR -
EHESHBRN SRR LA BT D -

EHEESBENGFARELHRETRAE - JIEY
X BEAERBIZBERES -

109 |



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FA TS ERR I RE (AR)

2.4

1110

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2.4
Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale

financial investments, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments

in an effective hedge, as appropriate. When financial assets are recognised

initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are

attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except in the case of

financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the
trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initial
measurement, such assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
other income and gains in the statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in finance costs for
loans and in administrative expenses for receivables.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a
group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position) when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows
in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an

asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to
what extent it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues
to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of
the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be
required to repay.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2.4
Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that a debtor

or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default

or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they

will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
whether impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually
significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not,
it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that
are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not yet been
incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition).
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance
account and the loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Interest
income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount using the
rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any
associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of
future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to
the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment loss
increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered,
the recovery is credited to other expenses in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of
loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables, other payables and
accruals, gold loans, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and finance
lease payables.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2.4
Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their

classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities
held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as
at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category includes derivative
financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated as
hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by HKAS 39. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held
for trading are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The net fair value
gain or loss recognised in the statement of profit or loss does not include any
interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition and only if the
criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement

of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts that
require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is
recognised initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to
initial recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee contract at the
higher of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period; and (ii) the
amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount

is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined on the weighted average basis for homogenous items while it is
determined on an actual unit cost basis for certain unique or specific items
and, in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads, and
where appropriate, subcontracting charges. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and short term
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidation statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term
deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive)
has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the future
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The increase
in the discounted present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to items
recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 FEETHBEBES)
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Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of assets

and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. f# -
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, RN - PR ER TS R = R AIRLET IR
except: afE

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
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foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, AR MGEREER - AR ABRRERD RRAH
the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred HEE - HRERBELERIBEE - R TN - tB1E
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit BRI R RERTRF) - o] BrEREZETHNBRE R
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, the MERE  EFIAATEREDERKRARESE  HER
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, BIEERIEEE

except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if the
Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current
tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate

to the income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Customer loyalty programmes

The Group maintains loyalty points programmes within its retail shops in
Hong Kong and The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), which allow
customers to accumulate points award credits upon purchase of goods in

the shops and joining the programmes. The points award credits can then be
redeemed for goods or other gifts, subject to certain terms and conditions.

A portion of the consideration received for the sales transactions from which
points award credits are accrued is allocated to the points award credits issued
which is recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the points award
credits are redeemed or expired.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Customer loyalty programmes (continued)

The consideration allocated to the award credits is measured by reference
to their fair value of goods or gifts exchanged after considering past
experience of redemption, discounted to the present value as appropriate.
Such consideration is not recognised as revenue at the time of the initial sale
transaction — but is deferred and recognised as revenue when the award
credits are redeemed and the Group’s obligations have been fulfilled.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably, on the
following bases:

@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided that the
Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b)  interestincome, on an accrual basis using the effective interest method
by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset; and

(c)  service income, in the period when services are rendered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised

as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments

The Company issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain
employees and suppliers. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby suppliers
render goods or services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-
settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants after 7
November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at
which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external valuer using
a binomial valuation model (the “Binomial Model”), further details of which
are given in note 29 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee benefit
expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of
profit or loss for a period represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account
when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the
conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance
conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions
attached to an award, but without an associated service requirement, are
considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected
in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award
unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24

Share-based payments (continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance
and/or service conditions have not been met, no expense is recognised.
Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the transactions
are treated as vesting irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum an
expense is recognised as if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payments,
or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested
on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised for the
award is recognised immediately. This includes any award where non-
vesting conditions within the control of either the Group or the employee
are not met. However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the
original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share
dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Other employee benefits

Salaries

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, leave passage and the cost to

the Group of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees of the Group. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are
discounted and stated at their present value.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2.4
Other employee benefits (continued)

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees in Hong Kong.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in the PRC, Malaysia
and Japan are required to participate in central pension schemes operated

by the local municipal government. Contributions are made based on the
requirements of the respective local municipal government. The contributions
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension schemes.

Long service payments

The Group’s net obligations in respect of lump sum long service amounts
payable on cessation of employment in certain circumstances under the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance represent the amount of future benefits that
employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior
periods. The obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit method by
an independent professional valuer, discounted to its present value, and the
fair value of any related plan assets is deducted. The discount rate is the yield
of Exchange Fund Notes at the end of the reporting period that have maturity
dates approximating the terms of the Group’s obligations.

Remeasurements arising from long service payment obligations, comprising
actuarial gains and losses, are recognised immediately in the consolidated
statement of financial position with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
profits through other comprehensive income in the period in which they
occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits (continued)

Long service payments (continued)

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined
benefit liability or asset. The Group recognises the following changes in
the net defined benefit obligation under “cost of sales” and “administrative
expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss by function:

. service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains
and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements

. net interest expense or income

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs
ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate
allocation of retained profits within the equity section of the statement
of financial position, until they have been approved by the shareholders
in a general meeting. When these dividends have been approved by the
shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because the
Company’s memorandum and articles of association grant the directors the
authority to declare interim dividends.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is

the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines its
own functional currency and items included in the financial statements of
each entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded
using their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or

loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the item
whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries located other than Hong
Kong are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their statements of profit or loss are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of
a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income relating
to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair
value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on
acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated at the closing rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management

to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could require
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

Useful lives and depreciation of property, plant and equipment
The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation
charges of its property, plant and equipment. These estimates are based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant

and equipment of similar nature and functions. The Group will increase the
depreciation charge where useful lives are less than previously estimated
lives, and will write off or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may differ
from estimated useful lives. Periodic review could result in a change in
depreciable lives and therefore depreciation charge in the future periods.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for

all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting period. Indefinite life
intangible assets are tested for impairment annually and at other times when
such an indicator exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less
costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value less
costs of disposal is based on available data from binding sales transactions in
an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the expected future cash flows
from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses

can be utilised. Significant judgement is required to determine the amount

of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon estimate and

the level of future taxable profits. The carrying value of deferred tax assets
relating to recognised tax losses at 31 March 2018 was HK$21,500,000 (2017:
HK$21,885,000). The amount of unrecognised deferred tax assets relating

to tax losses at 31 March 2018 was HK$22,489,000 (2017: HK$17,497,000).
Further details are contained in note 27 to the financial statements.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less estimated costs of completion and variable selling
expenses. These estimates are based on the current market conditions and
the historical experience of manufacturing and selling products of a similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes in customer taste
or competitor actions in response to a significant downturn in the industry
sector. The directors reassess the estimations at the end of each reporting
period.

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group determines the impairment of trade receivables based on an
assessment of the recoverability of the receivables. This assessment is based
on the credit history of the customers and other debtors and the current
market condition. The directors reassess the recoverability at the end of each
reporting period.

Customer loyalty programmes

The Group measures the cost of the loyalty award credits by reference to the
fair value of goods and gifts redeemed in the prior years and the probability
of redemption is estimated by the directors based on past experience. Actual
results may differ from the estimation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

Income tax

Significant judgements on the future tax treatment of certain transactions are
required in determining income tax provisions. The Group carefully evaluates
tax implications of transactions and tax provisions are recorded accordingly.
The tax treatment of such transactions is reconsidered periodically to take
into account all changes in circumstances and tax legislation.

Equity-settled share option expenses

The fair value of the share options granted to certain directors, employees
and service providers determined at the date of grant of the respective share
options is expensed over the vesting period, with a corresponding adjustment
to the Group’s share option reserve. In assessing the fair value of the share
options, the Binomial Model was used. The Binomial Model is one of the
generally accepted methodologies used to calculate the fair value of the share
options. The Binomial Model requires the input of subjective assumptions,
including the expected dividend yield and expected life of options. Any
changes in these assumptions can significantly affect the estimate of the fair
value of the share options.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units based
on business nature and has three reportable operating segments as follows:

(@)  Retail Business (including Hong Kong, Macau, Mainland China and
Malaysia);

(b)  Wholesale Business; and

(c)  Other Businesses.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Retail Business includes direct retail sales of jewellery products to end

consumers through the physical outlets carrying the trademark of TSL | ¥ .

It also includes the service fee income received from the provision of retail
management services to other retailers.

Wholesale Business includes wholesale sales of jewellery products to
customers.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation

and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment profit/(loss), which is a measure of adjusted profit/(loss)
before tax. The adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is measured consistently with
the Group’s profit before tax except that unallocated expenses, gain on early
redemption of convertible bonds, finance costs and income tax expense are
excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets and tax recoverable as these
assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude gold loans, interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, tax payable, deferred tax liabilities, finance lease payables and
employee benefit obligations as these liabilities are managed on a group
basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the selling
prices used for sales made to third parties at the then prevailing market
prices.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

4, REFEERGE)

*

Retail Business Wholesale Business Other Businesses Total
Thirteen months ended BZ2018F3A31A 1 TEXK BEBEHK Hith %% st
31March 2018 +=@A HK$’000 &% Tt  HK$000 B¥ Tt HK$000B¥Ft HK$000 BT
Segment revenue: DEERERE
Sales to external customers HERE TINREP 3,169,974 724,218 188,432 4,082,624
Other revenue HplA 54,555 - - 54,555
3,224,529 724,218 188,432 4,137,179
Segment results DEREE 149,778 129,387 (20,199) 258,966
Reconciliation: SHED -
Unallocated expenses ROEXH (124,768)
Finance costs B ER (44,348)
Income tax expense FTiSH: (40,342)
Profit for the period KR B F) 49,508
Segment assets: DEERE : 2,185,337 215,294 84,272 2,484,903
Reconciliation: EE -
Deferred tax assets EERIEEE 57,784
Tax recoverable AU el IE 1,163
Total assets WwEE 2,553,850
Segment liabilities: PHBEE ! (446,220) (120,846) (3,686) (570,752)
Reconciliation: EET -
Interest-bearing bank and FTRRITREMER
other borrowings (785,535)
Tax payable FETHIE (16,579)
Deferred tax liabilities RLERIBEE (17,081)
Finance lease payables ERERE (1,323)
Employee benefit obligations & B f&F|& 7% (9,766)
Total liabilities weE (1,401,036)
Other segment information: ~ Hit 5 HEH :
Depreciation e 59,622 1,584 741 61,947
Capital expenditure* ERRE 54,724 - 2,499 57,223

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

4. REIBERE)

*

[ 130

Retail Business  Wholesale Business Other Businesses Total
TEXEK AT HAh % mEr
HK$000 BT IL  HK$000 BETFIL  HK$000 BT HK$000 BT
Year ended 28 February B Z2017%2H528H (restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
2017 LHEE (&%) (&%) (&%) (&%)
Segment revenue: DEEEE
Sales to external customers HERE TINRES 2,769,672 441,261 164,846 3,375,779
Other revenue HAedA 35,144 - - 35,144
2,804,816 441,261 164,846 3,410,923
Segment results PEEE 141,662 79,789 2734 224,185
Reconciliation: E
Unallocated expenses AAEEX (1M,015)
Gain on early redemption of RERERRRESD
convertible bonds Wz 3,000
Finance costs BsER (64,288)
Income tax expense FIiSH (28,678)
Profit for the year ZEERFN 23204
Segment assets: APHEE ! 2,333,481 154,903 73,992 2,562,376
Reconciliation: GEE
Deferred tax assets EERIEEE 55,214
Tax recoverable BEqEEA 1,978
Total assets HWEE 2,629,568
Segment liabilities: AWEM (490,498) (88,263) (3.543) (582304)
Reconciliation: EE -
Gold loans =eHE (43,523)
Interest-bearing bank and FTERITREMER
other borrowings (979,377)
Tax payable FETRIA (22,448)
Deferred tax liabilities EIERBEAE (16,394)
Employee benefit obligations (& B @FIZE# (11240)
Total liabilities =K (1,655,286)
Other segment information: ~ Hit 5 EHEH :
Depreciation nE 58,084 898 660 59,642
Capital expenditure* BARRZ 61,597 8 1,612 63,217

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment.

: AR BERENE  BERRME -



4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. RBEDEER(E)

(a) Geographical information (@) HEER
Revenue from external customers INRE 2R
Thirteen months ended Year ended
31 March 2018 28 February 2017
HZ20185F3A31H EZ=20179F2 4288
It+=@A IFFE
HK$’000 & F 7t HK$'000 &8 F 7t
Hong Kong and Macau B RIRM 1,531,270 1,301,373
Mainland China H Bl A 2,543,868 2,067,364
Other countries HibBEX 62,041 42186
4,137,179 3,410,923
The revenue information above is based on the locations of the i EEREER YRR FAEEE S -
customers.
Non-current assets IERBNEE
At 31 March 2018 At 28 February 2017
7201853 H31H 201792 A28H
HK$°000 % F T HK$'000 ¥+ IT
Hong Kong and Macau BB MR 97,657 99,378
Mainland China FRE A 43,753 44,088
Other countries HEIZR 3,540 3,984
144,950 147,450
The non-current asset information above is based on the locations of it IEREEEAE IR EEMEH R E S
the assets and excludes rental deposits and deferred tax assets. W ABERERS NEERIBEELE -
(b)  Information about major customers by BEIERPZER
The turnover from the Group’s largest customer amounted to less than NABEE LEE  REAEESAEEZ A
10% of the Group’s total turnover for the current period and prior year. BaE (bR B 4 AL HER TS DN 0% o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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5. TURNOVER 5.

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture, sale and marketing
of jewellery products and the provision of service. Turnover represents the
sales value of jewellery products sold to customers, net of value added tax
and discount, and service income. An analysis of turnover is as follows:

E -

REEMNEZEBSRE  HE MEERE IR
MERTS - EEBANMBIGET LT NEHETRERZ
KEEHNIEEEEFERRISRA - EEE 2D
MR -

This represents subsidies from municipal governments in Mainland China. There
are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these subsidies.

Thirteen months ended Year ended
31March 2018 28 February 2017
EZ=20185F3H31H H=2017%2H28H
IE+=@A IEFE
HK$°000 &% T T HK$'000 B FT
Sales of jewellery products HEKE A 4,082,624 3375779
Service income BRI 54,555 35,144
4,137,179 3,410,923
6.  OTHER INCOME AND GAINS/(LOSSES), NET 6. HftwARWKE (&8)  F58
Thirteen months ended Year ended
31March 2018 28 February 2017
B £2018%F3A31H HZE2017%2H28H
IE+=@A IEFE
HK$’000 B¥ Tt HK$'000 /B F 7T
Interest income FEUTA 3,393 5,732
Foreign exchange differences, net FIEN ERR 6,078 (4,437)
Government grants* AT AL 1,609 1279
Fair value gain/(loss) on gold loans EEREATFEEI CABZES
designated as at fair value through HAENAFEEFWRE(EE)
profit or loss 162 (10,372)
Fair value loss on derivative financial EERTENATFEEFEE
instruments = (806)
Gain on early redemption of convertible RERELRRES R
bonds = 3,000
Gain on sales of scrap gold SHEZ S BRI 1,066 938
Repair service income HEUTA 1,016 681
Others i 6,620 3,586
19,944 (399)

. UETY 45 i h B O T IR ER (R RO MG o A SRR 3E

SRANE R BHEAIRIBIT 2 161 ©



7.

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

BB A 2 A

AEEBHAAFENG,(GEA)

Thirteen months ended Year ended
31 March 2018 28 February 2017
B ZE20185F3AH31H H=2017%2H28H
It+=@A IEFE
HK$’000 &+t HK$'000 B ¥ T 7t
Cost of goods sold* SHE RN 2,484,454 1,887,832
Provision/(reversal of provision) for BE/ (BERE)EFEEE2R
impairment of inventories, net FE - FE 21,219 (3,629)
Depreciation (note 14) PreE(Mish4) 61,947 59,642
Minimum lease payments in respect of LERE 2 HEEER R
operating leases** 237,370 196,254
Auditor’s remuneration ZERB & 2,860 2,750
Employee benefit expense (including EERMAZ(BEESHE
directors’ remuneration (note 9)): (MF5E9)) -
Wages, salaries and other benefits TE& - #FHekEMEF 624,066 589,780
Reversal of equity-settled share option AR EEE 2 ERiEE A
expense - (1,450)
Pension scheme contributions*** JETE R FCGRIRET S R 8,120 819
Employee benefit obligations (note 26) e BrENZ B (Hi5E26) 394 545
632,580 596,994
Fair value (gain)/loss on gold loans EERIRATEEITREL
designated as at fair value through BLHENAFEET (W),
profit or loss**** Ei= R (162) 10,372
Fair value loss on derivative financial TESBIANRTEEBETF
instruments**** 7%= R - 806
Loss on disposal of items of property, plant  EE¥Z - EM&EER 2 E8
and equipment 68 903

133 |
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FA TS ERR I RE (AR)

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued)

7. BREAIEFI(E)

. Cost of goods sold includes HK$94,099,000 (year ended 28 February 2017 . $HE AN B 1E A HUB 194,099,000 7T (B £ 20174

HK$94,547,000) relating to employee benefit expense, depreciation, and
operating lease payments, which are also included in the respective total
amounts disclosed separately above for each of these types of expenses.

2R28R IEFE : #B#94,547,0007T) B & B & FI 5
X WERCEHEEER  AESENEDRIRAMN
RS EERAS A o

o Not including commission/contingent rental payments in relation to sales o TEEINFHESEEAENEEAR KBS
counters in department stores and shopping malls. &/ HARME -

e At 31 March 2018, there were no forfeited contributions available to the Group to o 201853 A31H » AR [E 17 £& B R B R nDH R AR 2R
reduce its contributions to pension schemes in future years (28 February 2017: FEEHRRET B IR (20174928288 « &) -
Nib.

#** These amounts are included in “Other income and gains/(losses), net” in the e AR I EARA KK, (BB) - FREIRE

consolidated statement of profit or loss. The purpose of the above gold loans
and derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group is to manage the
Group’s gold price exposure. Such loans and contracts did not meet the criteria

for hedge accounting.

BELEHE  PRHRSHERTESHMTAEEER
AEEZERERAR ZFHERGHALTTEY
TR R R -

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. HKER
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: HHBRZAOWTIAT

Thirteen months ended Year ended
31March 2018 28 February 2017
B ZE20185F3A31H HZE2017%2H28H
Lt+=@A IEFE
HK$’000 BTt HK$ 000 B ¥ T 7t

Interest on bank loans, overdrafts and IRITER - BX REMERNFE
other loans 40,628 23,821
Interest on convertible bonds AR EF A FLE - 36,057
Interest on finance leases RERENFE 58 32
Interest on gold loans =2 HENFE 295 3,183
Other charges HibZ i 3,367 1195
44,348 64,288
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the period, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules,

section 383(1)(a), (b), (¢) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

ESRITHARME

RiE ERA - BERRNEGIFI83M(@) ~ (b) ~ (O
OEAR AR (WEEZENEERDRY - APH2E
e a4y (A

Thirteen months ended Year ended

31 March 2018 28 February 2017

B Z201853831H HZE2017F2H28H

IE+=@A IEFE

HK$°000 &% T T HK$'000 A+t

Fees e 780 720

Other emoluments: EAbEEN

Salaries and allowances rse KRR 9,234 8,894
Performance related bonuses BRIFAE 2 EAL 1,755 600
Equity-settled share option expense AR ESEE Z Bk EE A - (187)
Pension scheme contributions JETE HEFGRIRET B 40 4
11,029 9,348

11,809 10,068

Included in the directors’ remuneration were fees of HK$585,000 (2017:
HK$540,000) and HK$195,000 (2017: HK$180,000) paid to independent
non-executive directors and a non-executive director respectively during the
period.

EEWSEBERBAZMN TBIUIFNTEERIEY
TTEEMNHE DR AEES50007 (20174 : B
540,0007T) K& #195,0007T (20174 : ##180,000
JT) °



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FA TS ERR I RE (AR)

9.  DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION (continued) 9. EERTHETME(H)
Performance Equity-settled Pension
Salaries and related  share option scheme
Fees allowances bonuses expense  contributions Total
HBERE HURELEZ EEMR
Fioky FeREY HEZ AL BEREER RAGTEMR i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR  BETR BETR BETR #MTR #ETR
Thirteen months ended EZ201853H31H
31March 2018 E+=18A
Executive directors: HITEE:
Yau On Yee, Annie? Jiilfeg=2 - 4,892 693 - 20 5,605
Ng Yi Kum, Estella hEsE - 4,342 1,062 - 20 5,424
- 9,234 1,755 - 40 11,029
Non-executive directors: FHTES !
Erwin Steve Huang BEX 195 - - - - 195
Chow Chee Wai, Christopher*  E)A{E* 195 - - - - 195
Chui Chi Yun, Robert* B 195 - - - - 195
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael* BRIn 195 - - - - 195
780 - - - - 780
780 9,234 1,755 - 40 11,809
Year ended 28 February 2017 B Z2017%E2828A
HEE
Executive directors: HiTES:
Yau On Yee, Annie? il - 4,233 - 779 18 5,030
Ng Yi Kum, Estella hEE - 4,024 600 - 18 4642
Chan Lambert Lap Yip' BRI - 637 - (966)* 5 (324)
- 8,894 600 (187) 4 9,348
Non-executive directors: FHITES:
Erwin Steve Huang EEK 180 - - - - 180
Chow Chee Wai, Christopher* A" 180 - - - - 180
Chui Chi Yun, Robert* S 180 - - - - 180
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael* BRAa 180 - - - - 180
720 - - - - 720
720 8,894 600 (187) 4 10,068
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10.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION (continued) 9.

- Independent non-executive directors

# The amount represented the write-back of accrued equity-settled share option
expense due to the related resignation.

! Mr. Chan Lambert Lap Yip resigned as an executive director on 1June 2016.

B Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie is also the chief executive officer of the Group.

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent non-executive
directors during the period (2017: Nil).

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to waive
any remuneration during the period (2017: Nil).

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10.

The five highest paid employees during the period included two directors
(2017: two), details of whose remuneration are set out in note 9 above. Details
of the remuneration for the period of the remaining three (2017: three) non-
director, highest paid employees are as follows:

EERITRARME (5
© o OBSEHTES
ks

BT B C AT RS E 2 AR R -

! 201656 A1BBR L EFERARNITES ©
2 BRELZ L IRAEBENITEAS,

Hm I\ E NS BN TIB I IERITEE (20174 ¢
) -

HANEEWE T HEXRERETMANSNE
PE(20174F « &) -

hEmeHMES

HAAREE RS &= HMIEES 81524 (20174F : 24)
EF - HFEAMSER SN Ll - AAMEE
3HQ07F 3R )T MEEEREFAMESER
U

Thirteen months ended Year ended

31 March 2018 28 February 2017

EZ2018F3H31H H=Z=2017%2H28H

It+=@A IEFE

HK$’000 BTt HK$'000 B ¥ T 7t

Salaries and allowances e RoERL 8,315 6,742
Performance related bonuses EARIBAERE 2 FEAL 2,304 1,451
Equity-settled share option expense ARG S Z FERR i B - -
Pension scheme contributions JETE HEREGRIRET I K 152 18
10,771 8,21
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FA TS ERR I RE (AR)

10.  FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued) 10.

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose remuneration fell

within the following bands is as follows:

hEBRSHMES (&)

MeNFUATERNZESHMIEESREE 2 ABH
™~

Thirteen months ended Year ended

31March 2018 28 February 2017

B ZE201853A31H HZE2017%2A28H

IE+=@EA FFE

Number of employees Number of employees

EEA™ EEAH

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 75 #2,000,0017T 2% 2,500,0007T = 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 712,500,001 7T 2% #3,000,0007T 1

HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 75 #£3,000,0017C 2 4% 3,500,0007T 1 -

HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 7813 500,0017C 2 8 #4,000,0007T - 1

HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 7B14,000,0017T 28 %4,500,0007T = -

HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 71 4,500,0017T 2 74 #5,000,0007T 1 -

3 3

No emolument was paid by the Group to any of the top five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office during the period (2017: Nil).

1. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

1.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) on
the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the period. Taxes
on profits assessable in places other than Hong Kong have been calculated at
the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

HAREEHERTN AT MEE X SHE
(2017%F « &) {EABEHIMASREMALE®R R
B - skYEABERE o

FSHiER
EEFESRDIREBEABEERE S 2 G ERFEA
R - 3@ R R 16.5% (20174 : 165%) 515 o =E®

BB IASME 1 2 8 SRR R L e 0 B
HEBUE -

Thirteen months ended Year ended
31March 2018 28 February 2017
HZE2018F3A31H EHZE2017%2A28H
It+=M@A IEFE
HK$°000 &¥ T T HK$'000 BT+ T
Current - Hong Kong KH— BB
Charge for the period/year BN, FABE 3,435 3,798
Underprovision/(overprovision) in prior BARFERETR, GREEE)
years 3,230 (1,372)
Current - Other than Hong Kong INE— B AL
Charge for the period/year B, FRFRIE 35,075 31,844
Underprovision in prior vears BAREFERETR 8 386
Deferred (note 27) IRIE (M5E27) (1,406) (5,978)
40,342 28,678
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1.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the
statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority of
its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rate is as

. FSHEBR®G)

BARARTEMBRARMEEERE OXEREG
HIWHEARBHA AN 2 HEERMT

follows:
Thirteen months ended Year ended
31 March 2018 28 February 2017
B Z201853831H HZE2017F2H28H
IE+=@A IEFE
HK$°000 &% T T HK$'000 A+t
Profit before tax KA AT 89,850 51,882
Tax at the statutory rates BIEEBIE 24,402 16,188
Profits entitled to tax exemption HEBIE 2B (30) (20)
Expenses not deductible for tax TRz T H 7,724 7,464
Income not subject to tax BB Z A (315) (734)
Tax losses utilised from previous periods F AT R 2 TRIEEE - (459)
Tax losses and temporary differences not RERREBELTEEZR
recognised 5,323 7,225
Adjustments in respect of current tax of BUATHAR 2 BB E AR B
previous periods 3,238 (986)
Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate of IR ANEBE44.9%E EFi K (20174 :
44.9% (2017: 55.3%) 55.3%) 18 2§18 40,342 28,678
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12.

| 140

DIVIDENDS 2. KR
Thirteen months ended Year ended
31March 2018 28 February 2017
EZ20185F3H31H B Z=2017%2A28H
IE+=@EA IFFE
HK$’000 % ¥ F 5t HK$'000 ¥+ 7T
2016/17 approved final dividend of B2 2016/175 FE R ERR B
HK$0.0375 per ordinary share* (BB B 0.03757 )" - 7,888
First interim dividend declared and paid™ B & &Kt 2 & — ke HiR% 8.
(2017/18: HK$0.021 per ordinary share) (201718 - BAR L MARAHE0.021
(2016/17: HK$0.015 per ordinary share) 70)(2016/17 : GRRE BRI HE
0.0157T) 5,170 3,155
Second interim dividend declared*** EEMIREE 2 55 — X R 8 o
(2017/18: HK$0.073 per ordinary share) (201718 + FR&EBARABRE0.073
(2016/17: Nil) L) (2016/17 * %) 18,019 -
23,189 11,043

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend for the
thirteen months ended 31 March 2018.

* The 2016/17 final dividend amounting to HK$7,888,000, of which HK$2,248,000
was satisfied in the form of scrip shares.

o The first interim dividend declared on 24 October 2017 amounted to
HK$5,170,000, of which HK$1,478,000 was satisfied in the form of scrip shares.
The dividend was paid on 15 December 2017.

e The second interim dividend amounting to HK$18,019,000, of which
HK$2,523,000 was satisfied in the form of scrip shares. The dividend was paid on
11 June 2018.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based on the profit
for the period attributable to owners of the Company of HK$49,419,000 (year
ended 28 February 2017: HK$23,177,000), and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares of 246,836,860 (28 February 2017: 245,391,8784) in issue
during the period.

No diluted earnings per share amounts have been presented for the thirteen
months ended 31 March 2018 and for the year ended 28 February 2017 as the
impact of the share options outstanding had no diluting effect on the basic
earnings per share amounts presented.

A Adjusted for the bonus issue effected in the current period

13.

%igﬂ%%ﬁ@izmsisﬂ JNHIET=EARER

. 2016/174F [E R HARR B A A% 7,888,0007T + HA K
2,248,0007C AR BB 77 2RO

o 2017910 A24 B E Mk 2 6 —IRR B B AB
5,170,0007T » ErR##1,478,0007t AR B AL 1D 75 52
BORS o AR BB R20179F12 A158 IR ©

v BRI HARR B AREE A E 118,019,000 + H A
2,523,0007T Z R BARERRG F7 R AR © RS
B R20185F6 ANERSS ©

RATERARESREBR

EBREAEN SR PEA R RIEE AREERAT
149 419,0007T (B = 201752 A28 B IFEE B
23,177,00070 ) R F A B 34T E @Ak 2 TR E
246,836,860A% (20174F : 245,391,878f%4 )5t & -

AR AEERITOEREYREREAATSFET
W HEE2018F3AZH I+ =18 A K20175F2 A4
28H IFFERE 2R TRESRFIBIE -

B RBALR TR RO ZEELRE



14.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

4. YE- - BERERE

Furniture,
Land and Plant and fixtures and Motor
buildings machinery equipment vehicles Total
& #£3
T REF B E R Es R&E RE g
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BET T BEET T BT T BT T
As at 31 March 2018 A 201853 H31H
As at 28 February 2017 and 201792 A28H8 &
1 March 2017: 201743818 -
Cost %N 95,188 16,592 477,953 6,974 596,707
Accumulated depreciation ZEHITE (43,324) (13,739) (393,995) (4,471) (455,529)
Net carrying amount BREFE 51,864 2,853 83,958 2,503 141,178
At 1March 2017, net of 20173718 -
accumulated depreciation kR 2FHITE 51,864 2,853 83,958 2,503 141,178
Additions NE - 153 54,860 2,210 57,223
Disposals 28 - m (18) (79) (198)
Depreciation provided BT E A
during the period (1,965) (1,329) (57,436) (1,217) (61,947)
Exchange realignment TE 5 AR - 73 3,700 88 3,861
At 31 March 2018, net of 201853 H31H -
accumulated depreciation Nk R5HeE 49,899 1,749 84,964 3,505 140,117
At 31 March 2018: 201853 A31A -
Cost RS 95,188 16,659 547,266 8,953 668,066
Accumulated depreciation ZEHITE (45,289) (14,910) (462,302) (5,448) (527,949)
Net carrying amount BREFE 49,899 1,749 84,964 3,505 140,117
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BTSRRI 5E (4B)
14.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 4. ¥ BERZEE)
Furniture,
Land and Plant and fixtures and Motor
buildings machinery equipment vehicles Total
B KB
i RiEF R R i 2s T RE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT IT BT BT T BT T
As at 28 February 2017 2017528 28H
As at 1 March 2016: 201653 A1H -
Cost %N 95,188 18,801 464,457 8,055 586,501
Accumulated depreciation Z5tine (41,510 (15,107) (385,222) (5,221) (447,060)
Net carrying amount BRMEFE 53,678 3,694 79,235 2,834 139,441
At 1March 2016, net of 201663 A1H -
accumulated depreciation Mk EEHTE 53,678 3,694 79,235 2,834 139,441
Additions NE - 1,188 61,565 464 63,217
Disposals 28 - (554) (883) (23) (1,460)
Depreciation provided FRIFTERE
during the year (1,814) (1,334) (55,738) (756) (59,642)
Exchange realignment Ve W - a4n 21 (16) (378)
At 28 February 2017, net of 201752 A28 -
accumulated depreciation 0k REHTE 51,864 2,853 83,958 2,503 141,178
At 28 February 2017 H201792A288 :
Cost AR 95,188 16,592 477,953 6,974 596,707
Accumulated depreciation 25t e (43,324) (13,739) (393,995) 4,471) (455,529)
Net carrying amount BRMEFE 51,864 2,853 83,958 2,503 141178
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14.

15.

16.

17.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 14.

At 31 March 2018, the carrying amount of motor vehicles held under finance
leases of the Group was HK$1,595,000.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group’s land and buildings in Hong
Kong were pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group (note
31(a)).

At the end of the reporting period, the premises permits in respect of the
property interests held under long term leases in Mainland China have not
been issued by the relevant PRC government authority. The net carrying
amount of the properties was HK$2 (28 February 2017: HK$2) at the end of
the reporting period.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15.

The balance represents the Group’s trademarks which are assessed as having
indefinite useful lives because the Group is able to renew the legal right of the
trademarks at insignificant cost indefinitely.

OTHER ASSET 16.

Other asset represents the cost of membership for a seat at The Chinese
Gold and Silver Exchange Society which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

M - BERREE)

R2018F3 AR MR BRER A 2/ THIREELNS
#1,595,0007T °

RRERAR - FEEE TEFEERAUARGAEER
ETRITRERE (K@)

RIREHAR - FEAMHEEB TR A LB £
FESAENDEESHHERAMAESE - AEBMNZ
EYENREPHARNEEDFEABE2T(2017F2A8
288 : B¥E2T) ©

BILEE

ZARIEARE 2 R o N AKE A AREF
EARATERBEELERE  MHAABEERE
FREFH -

Htt&E

HMBERSREB I HGERAL - THRRARER
(EEESIE

INVENTORIES 7. BE
At 31 March 2018 At 28 February 2017
201853 H31H 7201742 4288
HK$’000 &4+ 5T HK$'000 T 7T
Raw materials =R 147,361 97,147
Work in progress ERGH 82,092 50,896
Finished goods BIRK G 1,412,420 1,330,636
1,641,873 1,478,679
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18.  TRADE RECEIVABLES 18, FEURERX
At 31 March 2018 At 28 February 2017
7201853 H31H M201762A28H
HK$°000 &% T T HK$'000 B+ T
Trade receivables JEUAR X 189,218 235,709
The Group’s retail sales are normally made on a cash basis. Credit card $§ l HNEEHE—RIUREXTH - iEEHEM
receivables from financial institutions in respect of retail sales are aged ERE3E aﬁﬁ%%ZﬁW{*ﬁﬁ REEZH VEERA—EA
within one month. Apart from retail customers, the Group allows an average Ao BTERTFLI  REEBMAMETEEIEHFEHI0E
credit period from 30 to 90 days for other customers. The Group seeks to 90362 RARER o ANER B 7 SRER R R B R W B 2 FE U
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables to minimise credit FUAREEE R o #Hi4 ﬁ%EEI B ETHELE
risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. In Eﬁ ﬁmm$%@5’jﬁéuﬁzﬁﬁm;ﬁ BAENHIZIEE K
view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade receivables Wi E KERRHEERR o 2NEE N Rt H EUEE
relate to a large number of diversified customers, there is no significant RS R T E MR EERE I - FEUL
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other BER—MIgAERE

credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are
non-interest-bearing in general.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the reporting REREEAR @ FENER RIS EH st E R NB AR
period, based on the invoice date and net of provisions, is as follows: Bt 2 BREE DT ¢

At 31 March 2018 At 28 February 2017
74201838 31H 2017928 28H
HK$°000 &% T T HK$'000 &1+ T
Within T month ME AR 170,290 214,932
1to 2 months 1Z=2MA A 12,899 10,596
2 to 3 months 223EAANR 1,272 3,964
Over 3 months HBiB3ME A 4,757 6,217
Total trade receivables 4 PR TR 189,218 235,709
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18.  TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables, net of provisions at the end of
the reporting period, based on the due date, is as follows:

18.

FEWBRR ()

MB|EHR - BUSRFBIRE M Bt ERIR A R

WZRE AT

At 31 March 2018

At 28 February 2017

20183 A31H 201742 H28H

HK$’°000 B4+t HK$'000 &% Tt

Neither past due nor impaired R EINARVERE 142,297 188,938
Less than 6 months past due w1 HA D> A 61E A 36,939 44,707
Over 6 months past due R A (E A 9,982 2,064
189,218 235,709

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large number
of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of
independent customers that have a good track record with the Group. Based
on past experience, the directors of the Company are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as there
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables, net of provisions, are
denominated in the following currencies:

KRBT ARBEZ BERFT S RABDEMZEP » %

BEPTHNEEQRES -

BB HARRE RS R RS AR B R
RIFRFEHBZBIRF - RIFBELR - ARAE
ERR - BARZSHEMELEMRERE  BiER
BRAE\BAEH B AERRDRE R 2 EUE -

REE USRI AR B REEATIIEE R

By :

At 31 March 2018

At 28 February 2017

2018538318 R201752 8288

HK$°000 & ¥ T T HK$'000 &#F T

HK$ ot 1,321 3,418
RMB AREE 187,491 231,831
Us$ =TT 244 397
Others Hoh 162 63
189,218 235,709
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FA TS ERR I RE (AR)

19. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS, AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. FEMAR - REREMEREK
At 31 March 2018 At 28 February 2017
7201853 831H 201742 A28H
HK$°000 &% T T HK$'000 A FT
Prepayments SEINEN 47,653 69.452
Deposits e 137,658 136,987
Other receivables H b U GR 7,212 9,314
192,523 215,753
Long-term prepayments and deposits NEEARERBEE 2K
classified as non-current assets AR REE (38,398) (52,655)
154,125 163,098
None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial assets T EEREaHRNERE o LlEHRNMTFEER
included in the above balances relate to receivables for which there was no FRITEAN B AR SR 2 FEURBR TR ©

recent history of default.

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND TIME DEPOSITS 20. RERBAESLZ/BYREHRER
At 31 March 2018 At 28 February 2017
7A2018F3A31H 201792 A28H
HK$’000 BTt HK$ 000 B ¥ T 7t
Cash and bank balances B RIRTTFH 268,073 323,657
Time deposits EHFER 52,500 166,801
320,573 490,458
Less: Time deposits with original maturity & : FRERIHBE 2R =@ B
greater than three months, but less R—F 2 THFH
than one year when acquired - (22,472)
Less: Pledged time deposits for certain W EAB TRERTHEEEZ
short-term banking facilities [ Y eE (52,500) (144,329)
(52,500) (166,801)
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREZEEY 268,073 323,657
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20.

21.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND TIME DEPOSITS (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash equivalents and time
deposits of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to HK$237,855,000
(28 February 2017: HK$248,048,000). RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s rules and regulations on Foreign
Exchange Administration, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods of between

one day and one year depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group, and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit rates. The
bank balances and time deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with
no recent history of default.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s time deposits denominated in RMB
amounting to HK$52,500,000 (28 February 2017: HK$144,329,000) have
been pledged to secure certain banking facilities granted to the Group (note
31(c) and (d)).

TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting period,
based on the invoice date, is as follows:

20.

21.

RERBRSEBYREREFRE)

RBEHR  REEUARBABNZIRERIRESE
BEY) K E TR 21 40 A 75 15 237,855,000 7T (201742 A 28
H : B#248,0480007T) - AREETEEEREIRAH
HEE - AT - BB E AN INEBIRIEG - Ak
EE S BEREETINEEL ZBITHBARK R
BEMEE .

7R RIT 2 R 2R T B IRTT IR 2 Z B FI S BREA
B BIAEENRREFFR  BHEHRFERZE
HRHBRIREVFE - WA E B 7 50R R BRERFS, o
RITHEARRE RIS RNEER T BT 2
WA 2 3RAT -

HIE2018F3A31H + REBUARBRBEMBER
71£52,500,0007T (201742 A28 8 : 5#144,329,000
TL) 2 EHERE R RARGAEES TRITEER
(FIFE31 () B (d)) °

FEASBRR

RIS - FE R SIRIE T 2 B S B 2 R A I
o

At 31 March 2018 At 28 February 2017

74201838 31H 2017492 A28H

HK$’000 B ¥ Tt HK$'000 B FIT

Within T month MEAAR 119,039 62,946
1to 2 months 1228 AR 39,278 39,620
2 to 3 months 2Z=3EAAR 48,560 47,931
Over 3 months BiB3E A 67,416 165,895
274,293 316,392

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing.

FENBRFIBRE o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BTSRRI 5 E(4B)
21.  TRADE PAYABLES (continued) 21 EERFRGE)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are denominated in the REBEMNRERZRAEBEL I E®E BB
following currencies:
At 31 March 2018 At 28 February 2017
A2018F3A31H F201742 A28H
HK$’000 B¥ Tt HK$ 000 BT 7T
HK$ B 12,143 47920
RMB AR 97,770 71,536
us$ e 164,289 195,340
Others Eih 91 1,596
274,293 316,392
22, OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 2. EiEMZRESER
At 31 March 2018 At 28 February 2017
720183 H31H 201792 A28H
HK$°000 #&# T T HK$ 000 B ¥ T 7t
Other payables H AR 22,911 49,391
Customer deposits BFEA & 131,821 96,660
Provision for liabilities BERE 35,283 17,627
Accruals fEETE A 106,444 102,234
296,459 265,912
Other payables and accruals classified DI ARIETE) 2 B EA R
as non-current fEstE A (4,720) (6,595)
291,739 259,317
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23.

GOLD LOANS 23.

=EHE

At 31 March 2018 At 28 February 2017

7201853 H31H M201742A28H

HK$°000 &% T T HK$'000 BT+ T

Secured gold loans EERESHE - 29,015
Unsecured gold loans EIERESHEE - 14,508
- 43,523

Contractual interest rate X okES N/A REHA 3.0% - 3.6%
Original maturity REIE A N/A FEHA Within Tyear 15E A

The amounts represented borrowings from banks and the amounts payable
are pegged with gold prices.

No gold loans were outstanding as at 31 March 2018. Gold loans of
HK$29,015,000 as at 28 February 2017 were secured by the Group’s pledged
time deposits amounting to HK$27,022,000 as at 28 February 2017 as
disclosed in note 31(c) below.

Gold loans were borrowed to reduce the impact of fluctuation of gold prices
on gold inventories. However, the criteria for hedge accounting were not fully
met. Gold loans were designated as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss as they were managed and their performance were evaluated
on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management and
investment strategy, and information about the gold loans was provided on
that basis to the Group’s top management.

ZHRIERITIEE - MENRAEES(EREE -

R2018F3ANBAEEWEZSHEE K - 120176
2 A28 8 BHHEE29,015000T 2 EEHERUKREE
Z R REAIEM - 201742 A28H % FHIFR
BEEM27,022,0007T + FFIBER AT Z M FE310)F #

5% o

EABSHENENAREESERNDHESFE
2R AT ARESTHERETENAE TSR
B ZGMN - ENESHENRERERRER LK
BRI A TEEEREEELNERER  WEREER
BAHEEERBZMBAE  mAMZSFESH
EZAMRRA-EERRTAERE L SEERA

B o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BTSRRI 5E (4B)
24. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 24. FTEMBITREAMER
At 31 March 2018 At 28 February 2017
201853 A31H 201742 A 28H
Contractual Contractual
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity HK$’000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
BHFIE(%) F#A BET T SHIFIE (%) Gl BB
Current E
Bank loans and trade RITERRESRE
financing - secured —HiEH 2.09%-3.62% 2018 146,563 1.86%-3.34% 2017 162,181
Bank loans and trade RTEFREFHE
financing - unsecured — 3.51%-4.06% 2018 30,000 2.54%-557% 2017 103,308
Other loans - unsecured HME R — EiK - - - 4.75% 2017 413
Other loans - secured BEx-BHEH 7.88% 2018 200,000 - - -
376,563 269,602
Non-current 3qu§?1
Bank loans - secured RITER—HIEH 2.89%-3.62% 2021 408,972 2.66%-3.34% 2021 509,775
Other loans - secured HibhEF - BHEA - - - 7.88% 2018 200,000
408,972 709,775
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24,

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)

Certain of the bank loans above are classified as current liabilities due to the
inclusion of repayment on demand clauses in the bank facilities agreements,
without which, the maturity terms of the loans are as follows:

24,

FFRBITREMERE)

Hﬂ#fﬂﬁ%ﬂﬁ’*\ﬁ &EIE*Z R - BUE T
ERTEFROEA/RDEE - WEREREEZF

o ff?ﬂﬂ’]@J,ﬁﬂﬁlﬁllﬁﬁuT :

At 31 March 2018 At 28 February 2017

720183 A31H 201792 A828H

HK$’000 BTt HK$ 000 BT 7t

Repayment within one year or on demand ~ BRIERZHEESIRBRER 376,563 269,602
Repayment in the second year BER2FEREHEE 101,063 301,063
Repayment in more than two years HARZIR2FRNEIEEE 307,909 408,712
785,535 979,377

All bank borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, including the bank loans and
trade finance repayable on demand, are carried at amortised cost. None of the
portions of the bank and other loans due for repayment after one year which
contains a repayment on demand clause and is classified as current liabilities is
expected to be settled within one year. This evaluation was made considering
the financial position of the Group at the date of approval of the financial
statements; the Group’s continuing compliance with the loan covenants; the
lack of events of default; and the fact that the Group has made all previously
scheduled repayments on time.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had available borrowing facilities amounting
to HK$945,535,000 (28 February 2017: HK$1,134,665,000), of which
HK$785,535,000 (28 February 2017: HK$1,022,900,000) had been utilised

as borrowings above and gold loans (note 23) as at the end of the reporting
period. Certain borrowing facilities are secured by certain assets of the Group
as disclosed in note 31to the financial statements.

PRAIRITE R B EERL

ARRITER(REREREREZRITERRESR
ﬁ)ﬁ?ﬁz%&iﬁﬁil’@ﬂﬁﬁ i‘ﬁuﬂﬁiﬁmi{é FEEER

EREFEZBEREDERRDABZHNRITE
FAH#EQ]QEW/H1E\ o fEULFHEREZ BN TRIE - A%

BRABBHRTZER 2SR - AEEFEET
BRIER  BBENEN  AEEBRTERERCE
W e

MR2018F3A3NA  AEEUHACREERABE
945,535,0007C (201742 A28 B : 7 #1,134,665,000
TT) - H s # 785535000t 2 BB ER AR EE T
& (M5E23) (201752 5288 : 7##1,022,900,0007T)
RREHRESA - ETREEHEAAEELETEE
PRI B BRI A S SRR M 53T ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FA TS ERR I RE (AR)

25. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES 25. BEfImERE

AEBEREBNFAI Nz REMERREM KB
Kk RosE (HE4) -

The Group leased certain of its furniture, fixtures and equipment and motor
vehicles under finance leases which expired within five years (note 14).

The Group’s finance lease payables are secured by the charge over the leased AEEEMNBERENTBAZHEEEMBER
assets. o

MR20185F3A31H « IRIBEMNBERE 2 HERENK

At 31 March 2018, the total future minimum lease payments under finance

[ 152

leases and their present values were as follows:

Minimum lease

NEBEZ BT

Minimum lease

Present value of
minimum lease

Present value of
minimum lease

payments payments payments payments
RERE w=EHE REHE REHE
I3 3R ARZEE RzBE
At 31March 2018 At 28 February 2017 At 31March 2018 At 28 February 2017
R2018F3A31H 201792 A28H 7201853 A31H 201742 A28H
HK$’000 B# Tt HK$'000 B#F7T  HK$'000 B¥ T T HK$'000 BT 7T
Amounts payable: 258 -
Within one year 1R 699 - 643 -
In the second year EE 699 - 680 -
Total minimum finance lease  ZIEREMRENZEE
payments 1,398 - 1,323 -
Future finance charges RREBER 75) -
Total net finance lease EAREHEFEEE
payables 1,323 -
Portion classified as current HEAERBEEDH
liabilities (643) -
Non-current portion FERENERD 680 -




26.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

Long service payments

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is obliged to make
lump sum payments on cessation of employment in certain circumstances to
certain employees who have completed at least five years of service with the
Group. The amount payable is dependent on the employees’ final salary and
years of service, and is reduced by entitlements accrued under the Group’s
retirement plan that are attributable to contributions made by the Group. The
Group does not set aside any assets to fund any remaining obligations. The
long service payments are paid out from the Group’s cash on hand when such
payments are required.

The planis exposed to interest rate risk, the risk of changes in the salary
increase rate and the expected return on MPF scheme balances.

The actuarial valuation specifically designated for the Group’s employees was
completed by an independent professional valuer, Ascent Partners, as at 31
March 2018, using the projected unit credit method.

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
are as follows:

26.

BERAEL

RS S

REBEEECREEDD - MAREAEETER TELE
REASERBEZISFNETEL - BANEER
BENEAAZEEIXNRERES - BRNESEKRE
THRKEFSMRIGFRTE - LHRBPELEE
RINGTEIPT RIER R A LB E L HRE D - &
SETEBEEMNEENNEMNESRHEFESHE -
ERBFONFE  RERBESIHAKE 2 ERFR
EXff e

ZETEIEER A = @ -
AR TR R S 2 R o

IRERE R R A B4

BEN2018F3IAA - RAKEREEMRNFEGE
BB EXAEM T ERARRA R RAER
B ERETK °

AP BRRMREROSEMT -

At 31 March 2018 At 28 February 2017

20183 A31H 201742 H28H
HK$’000 BTt HK$'000 &% Tt
Present value of defined benefit obligations R EREFEFEHIRE 9,766 11,240




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FA TS ERR I RE (AR)

26. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued) 26. EERAEK(E)
Long service payments (continued) EHIRG S @)
The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end of the reporting period RBERREFEHAUATHEERR
are as follows:
At 31 March 2018 At 28 February 2017
R20185F3H31H 7201742 A 28H
Discount rate ARIR % 2.18% 1.80%
Expected rate of salary increases (%) TEHR S & FHIR (%)
Year 2017 20174 - 4.00%
Year 2018 20184F 4.00% 4.00%
Year 2019 and thereafter 20194 K PAfR 4.00% 4.00%
Expected annual return of the MPF TEHRESEEEEFEER
scheme assets 4.00% 4.00%
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions at the end of the RRERRABEANBRENTEHREDTEARAOT
reporting period is shown below:
Increase/(decrease) Increase/(decrease)
in defined in defined
Increase inrate  benefit obligations Decrease inrate  benefit obligations
REBHRBZ RERARKZ
12 = #in,/ (hd) = i,/ (FD)
%  HK$000 BEETIT %  HK$'000 BEETIT
At 31 March 2018 20185 3A31H
Discount rate BRIR K 0.25% (330) 0.25% 348
Future salary increase ARIREEEM 0.25% 331 0.25% (489)
Future expected rate of RIREEE T EIEHRD
return on MPF balances RIEAA R 0.25% (1,129) 0.25% 1,199
At 28 February 2017 R201742428H
Discount rate BRI & 0.25% (383) 0.25% 402
Future salary increase ARIREEEM 0.25% 498 0.25% (512)
Future expected rate of RIGRIES FHEIERRE
return on MPF balances RIEAAEI R 0.25% (1,680) 0.25% 2,015
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26.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)

Long service payments (continued)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a method

that extrapolates the impact on employee benefit obligations as a result of
reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting
period. The sensitivity analysis is based on a change in a significant assumption,
keeping all other assumptions constant. The sensitivity analysis may not be
representative of an actual change in the defined benefit obligations as it is
unlikely that changes in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another.

The total expenses recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
in respect of the plan are as follows:

26. EERANEKE)
KHRG 2 @)

LPRSRESMIIRIBERREMRERRIELS
BEBEESRNBRBOZEERE - KREIFT)
BERBEERREMEL - MEMD PRI AR
TEE - ANE TERRNEEEE AT IR - &
BRESMARBERRAERNZENERIBER ZE

&) o

AR AN A BERTRERNAERIT

Thirteen months ended Year ended

31 March 2018 28 February 2017

B £2018%3A31H HZE2017%2H28H

IE+=@A IHFE

HK$’000 #&# F 5t HK$'000 ¥+ 7T

Current service cost NEAR, % F E RIS AR 175 225
Interest cost FEEH 219 320
Net benefit expenses FREAAZ 394 545
Recognised in administrative expenses BEFATTERER 394 545

The movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations are as
follows:

RERMEHORE2ESWT

At 31 March 2018

At 28 February 2017

A2018F3A31H F201782 A28H
HK$’000 ¥ Tt HK$'000 ¥ F 7t
At beginning of period/year HER 4T 11,240 17,863
Remeasurements: B
- Actuarial changes arising from — AR MEER
experience adjustments BEE (1,570) (5,655)
- Actuarial changes arising from — AR FEBRRE B MELR
demographic assumptions TEE = [©)
Current service cost NEAR, % F E RIS AR 175 225
Interest cost FEEMH 219 320
Benefit paid EATER (298) (1,512)
At end of period/year RER,E R 9,766 11,240
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FA TS ERR I RE (AR)

26. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued) 26. EERANEH(E)
Long service payments (continued) EHIRGS (®)
The movements in the defined benefit obligations and the fair value of plan ATENEBIFEEENATEEZEHNOT
assets are as follows:
Thirteen months ended 31 March 2018 BZE2018F3831HIET+=EA
Cost charged to profit o loss Remeasurement gain in other comprehensive income
HABBEZAE HAGRE2ENEZRERA
Actuarial
changes
Sub-total arising from Sub-total
Net included changesin in other
At1March Service interest in profit Benefit  demographic Experience  comprehensive 31March
2017 cost expense orloss paid  assumptions  adjustments income 2018
fADGz
BR28
R207E A [ A R2018E
3A18 RHBRE FHS  BEBNT EHER 52D SHEE  2ERAMT 3A318
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT AT BT BT AT BT BT BT BRI
Defined benefit obligations RERNEE 11,240 175 29 394 (298) - (1,570) (1,570) 9,766
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26.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued) 26.

Long service payments (continued)

Year ended 28 February 2017

Cost charged to profit or loss

EERANEK(E)
EHRS 2@
HE2017F 28288 FE

Remeasurement gain in other comprehensive income

STABRR A HAGERENE 2 EERA
Actuarial
changes
Sub-total arising from Sub-total
Net included changes in in other
At1March Service interest inprofit Benefit  demographic Experience  comprehensive 28 February
2016 cost expense orloss paid assumptions adjustments income 2017
ARG
#0165 A MEER A ROTE
38R R A FHE BERG iR REZY B 2ERAD 28288
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BT BT AETT BT BT AETT BT BB
Defined benefit obligations ~ FEERIEH 17863 05 30 545 (151) () (565) (56%6) 11240

Expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years are as

follows:

BRI AR FERMER ZHFRA T

At 31 March 2018

At 28 February 2017

20183 A31H 201742 H28H

HK$’000 BTt HK$'000 &% Tt

Within the next 12 months RARRI121EA 438 506
Between 2 and 5 years R2E5F 2 1,663 816
Between 5 and 10 years HSZE10F Z [ 2,177 862
Over 10 years EBBI0F 8,514 3,442
Total expected payments HESER ] 12,792 5626
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26.

1]

>

8

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)

Defined contribution retirement plan

The Group participates in the MPF Scheme under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance and not previously
covered by the defined benefit retirement plan. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent trustees. Under
the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to
a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the plan
vest immediately.

The Group also participates in defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes for all qualifying employees in the PRC, Japan and Malaysia. The
assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of independent trustees.

The Group’s total contributions to these schemes charged to profit or loss
during the thirteen months ended 31 March 2018 amounted to HK$8,120,000
(year ended 28 February 2017: HK$8,119,000) (note 7) representing
contributions payable by the Group to the schemes at the appropriate rates
set by the local government of its subsidiaries.

26.

BERANER (&)

ATEHFGRRETE
NEBIZBEBCRFIMABSTEEIDNRE - A
BIEEB(EBIEANEANEE M2 AT TRIEERT
BRRAKENES - 2EBTESE - BESTE
2 EREHIFENRTE  ABINITAETE -
BiEwES:TE EXhHEEYAELRRBEENRS
ABKIS%AETSIEL 3k - U E ABBERAEE
30,000708 ER o $EHEIRNHRTENSESE -

AEBTRAETE AARSRATZSERNIEER
SHE—EFREHRFRAE - FHEWEERILN AL

ENEEYFRABYSEARERER -

REZE2018FIA3IB L+ =R - NEEE SRS
Fir¥E 2 i 3k 48758 /578 58,120,000 7T (B 2201742 A28
HIEFE : #B#819,0007T) (Fizt7) - WEEIBZEH
MR o B EFRT A E BIE S M B A 78 R i & BT 8
BRI RES -



27.

DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the period are as

27. RIEFRIE

FARERARBEREELSNT

follows:
Withholding
Accelerated/ taxes on
(decelerated) Employee Impairment undistributed Other
tax benefit of profits of temporary
depreciation obligations inventories Taxlosses  subsidiaries differences Total
BE/ HEAR
(HZ) EEEA RABBRH Hity
REnE &% FERE REEFE  RIAGHE - ERMEER B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BT BT BT BT
At 1March 2016 R2016E3A18 (2,014) (2,947) (4,796) (22,385) 13,638 (15,842) (34,346)
Deferred tax charged/(credited) FRMERIRIG,/
to the statement of profit or loss (FIA)ZEEHTE
during the year (note T1) (Brsm) 155 160 1216 (250) - (7,259) (5978)
Deferred tax charged to the EARZERAEER
statement of comprehensive FTAZBIERE
income during the year - 933 - - - - 933
Exchange differences ERER 123 - 339 750 (766) 125 571
At 28 February 2017 and 207528288 %
1March 2017 2017%3A18 (1,736) (1,854) (3,241) (21,885) 12,872 (22,976) (38,820)
Deferred tax charged/(credited) HRRNER IR,/
to the statement of profit or loss (FIA) ZEERTE
during the period (note 11) (FizEm) 297 (16) (825) 1,580 - (2,442) (1,406)
Deferred tax charged to the BRR2ERARR
statement of comprehensive FTAZEIERE
income during the period - 259 - - - - 259
Exchange differences ERER (88) - (242) (1,195) 1,448 (659) (736)
At 31 March 2018 R2018%F3A31A (1,527) (1,611) (4,308) (21,500) 14,320 (26,077) (40,703)
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DEFERRED TAX (continued)

27.

IEFERLIE ()

At 31 March 2018 At 28 February 2017

201853 H31H M201762A28H
HK$°000 &% T T HK$'000 B+ T
Net deferred tax assets recognised in the TEAR B IS AR SRR TR A
consolidated statement of financial FEERIBE EFRE
position (57,784) (55,214)
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in TR A SRR R R R
the consolidated statement of financial EXETIBBEFEE
position 17,081 16,394
(40,703) (38,820)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is
levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in the PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between the PRC and the
jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%.
The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed
by those subsidiaries established in the PRC in respect of earnings generated
from 1 January 2008.

At 31 March 2018, deferred tax has not been recognised for certain
withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings that are
subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries established in the
PRC. In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries
will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future. At 31 March 2018, the
aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with investments

in subsidiaries in the PRC for which deferred tax liabilities have not been
recognised totalled approximately HK$741,878,000 (28 February 2017:
HK$632,449,000).

BIERECZAERE  RPERT 2 ERELE
RSN IR A B B R AR A AIKI0% TSR - 1
TEF2008F1 AR BAER - i AR 20074F12A31H
&2 BF o ek Bl EONEIIR B & e LA (T Bt
Wil - BT AL E R BRI BB R - BhA
BREER T2 HEATTE - EABER% - B
B AR B A R SR R B 2 A FR
200841718 2 2 BAF 5 IE2 B8 S AT
8% -

M20185F3AZNAH AT AEBRFBEKLZMER
RIZADIRABFMAEBINAERI KERBIELES
B BERE  ZEMBRRNA RAGERAKATGED
IRZERF) - FR2018F3A318 - BRI B QR
BEMNE AR ECHBEEENEREE B35
A HE4 BB 741878000 T (201742 288 « B
632,449,0007T) °



27. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 27. EERIEE)

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following TANIEE 2 EERIBEEZLBAR R K T AR
items at applicable tax rates: R
Thirteen months ended Year ended
31 March 2018 28 February 2017
HZ2018F3A831H HZE201742A28H
It+=M@A HFE
HK$°000 &% T T HK$'000 B+ T
Tax losses HIEEE 22,489 17,497
Others Eih 331 -
Deferred tax assets not recognised AERZIBELERIBERE 22,820 17,497
The above unrecognised tax losses arising in Hong Kong and Macau as at 31 M2018F 3 A31H - M _E A EE141,302,0007T (2017
March 2018 of approximately HK$141,302,000 (28 February 2017: Hong Kong F2A288 + HEMBPIEE108,641,0007T) REB K&
and Macau of HK$108,641,000) are available indefinitely for offsetting against SRPEEZ RERTIEES - JERAREREZS
future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred EEBIEEBIB AR R RERMBT] o BRRAERH
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the above items as in the A GEEGRRANAER FMIEE IR - WEF
opinion of the directors, it is not considered probable that taxable profits will RAWARUEFE B HRELETIEEE -

be available against which the above items can be utilised.

There are no income tax conseguences attaching to the payment of dividends AN EEREIREE 2 AR B IS K ATSH o
by the Company to its shareholders.
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28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. R
At 31 March 2018 At 28 February 2017
7201853 H31H M201762A28H
HK$’000 ¥ F 7t HK$'000 BT 7T
Authorised: VETE
1,500,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.25  1,500,000,000 & & i {745 &

each 025702 Eim% 375,000 375,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRARE
246,836,860 (28 February 2017: 210,336,221) 246,836,860% (201742 H288 :

ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each 210,336,221/ ) R E B S

0257t 2 Eidmi% 61,709 52,584
A summary of the movements in the Company’s share capital is as follows: RNATIRRAREBBENT -
Number of
shares in issue Share capital
BITROEE ;&N
HK$'000 B F T
At 1March 2016, 28 February 2017 and 201653 A18 ~ 201792 H288 K&

1 March 2017 201793818 210,336,221 52,584
Bonus issue (note 1) ATAREETT (P EET) 35,055,657 8,764
Scrip issue (note 2) R BB (FEE2) 1,444,982 361
At 31 March 2018 201853 H31H 246,836,860 61,709

Note 1: A bonus issue of one bonus share for every six existing shares held by members PFRET « ATAR BRI TIZA 2017487 A27 B A A R R A it A2 f%
on the register of members of the Company on 27 July 2017 was made (the “Bonus REFARE R ER AR (T4IRREETT])
Issue™), at an issue price of HK$0.25 per bonus share, resulting in the issue of FRAIEITEEABE0.25T » @ 1TIRNEE B
35,055,657 shares for a total cash consideration of HK$8,764,000. 35,055,6571%  #BIR & X(8 £ 18,764,0007T ©

Note 2: The scrip issue included the scrip dividends for 2016/17 final dividend and 2017/18 MFE2 : BN B3E2016/17 R HARR 8 A K2 2017/185 — X AR Hf

first interim dividend, resulting in the issue of 810,976 shares for a consideration
of HK$203,000 and 634,006 shares for a consideration of HK$158,000
respectively.

[ 162

ARS8 ° 2016/17 R EAAR S4B B TARID 2 B /3810,976/% -
@38 & R (B BB HE203,0007T A K2017/1858 — X
HARR B A8 ETTRRD 2X B 2634,0068% - BIRENREA
7 #5158,0007T ©



29.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme was adopted by shareholders of the
Company on 26 November 2003 (“2003 Share Option Scheme”). The purpose
of the 2003 Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives or rewards to
participants thereunder for their contribution to the Group and/or to enable
the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract human
resources that are valuable to the Group and any entity in which the Group
holds any equity interest (“Invested Entity”).

Under the 2003 Share Option Scheme, the directors of the Company are
authorised, at their discretion, at any time following the date of the adoption
of the 2003 Share Option Scheme but before the tenth anniversary of that
date, to offer options to any person belonging to any of the following classes
of participants to subscribe for shares of the Company:

- any employee (whether full time or part time employee, including
any executive directors but not any non-executive director) of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

- any non-executive director (including independent non-executive
directors) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity;

- any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity;

- any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;

- any person or entity that provides research, development or
technological support or other services to the Group or any Invested
Entity; and

- any shareholder or any member of the Group or any Invested Entity or
any holder of any securities issued by any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity.

29.

BB 8

NN 2 BB HER B 20031 A 26 B AR AR
B ([2003F EEREHERT B 1) » 2003 F BB A MR BIAY
BREA T RESEESETHNREEHAEEN
BEN, SRAEAEEEABELRRBESEE U
REAEBEERENEE([WILEEE ] RRER
AT o

RIF2003FBAEA B - AR EFEREATRBR
RAM2003F B AERT &l 2 AR BZ A EIZ S HAFA
ZEMAIRE - MER T2 EEERINALTZL
IR R R IR BB AR AE

- ARAF - BEEAHEARREMRRE TR
FEE(THREERRBES - REEMAH
TEEETEEERENTES)

—  ARF - HEAMBARSEMRREERD
EMEATER (BRI IFITES)

—  REEERKE R BREARIRE BB ER
B RTGHRER :

-  AEESEMEREBENEFAES

- AARREREARIEEERIERTR  BER
Bt BN MRS ERALTRER - R

- ARESEMRRE BB ISR
AR AEE T E QRS MR E
ERNENEETESOIBA
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The exercise price of options is the highest of the nominal value of the shares,
the closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the date of offer of
the grant and the average closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of offer of the
grant. An offer of an option shall be deemed to have been accepted within
28 days from the date of offer upon acceptance of the option duly signed by
the grantee together with a remittance of HK$1. The maximum number of
securities available for issue under the 2003 Share Option Scheme shall not
exceed 10% of the issued capital of the Company. The maximum entitlement
of each grantee in any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the ordinary shares
inissue of the Company. The option period will not be more than ten years
from the date of grant of the option and the Company’s board of directors
may at its discretion determine the minimum period for which the option has
to be held or other restriction before the exercise of the subscription right
attaching thereon.

On 1March 2013, 15,850,000 options were granted to the directors, employees
and service providers of the Company and its subsidiaries pursuant to the
2003 Share Option Scheme in respect of their contributions to the strategic
development of the Group. The exercise price of the options is HK$4.13 per
ordinary share of the Company (the “Share”), which is the highest of (i) the
closing price of HK$4.13 per Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheet on the date of grant; and (ii) the average closing price of
HK$4.08 per Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets
for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of HK$0.25 per Share on the date of grant.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at
shareholders’ meetings.

As the fair value of the services received from service providers cannot be
estimated, the Group measured the value by reference to the fair value of
share options granted.

29.

BRESEIE)

BRENTEERROMNEEE - RONBEREZLD
BT B HEBZSR G mE LR O REERAE
ZRE T B HIR LA 2 X AR RS E FIH YT
E-EPNRSEE  ERTHEBRELEA288/R &
BB B TTEE SR e SN TE 2535 0 B AR 2 4 B
HEWER - BIRIEBREERIER - BRIR2003F B
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BTE - ARREFGANBERELEEEITERBER
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BAEKRRAREREBRBE4ZT(TRG])  BEE
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29.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
The 2003 Share Option Scheme expired on 25 November 2013.

The exercise price of the share options outstanding as at the end of the
reporting period is as follows:

IERAERTEI(E)
2003 FEERAEEI R R2013FEN A 258 @i ©
REREEIR S AR TE B IR TEER T -

Weighted average

exercise price Number of options

INFEFHITEE iR S

HK$ per share B H 1 (000) (F)

At 1March 2016 HA2016F3 A1H 413 9,200
Lapsed during the year FRB KK 4713 (3,100)
At 28 February 2017 and 1 March 2017 7201742 A28 % 201743 A1H 413 6,100
Adjustment during the period HR AR 3.54 1,016
Lapsed during the period BB R 354 (513)
At 31 March 2018 HA2018F3 A31H 3.54 6,603

As a result of the Bonus Issue, adjustments were made to the exercise price
and the number of shares to be allotted and issued upon full exercise of
subscription rights attaching to the outstanding share options with effect
from 4 August 2017. The exercise price per share indicated in the above table
is the exercise price per share after the said adjustments were made on 4
August 2017. Prior to the adjustments, the exercise price per share in relation
to share options granted on 1 March 2013 was HK$4.13.

During the thirteen months ended 31 March 2018, 513,000 options were lapsed
due to the resignation of certain employees (year ended 28 February 2017:
3,100,000).

During the thirteen months ended 31 March 2018 and the year ended 28
February 2017, no share option was granted. There was no equity-settled
share option expense during the Period (year ended 28 February 2017:
reversed expense of HK$1,450,000 as a result of changes in estimation of the
number of share options expected to vest).

In 2016, the Company adopted a new share option scheme (the "2016 Share
Option Scheme") and as at 31 March 2018, no share option has been granted
under the 2016 Share Option Scheme since it has been adopted.

AR T - MARTTEBREZITEER RZER
PRREATHIRIB I 2 M1 TE RS TR B R BT 2 8D
HECWFAE - B2017FE8A4B AR - RATRFTI
2 ERITHEBRAN2017E8 A48 A% 2 BIRITE
B o RFAER - BER2013F3 18 ®E 2 BB E
2 EBRITEERBEEAIZT -

HRAETE TREZ=2018F3 4318 1L+ =18 A HiR ek
B - 513,000 B AR E R (B 2 20179F2 A28H LE
FJE 1 3100,000) ©

201843 A31H 1+ =& A BN 201792 288 1E
FEANWER T ERE - AEEREEAHE T ET
MBREER(BZE201742 828R HFE - midMast
TEESEEHERESE B - @EE1,450,0007T2
FEAREER)

PR20164F » AN BHR AT 0 fE i =+ 81 ([ 20165 fB X

EE D) MEE2018F3A3IHIET=EA » AREHE
2016 F B AR AT 81 T I f 4% BT (] BE AR -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The fair values and exercise periods of the share options outstanding at the
end of the reporting period are as follows:

Exercise period

29.

BRESEIE)

R E RS ARTTRBERE N TEERITEA
™

Fair value per option Number of options granted

1T{E HA FHEOENATEE BRI ES B
‘000 (F)

1 September 2014-29 February 2020 201449 A1H-20204E2 A29H HK$1.62 B #$1.627T 990
1March 2015-29 February 2020 201543 A18-202042 A298 HK$1.62 B #$1.627T 990
1March 2016-29 February 2020 2016543 A18-202042 5298 HK$1.62 B #$1.627T 1,981
1March 2017-29 February 2020 201753 A18-202042 A29H HK$1.61 BEE$1.617T 2,642
6,603

The fair value of equity-settled share options was estimated as at the date of
grant using a Binomial Model, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. The following table lists the inputs to
the model used:

Dividend yield (%) A% B3R (%)

Expected volatility (%) TEHR IR 18 (%)
Risk-free interest rate (%) LB FI 2R (%)

Expected life of options (years)
Weighted average share price (HK$ per share)

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

The expected life of the options is based on the historical data over the past 4
years and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns that may occur.
The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility

is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual
outcome.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company had
6,603,000 (2017: 6,100,000) share options outstanding under the 2003 Share
Option Scheme, which represented approximately 2.7% (2017: 2.9%) of the
Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

TERH B IR BUB ()
I RE (BB )

BERENATEER B | HEEERRFE - I
ERBIEF HBRE 2GRN - TRIIETEE
AT 2 8%

3.41
51.21
0.85

7

413

P b B e 2 B s B AR EERE -

BREA M RRBEBEAFOELEIEHER - KD
B R TT B IR VAT REAE R - TR BR IR BUR R IE 52
RIERARBEZEERER - RURERER -

RAB IS ME AL MR - AR RIRIE2003F B ERT
B35 8 AR AT A B AR 42 56,603,00017 (20174F -
6100,000) * IEARRBEEZHEEITRMDHI27%
(20174 : 2.9%) °



30.

31.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for the
current period and the prior year are presented in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on pages 84 to 85 of the financial statements.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

(@

®

(©

)

The Group entered into banking facility arrangements with a bank
pursuant to which the Group’s land and buildings in Hong Kong with
an aggregate carrying value as at 31 March 2018 of HK$49,899,000 (28
February 2017: HK$51,864,000) were mortgaged by way of a first legal
charge, as security for, inter alia, all obligations and liabilities, actual or
contingent, from time to time owing by the Group to that bank (note
14).

The Group entered into a subscription agreement with two institutional
investors for senior secured notes issued by a subsidiary in Hong Kong,
pursuant to which certain inventories (i.e. up to an aggregate book
value of HK$200,000,000 of raw materials, work-in-progress and
finished goods) of such subsidiary in Hong Kong were pledged by way
of a first floating charge, as security for, inter alia, all obligations and
liabilities, actual or contingent, from time to time owing by the Group
to the two institutional investors.

The Group did not have any gold loans as at 31 March 2018. As at 28
February 2017, time deposits of HK$27,022,000 had been pledged
to secure certain gold loan contracts outstanding at the end of the
reporting period (note 23).

As at 31 March 2018, time deposits of the Group denominated in

RMB and totalling equivalent to HK$52,500,000 (28 February 2017:
HK$117,307,000) have been pledged to secure standby letters of credit
relating to a cross border treasury arrangement (note 20).

30.

31.

(G4

REEZ R BRANRATEEE 2 ZBFIEN UG
WRFCANSS A AR BERNA -

BERA

(@

®

(©

)

AEEE BRI VRTEERERE &
bR - AEBUE —EAEREN AR BAE
EERBR T RIEFR2018F3 A3H LK
E{E 5 #49,899,0007 (201792 A28H : B
51,864,000 ) EIRHF - LAMEA(EARaE) A%
E RS ERZAREITZMEERRHEAE
MBI o (HiEE14) ©

AEBEMEEIBIREEFT Y —EARE RS
LB BA—EBHBARMERTELGERA
T BT H - AEEUE—FEHFRLMN A
XEEESNBARETFE(BEAETZR
7 #200,000,0007T 2 B~ FER MR MR
)RR - DUEA (B RIB) AEETELER
ZMEREBREEZMTBEER B RERE
TSI -

R2018F3A31H - AEBUTESSHESL -
201742 A288 -+ ##27,022,0007T 2 F #i7F
FIEETRBEPRZECTHESHZIRTR
(FfF5E23) -

20183 A3H - NEBEAREIEASEM K
HEE R E#52500,0007T (201724288 : &
#117,307,0007T) 2 & BifF sRE AR - LAEE
RITE L ERERREEEN S22 A (KT
20) °
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OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 32, KREHEERHE
As lessee AR A
The Group leases a number of properties under operating lease arrangements. AEFPELTETHHAEE T YWY o W ECR
Leases for properties are negotiated for terms ranging from one to three BRI EABNT —2=F WA REMERHELK
years, with options to renew the leases when all terms are renegotiated. Lease HERIEEN - (KEFERm 2B RTE AR AR
payments are usually adjusted to reflect market rentals upon renegotiation of i °
the terms of the leases.
Certain lease arrangements have been subject to contingent rent by “?fﬁ%??ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ’\ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂWiﬂ EE PNt
reference to monthly turnover throughout the leasing periods. The minimum c UM AEEHAREKREBEHREE -
guaranteed rental has been used to arrive at the commitments below.
As at 31 March 2018, the Group had total future minimum lease payments MR2018F3A3H  IRIBETAI RN G EHER HF1E
under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as follows: 5 AEBE 2 RREEEENFRBENT -
At 31 March 2018 At 28 February 2017
A2018F3A31H FA201742 A28H
HK$’000 %% F 5t HK$'000 ¥+ 7T
Within one year 147 152,651 181228
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F2EEESF(BIEEREME) 143,387 177,703
296,038 358,931
COMMITMENTS 33 R

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had the capital commitments for leasehold

improvements as follows:

M2018FF3A31H - AEEFBYE - BE LERHEHNER
EEWT ¢

At 31 March 2018 At 28 February 2017

720183 A 31H 201792 H28H

HK$’000 BTt HK$ 000 BT 7t

Contracted but not provided for B4 - BRIERE 1,395 -




34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)  Inaddition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions with related

34,

BEALXRS

(@ KBRERAPBHREREGEBOFHRZZHI - A
EEREZE2018FIAINB LT =18 A FHEESEA

parties during the thirteen months ended 31 March 2018: THEITUTRS -
Thirteen months ended Year ended
31 March 2018 28 February 2017
H 220183 A31H HZE2017F2H28H
IE+=1EA IEFE
HK$’°000 B ¥ Tt HK$'000 & #E Tt
() Purchase from related companies HEEEARIEE 486,669 359,622
(i) Sales to arelated company HET— Fﬁ ER 517,895 368,313
Balances due to these related companies amounted to HK$72,858,000 FEAS DA _E B8 R B3R IE A 7 72,858,000 7T
(28 February 2017: HK$119,942,000). (2017427280 %%1 9,942,0007T)

These related companies are fellow subsidiaries of Rosy Blue Overseas
Holding Limited, a preference shareholder of Partner Logistics Limited
(“Partner Logistics”), whose board of directors is controlled by Mr.
Tommy Tse, the ultimate controlling party and substantial shareholder
of the Company.

(i)

@iv)

(i) Mr. Tommy Tse, the spouse of Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie (“Ms.
Annie Yau”), the Executive Director of the Company, has been
employed by a subsidiary of the Company as the Deputy Chief
Executive Officer of the Group; (ii) Mr. Tse Sui Luen ("Mr. Tse
Senior”), the father of Mr. Tommy Tse and father-in-law of Ms.
Annie Yau, has been employed by a subsidiary of the Company as
the Founder. During the thirteen months ended 31 March 2018,
remuneration of HK$3,285,000 (year ended 28 February 2017:
HK$1,907,000) and HK$1,815,000 (year ended 28 February 2017:
HK$1,599,000) were paid to Mr. Tommy Tse and Mr. Tse Senior,
respectively.

No notional charge of equity-settled share option expense (year
ended 28 February 2017: HK$779,000 and HK$515,000) was
accrued for share options granted to Mr. Tommy Tse and Mr. Tse
Senior, respectively.

PA FR85E R R ARosy Blue Overseas Holdings
Limited (& APartner Logistics Umited(FPartner
Logistics |) BB R ) 2 A RIE A
Partner LogisticsE & FRFlEE St EE %'J
BARDBIGEIERA T AR RARD TE%HX%

(i)

@iv)

() E B A ANRE N —RHHB A
BT ARITHAE  #HEEBLE AR
TEEPLHELLT 2B ¢ (i) B
EEWARNBET—HRBRARETAE
REBAFA - SEB L £ AHEEL
EZRBENZEZLZRS - REZR
201843 A318 [F+ =1 B A% Bl S+
& 5t A B 153,285,000 7T (B = 20174E2
A28B LEE : B11907,0007T) K &t
I Bk S A 5 151,815,000 7T (B = 2017482
F28B8 IEFE : #%1599,0007T ) & B

NEBRAHEY ERAHAEER L E R
HImBTERDEREZBIREEY
LARRERAE 2 BB (Bl 2201742
A28HIEFE : 779,000 kB
515,0007T) °
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

@

®

(continued)

The above transactions in respect of items (i), (i) and (iv) were not
continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the transactions
were carried out on normal commercial terms and in the ordinary
course of business.

The related party transactions in respect of items (iii)(i) and (iii)(ii)
above constitute continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Since the amount in respect of item (iii)
(ii) is below de minimis threshold for the purpose of Rule 14A.76 of the
Listing Rules, item (iii)(ii) is fully exempt from shareholders’ approval,
annual review and all disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules.

34,

BEALRS(E)

@

()

FHEGD - (DFIGVIER HIRE ETRAIZE14A
BWTEN —ERERERD - ARREFR
R ZERSHEAREBBIETRESEERK
FHETT o

FHUIB H (iDG) and (iDGD.Z BBEA L X SRR
LETARRIEUAEMATE 2 IFBERAER S o Nl
EIESAFER - BRIEAR GBS FEER
EWRAIE4A TR R TARKFE - M&IE
Bain(DERERRIE - FEHEZ - kLW
RAZBERTE -

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group: b) ZAEEFTZEEAENS :

Thirteen months ended Year ended

31March 2018 28 February 2017

B £2018%F3A31H HZE201792H288

IE+=@A IHFE

HK$°000 &% T T HK$'000 BT+ T

Short term employee benefits EHHEEEA 15,034 12,103

Equity-settled share option expense ARG #ERE S 2 FERRE B - 592

Post-employment benefits ERAZE 60 59
Total compensation paid to key TNFEEEEAEN

management personnel B & 4258 15,094 12,754

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 9 to the
financial statements.

BEEMSE—FFBHRI BN o



35.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 35.

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at

the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Financial assets

MGEE

BER DB 2ERMTA

RREHR SRz ERTAKREERT

Loans and receivables

BRREWEER
At 31 March 2018 At 28 February 2017
A2018F3A31H 20172 H28H
HK$’000 %% F 5t HK$'000 ¥+ 7T
Trade receivables FEUBR X 189,218 235,709
Financial assets included in prepayments, BEEEAR - ke REAELY
deposits and other receivables RNz BEE 144,870 146,301
Time deposits TEEFER 52,500 166,801
Cash and cash equivalents RERBELEED 268,073 323,657
654,661 872,468
Financial liabilities BisaE
At 31 March 2018 A20185F38318
Financial liabilities
at fair value through  Financial liabilities
profit or loss at amortised cost Total
BRAVEE REE
RIEREZ R AR A
MEas AERZHKEE &
HK$’000 B¥ Tt HK$’000 B¥ Tt HK$’000 B¥F ¢t
Trade payables FERTERR - 274,293 274,293
Financial liabilities included in other  B&fEHMENRLEERH
payables and accruals ZH%aE - 129,355 129,355
Interest-bearing bank and other FHESBITREMER
borrowings - 785,535 785,535
Finance lease payables ERmEREE - 1,323 1,323
- 1,190,506 1,190,506
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)

Financial liabilities
At 28 February 2017

35. RERDEZERMITAME)

MsaE

H2017492A28H

Financial liabilities
at fair value through

Financial liabilities

profit or loss at amortised cost Total
BN EE NEE
R pd REESHA AN
Atk ARZ BB E e
HK$'000 BEFIT  HKS000 BETFIT  HK$000 B FIT
Trade payables FERTERRR - 316,392 316,392
Financial liabilities included in other B E{EE M E R LEF &R
payables and accruals ZHEaE - 151,625 151,625
Gold loans H2HEE 43,523 - 43,523
Interest-bearing bank and other FTEERTTRHAER
borrowings - 979,377 979,377
43,523 1,447,394 1,490,917

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial instruments,
other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably approximate to fair

values, are as follows:

36.

BETHREEABMER

EMTAZAFEERIFEESR

FEEBEZVBTAN

REENP B TEZREEEE A TEERT

Carrying amounts Fair values
IREE NFEE
At 31 March 2018 At 28 February 2017 At 31 March 2018 At 28 February 2017
7201838318 A201742H28H 1201838318 7220174 2H28H
HK$°000 ¥ Tt HKY000 BB TIr  HK$'000 BEETFT  HK$000 BT T
Financial liabilities BkaE
Gold loans =eHE - 43523 - 43523
Interest-bearing bank and FHEIRITR
other borrowings HiER 785,535 979,377 785,535 979,377
Finance lease payables ENRERE 1,323 - 1,323 -
786,858 1,022,900 786,858 1,022,900




36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy:

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the

Group’s financial instruments:

Liabilities measured at fair value:
As at 28 February 2017

36. TRMTAZAFEERATFEESRE

NHEES

A

TREVAEENEHTAZ A FEEFESHN

BEAFEEFECZAE
72017524 28H

Fair value measurement using

KAz ATEEHE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active markets observable inputs  unobservable inputs
ERMIZWRE EAUBREE SKREUBRHE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(#&3N) (#5R12) (4 5R13) e
HK$'000 BETFIT  HK$000 BETFIL  HK$000 BT  HK$000 AT
Financial liabilities B aE
Gold loans H5olHE 43,523 - - 43523
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: BATEEREZAE
As at 31 March 2018 74201838 31H
Fair value measurement using
ATEEHESR
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active markets  observable inputs unobservable inputs
ERTISHRE EATEREE EABUBRIE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(4% 501) (#&%512) (4% 513) et
HK$°000 B¥F T  HK$'000 B¥ Tt HK$000 B¥ Tt  HK$000 BH#T T
Financial liabilities MgasE
Interest-bearing bank and 5T BERTT R EME TR
other borrowings - - 785,535 785,535
Finance lease payables ENRERE = = 1,323 1,323
- - 786,858 786,858
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy: (continued)
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: (continued)
As at 28 February 2017

Quoted prices

in active markets
JERTISHRE
(Level T)

(&5

HK$'000 A% F7T

36.

EMTEZAFEERAFEESRE)

AFEEEER @)
BRATEEFRECAE (B
201792 F28H

Fair value measurement using

ATBEFESR
Significant Significant
observable inputs  unobservable inputs
BRABREE SAHABREE

(Level 2) (Level 3) Total

(#&512) (#&513) e

HK$'000 /&% 7T

HK$'000 B#FIT  HK$000 B# T T

Financial liabilities BgaE
Interest-bearing bank and s ESRITREMERK
other borrowings -

- 979,377 979,377

During the thirteen months ended 31 March 2018, there were no transfers of
fair value measurements between Level 1and Level 2 and no transfers into or
out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial liabilities (year ended 28
February 2017: Nil).

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash equivalents,
time deposits, trade receivables, trade payables, financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables and financial liabilities included
in other payables and accruals approximate to their carrying amounts largely
due to short term maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the Chief Financial Officer is
responsible for determining the policies and procedures for their fair value
measurement of financial instruments. The finance department reports
directly to the Chief Financial Officer. At the end of each reporting period, the
finance team analyses the movements in the values of financial instruments
and determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is
reviewed and approved by the Chief Financial Officer.

EHZE2018F3 A318 1+ =@ A BAT #RAFEES
EZUBEERBANRER2ZMHEE - RE AR
AR (EHE201762A288 1L FfE : ) -

ERECHERELREEEY TR - BUER
Ko MRS BRERMNK  REREBERKRZ
MBEEMBEAEMENRREABERZHHER
ZAHEEBEREEMRES  TE2ARZETERR
EHREIE -

HARENEFEYBEETENVBEGaEET S
BMTANAHEESEZBENER - BEEREER
&R BEERR - EFRREHAR - UBEES
TeRTANEEZPMET HERMBOTEEHIE -
MERE BRI BEE 2 BEAUAE -



36.

37.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 36.

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount
at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between
willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings have been calculated by discounting the expected future cash
flows using rates currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit
risk and remaining maturities. The Group’s own non-performance risk for the
non-current portion of finance lease payables and interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings as at 31 March 2018 was assessed to be insignificant. The fair
values of gold loans are based on open market prices of gold.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 37.

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings, finance lease payables, gold loans, time deposits and
cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose of these financial instruments
is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables,
which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest rate
risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and commodity price risk.
The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below.

EMTAZAFEERATFEESR(E

BHEELBRZAFEE  RTRAIGREE -
TAETERNENRX ST ZTAAIIBZGBEA
IR o ARt A FEERER T AT IERERR

FFERITRAMERAIERBE BTN AT EBTD

HRARBHELER - FERRE RFIRT AT AR

HHMEGARKRERE © $§%§|E/\\2O 8FIA3IBFLIE

NREREMIERB MO EE 2 TNELA R T 7=

JEEKX - REBR2018FIAIEREMNREHERNE

MBEOEE 2 TEAREET hAIFEXR - ZeH
AT EEDRBERRTS 2 BEEE

SRS ETE B ERBER

FEBZTZ2EMTAREFSRITREMER - &

NREHRE EelE THERIASEREEE
Mo WESRMTAZIEMENIRARBEZEBEE
Be  ASERETHEMMBEEREE  WEEK
BERMEE 2 RN S B IR -
ERMITAMELAZTEZRBANXER « INERMR
EERR RPERBREERERER EESF

BEI A& TSPl B IR B IR F R < BUK -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Group’s long term debt obligations with a floating interest
rate.

The following sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that change
in interest rates had occurred at the year end date and had been applied

to the exposure to interest rates for financial instruments in existence at

that date. A 1% increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate

risk internally to key management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 1% higher/lower and all other variables were

held constant, the Group’s profit for the thirteen months ended 31 March
2018 and the retained profits as of 31 March 2018 would decrease/increase
by HK$5,850,000 (year ended 28 February 2017: decrease/increase by
HK$6,734,000). This is mainly attributed to the Group’s exposure to interest
rates on its variable rate borrowings.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures mainly arising from sales
and purchases by operating units in currencies other than the units’ functional
currencies. The currency giving rise to this risk is primarily US$. The Group
does not hold or issue any derivative financial instruments for trading
purposes or to hedge against fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. The
Group mitigates this risk by conducting the sales and purchases transactions
in the same currency, whenever possible.

In the opinion of the directors, US$ is reasonably stable under the Linked
Exchange Rate System with HK$ and accordingly, the Company does not
have any significant foreign exchange risk.

37.

B E TR B R R BR ()

FEER
AEBEBHNOZFENEG B2 REER 2 MR EH)im
AETISFIRERE o

AT 2 SO ST Ty AR RIS BB s B B T
7+ WERARKA EHENIETAREEY 2 F%E
B - EREBERABNHRRFIEERE - 5
THERESNS TR B - MERERAE LA
TR AT B BB MR -

WF =30, THIE - TATA E it & SRS T

EEEZE2018EIANE L+ =@ A 2B RHN20184
3AAZRBEFIER L, 15 075,850,000 (F
Z20176 2R 28 IEFE B I INAEREE,734,000
TL) s WHEBRRALERE ZEEEMEHZF

7 B2 48R
R o

SN e
AEBZZHINERBREEREEBEMAREE
BNz EHETZEE - SRUARZEREIZ2R
R AEBEWEBARBETEMNITEMB LA - A
FEBERBRETERFB MG - ARBEERAER R
BN TAFE—EBETEEI SRR

BEERA ERNBTNBRERGIET  XTREE
IE - Bt - ARFDRAEARRINERR -



37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s exposure to credit risk mainly arises from granting credit to
customers in the ordinary course of operations. The Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk on recognised financial assets is limited to their
carrying amount at the end of the reporting period.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group reviews the
recoverability of receivables individually and collectively periodically and at
the end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment loss is
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the management of the Group
considers that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced. The Group

has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a
number of counterparties and customers.

The credit risks for cash and cash equivalents of the Group and the Company
are also regarded as immaterial as they are deposited with major banks and
other financial institutions located in Hong Kong and the PRC.

The Group does not hold other material collateral over the financial assets.
None of the financial assets of the Company are secured by collateral or other
credit enhancements. The credit policies have been followed by the Group
since prior years and are considered to have been effective in limiting the
Group’s exposure to credit risk to a desirable level.

Liquidity risk

The Group is exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement of trade
payables, finance lease payables, gold loans and interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings, and also in respect of its cash flow management. The
Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements, its compliance
with lending covenants and its relationship with its banks to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

37.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 37. MBEREEBEERIGEE)
(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) MENVE 2Rk ()
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of the RIREHK - AEFIRBFTOERITIRFBTE 28
reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as BRBEZEEBERIOT ¢
follows:
On demand
or less than 1year 1to 2 years 2to 5 years Total
REREES
1EUT 1226 2E55F FEEL
At 31 March 2018 R2018FE3A31H HK$’000 BTt  HK$000 B¥ Tt  HK$000 B¥EFT  HK$'000 BT T
Trade payables FERTRRFR 274,293 - - 274,293
Financial liabilities included B & fE Lt FE R R FEAH &
in other payables and Rzisas
accruals 129,355 - - 129,355
Interest-bearing bank and  FTERITREMER
other borrowings 411,229 116,640 323,653 851,522
Finance lease payables ERERE 699 699 - 1,398
815,576 17,339 323,653 1,256,568
On demand
or less than 1year 1to 2 years 2to5years Total
REREEN
LR 1226 2ESEF “azh
At 28 February 2017 201742 A28 H HK$'000 BT HK$000 BETFIL  HK$000 BT  HK$000 AT
Trade payables FERTBRER 316,392 - - 316,392
Financial liabilities included B & fE EL M E T R JEFH &
in other payables and Rz aE
accruals 151,625 - - 151,625
Gold loans =2HEE 44,267 - - 44,267
Interest-bearing bank and  FTERITREMER
other borrowings 310,302 335,729 440,293 1,086,324
822,586 335,729 440,293 1,598,608




37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s term loan with a repayment on demand
clause in the amount of HK$75,500,000 (28 February 2017: HK$220,625,000)
was repayable within one year in accordance with the terms of the loan. The
loan agreement contained a repayment on demand clause giving the bank
the unconditional right to call in the loan at any time and therefore, for the
purpose of the above maturity profile, the total amount was classified as “on
demand”.

Notwithstanding the above clause, the directors do not believe that these
bank loans will be called in its entirety within 12 months, and they consider
that these borrowings will be repaid in accordance with the maturity dates
as set out in the loan agreements. This evaluation was made considering:
the financial position of the Group at the date of approval of the financial
statements; the Group’s compliance with the loan covenants; the lack

of events of default, and the fact that the Group has made all previously
scheduled repayments on time.

Commodity price risk

The Group is engaged in the sales of jewellery including gold products. The
gold market is influenced by global as well as regional supply and demand
conditions. A significant decline in prices of gold could adversely affect the
Group’s financial performance. In order to reduce the gold price risk, the
Group used gold loan contracts to reduce its exposure to fluctuations in
gold prices on gold inventory in the prior year. The gold price exposures are
monitored by management.

No gold loans were outstanding as at 31 March 2018. In the prior year, for the
gold loan contracts, assuming that the amount outstanding at the end of the
reporting period was outstanding for the whole year, a 10% increase/decrease
in market prices of gold at 28 February 2017 would have decreased/increased
the Group’s profit before tax by HK$4,352,000. The sensitivity to the market
prices of gold used is considered reasonable, with all other variables held
constant. This information has not taken into account potential financial
impact on other financial statement line items.

37.

MR ETE B R R BR ()

mENE & Rk ()

R2018F3A3NH  REBIEEREZKERZEH
B ASE R 75500,000 T (201742 A28H « A
220,625,0007T) + JHIRBERMIERER —FANE
B o ZERWMEeSREREEGR  WTRTEK
EREFIBERS EREBZER - At H BB R 3%
BRZBSBEIBAMEEREE] -

BE LRGET  EFELTRBRZSRITERBR12E
AARER2EMEE - MAMBMRRELEREIER
HRERBHANIHAEE - WARCEEBUATS
B ARERABMBHRRZER ZH IR AEE
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o B E R

REBRZHENRE OEESER - FEMHEE
AR R SKIER T E - SR ERAKATEYEA
EEH 7 HBRRABER TN E - AREEERERE
B ARERLEECRAESHEANNURESESE
BRBEHESFECRBAE - EEESERESE
1% 2 BB ARG

MR2018F3AINBAEENYEESHEER - gt LF
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholders’
value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in

light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders
or issue new shares. The Group has been imposed with several capital
requirements from banks and under convertible bonds on the Group’s equity
to total assets ratio, net gearing ratio and consolidated tangible net worth. As
of 31 March 2018 and 28 February 2017, the Group has complied with these
capital requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the thirteen months ended 31 March
2018 and the year ended 28 February 2017.

The Group monitors capital using net gearing ratio, which is total borrowings
less cash and cash equivalents and time deposits divided by total equity of the
Group. Total borrowings include gold loans, interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings and finance lease payables. The Group’s policy is to maintain the
net gearing ratio not greater than 80%. The net gearing ratios as at the end of
the current period and prior year were as follows:

37.

B E TR B R R BR ()

CENg:
ARBEARER, B ERARMARBHREEE
Bzie - LB AALLE - UXHHEBR
SR 2 (B -

NEBEREEARZERE - WIRKLEAR L EE) X8R
BEZRBRBEHEEELRE - AESHBREAARSE
o AREEFEARAREIRN ZKRE  BREEAT
PRER B BT THIAR - NEEMEFERITTHAE @G NG
FERBE  BREAEECZESHEESELR - A&
LR REEBREEFE - R2018F 3 A31H K20174F
2A28H  AEEFAEMEERRTE - REIE20184F3
A3BIE+=A B201742 8288 1L E - BAREIR
MBS - BURZURIEH EE (L -

AEBEMNBFRALTERELS  AKENEEE
RAENREEEBMREHER  RAERARE - &
EEBEESMEE  FAERTRAMERRENRE
HE - REEZBETEFHFRELETZR80% -
RAEE R EFERFEELRMT

At 31 March 2018 At 28 February 2017

A2018F3A31H F201742 A28H

HK$’000 % ¥ F 5t HK$'000 & ¥EF 7t

Total equity i Eny ] 1,152,814 974,282
Total borrowings less cash and cash BEBERESMESESEY R

equivalents and time deposits TEHIE R 466,285 532,442

Debt to equity ratio FEELE 40% 55%




38.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

(a)

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company

at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

38, BABMREmR

(@ ARFNFBRRBERHREHROT -

At 31 March 2018

At 28 February 2017

20183 A31H 201742 H28H
HK$’000 ¥ T T HK$ 000 BT 7t
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB MR 14 271
Interests in subsidiaries iESpNGIE £ 813,202 833,695
813,216 833,966
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepayments and deposits AR REe 205 1,591
Cash and cash equivalents R MBS EY 328 314
533 1,905
CURRENT LIABILITIES RENEE
Other payables and accruals HAbE R B E A (2,265) (2,658)
(2,265) (2,658)
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES RENEEFE (1,732) (753)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERREBARE
LIABILITIES 811,484 833,213
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FEREBAE
Deferred tax liabilities REFRIEAE (70) (48)
(70) (48)
NET ASSETS BEFE 811,414 833,165
EQUITY s
Issued capital BEITRRAS (61,709) (52,584)
Reserves & (749,705) (780.,581)
TOTAL EQUITY e 4R (811,414) (833,165)

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 21 June

2018.

Yau On Yee, Annie BB Z2 & )
Ng Yi Kum, Estella (L= )
)
)

Directors %

EEEN201856 A21BAZEI FF AT T2 o
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38.  STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (continued) ~ 38.  EFFEiRREREK (&)
(b) A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: (b) AREZHEBENT :
Equity
Share component of
Share option  Contributed convertible Retained Proposed
premium reserve surplus bonds Profits dividend Total
ARRES
REGEE  BRERE EfRs ERBH REEF BRRE Pkl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
At 1March 2016 #2016%3 818 123,365 17,169 14,770 8,600 660,483 5,469 829,856
Total comprehensive loss for ~ ZEEZEER
the year s - - - - (33,694) - (33,694)
Dividends paid during the year ~ RERNE RS - - - - (3155) (5,469) (8,624)
Proposed final 2016/17 dividend  #87E2015/16 K £
(note 12) &8 (FEE12) - - - - (7,888) 7,888 -
Early redemption of convertible 12 REEI Ak
bonds & - - - (8,600) 3,093 - (5507)
Equity-settled share-option DAL E R
arrangement BRERE - (1450) - - - - (1450)
At 28 February 2017 and 201752288
1March 2017 R2017%3 818 123,365 15,719 14,770 - 618,839 7,888 780,581
Total comprehensive loss for ~ AHIEZ2EER
the period Eok - - o o (12,419) - (12,419)
Issuance of new shares under  RIBALREITHT
bonus issue (ORTAR (8,764) - - - - - (8,764)
Scrip shares re 2016/17 final 2016/1T7R B
dividend RER 2,045 - - - - (2,248) (203)
Scrip shares re 2017/18 interim ~ 2017/18%— R £
dividend BRERER 1,320 - - - (1,478) - (158)
Dividends paid during the REREIRES
period - - - - (3,692) (5,640) (9,332)
2017/18 second interim dividend  2017/1858 = /R
(note 12) R (HFE12) = - - - (18,019) 18,019 -
At 31 March 2018 R2018F3A31H 117,966 15,719 14,770 - 583,231 18,019 749,705

1182




38.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (continued)  38.

(©

Nature and purpose of reserves (©

®

()

(i)

Share premium represents premium arising from the issue of ()
shares at a price in excess of their par value per share.

Capital reserve include the difference between the aggregate (i)
nominal value of the share capital of the subsidiaries and

their combined net assets acquired pursuant to the group

reorganisation and restructuring.

Other reserves include statutory reserve and exchange
fluctuation reserve. Statutory reserve is appropriated from the
profit after taxation of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries under the
applicable laws and regulations in the PRC, while exchange
fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. Exchange reserve is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies set out in note 2.4 to the financial
statements.

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess (i)
of the fair value of the shares of the Group’s subsidiaries

acquired pursuant to a group reorganisation over the nominal

amount of the Company’s ordinary shares issued in exchange

therefor, less the set-off of the accumulated losses of the

Company amounting to HK$865,747,000 as at 29 February

2004 pursuant to a capital reorganisation.

EAREAR I SRR (48)

FEEEE R AR

imEERRERSREE ERE
TR FELEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FA TS ERR I RE (AR)

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (continued)  38.

(©) (continued)

(iv)  Share option reserve comprises the fair value of share options
granted which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in
the accounting policy for share-based payments in note 2.4
to the financial statements. The amount will be transferred
either to the share premium account when the related options
are exercised, or to retained profits should the related options
expire or be forfeited.

39. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 39.

On 26 April 2018, the Group declared the second interim dividend amounting
to HK$18,019,000. It was settled on 11 June 2018, of which HK$2,523,000
was satisfied in the form of scrip shares. This resulted in an increase of
HK$280,000 and HK$2,243,000 in the share capital and share premium,
respectively, subsequent to the reporting period.

The second interim dividend was not recognised as a liability as at 31 March
2018 because it was declared after the reporting period.

40. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 40.

During the year, the Group performed a review on its businesses and
rationalised the classification for certain segment results allocated to the
respective reporting segments. Accordingly, certain comparative figures have
been reclassified to conform with the Period’s presentation.

41. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 41.

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board
of directors on 21 June 2018.
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FIVE-YEAR
FINANCIAL SUMMARY

HFHHHME

ASERNBEREMREE 2 REREE - BERIFZRE
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A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests
of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited
financial statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out below. This
summary is not part of the audited financial statements.

RESULTS B4
Thirteen months Year ended 28/29 February
ended 31 March 2018 HZ2R28/29R L5 E
HZ2018538318 2017 2016 2015 2014
E+=f8A 20175 20164 20155 20144
HK$'000 BT HKS000 BT HKPO00 BEFT  HKS000BHEFIT  HKS000 AHEFT
TURNOVER EEH 4,137,179 3,410,923 3,538,862 3,871,029 4,057,271
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B AT & 89,850 51,882 46,306 62,930 101,349
Income tax expense TS EmR (40,342) (28,678) (22,493) (23,331) (27,023)
PROFITFORTHEPERIOD/  ZAHfE,/ % EE BF
YEAR 49,508 23204 23,813 39,599 74,326
Attributable to: IR EFIER D -
Owners of the Company AREHEEA 49,419 23177 23,623 39,758 74,529
Non-controlling interests FERBREES 89 27 190 (159) (203)
PROFITFORTHEPERIOD/  AHIRE /% EEBF
YEAR 49,508 23204 23813 39,599 74,326
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS BE - ABEREERBERES
Year ended 28/29 February
BZE2R28/29B1LFE
At 31 March 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
H2018%3A31A 20174 20164 20154 20145
HK$°000 B¥TT  HK$000 BT HKP000B¥TT  HKS000BEFir  HK$000 BT T
Non-current assets ERBEE 236,898 249,646 305,540 226,302 219,672
Current assets TREEE 2,316,952 2,379,922 2,369,757 2,387,343 2,330,451
2,553,850 2,629,568 2,675,297 2,613,645 2,550,123
Current liabilities REEE (959,817) (911,282) (1267,625) (1167,797) (1152,434)
Non-current liabilities ERBat (441,219) (744,004) (376,994) (351,540) (327,319)
Net assets EEFE 1,152,814 974,282 1,030,678 1,094,308 1,070,370
Issued capital BETIRA (61,709) (52,584) (52,584) (52584) (52,584)
Reserves s (1,091,125) (921,841) (978219) (1042,175) (1,018,086)
Equity attributable to owners A EHEA A
of the Company il (1,152,834) (974,425) (1,030,803) (1,094,759) (1070,670)
Non-controlling interests b 20 143 125 45] 300
Total equity R (1,152,814) (974,282) (1030,678) (1094,308) (1070,370)
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SUMMARY OF
PROPERTIES

MERE

Location

Gross

floor area
(Square Feet)
EEHEE
(FFR)

Percentage
interest in
property

YIERER L=

Category of
tenure Usage

FHHNoE AR

1 Private Car Parking Space
Nos. 43-50 and 73, Basement, and
Lorry Car Parking Space Nos. 1-4, 6, 11 and 14, 1st Floor
Summit Building, 30 Man Yue Street,
Hung Hom, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BERNBRAWRAHIOREZETHAE
1 EEA3-505% K 735RALRESAE ML K&
—IE1-45% - 65% « 11 R 14 SREEABENL

2 Units A1-A7, B, Front and Rear Portion,
Storeroom No.3 and 5, Ground Floor;
Units A1-A2, B and C, Ist Floor;
Unit E-H, 2nd Floor, and
Units A-K and Flat Roof, 3rd Floor
Summit Building, 30 Man Yue Street,
Hung Hom, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BEENEAHRBEIOREET AR
HRA-A7ER -BEENL - RIEEDD - SRSREWE ;
—IEAI-A2E(] - BRCEEfNL + IEE-HEMI X
ZEBA-KELEFA

3 Units A & B, Tst Floor, Shui Ki Industrial Building,
No. 18, Wong Chuk Hang Road,
Aberdeen, Hong Kong

FREBFEMNESRINE T EAE —EAEBEN

4 Unit ATon Level 1and 2, Block 2,
Heng Chang Garden, Beijing, PRC
PRI R E ETEE2E—E BB

5 Flat O1, 23rd Floor, Block F, Beijing Rome Garden,
Cao Hui Road, Chaoyang District,
Beijing, PRC
PR RMAGEEERESTIEEFE_ T =B1RE

| 186

N/A

91,455

10,716

1,654

1,735

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%



L: Long term lease

M: Medium term lease
C: Carpark

I Industrial unit

R: Residential

N/A: Not applicable

The Group’s properties were stated at cost less depreciation in the statement of
financial position at the value of HK$49,899,000 as at 31 March 2018 (28 February
2017: HK$51,864,000) as set out on page 141 of the annual report. The properties
were revalued individually at the end of the reporting period by Ascent Partners
Valuation Service Limited, an independent professionally qualified valuer, at an
aggregate market value of HK$699,800,000 (28 February 2017: HK$633,600,000).
“Market value” is intended to mean “the estimated amount for which an asset or
liability should exchange on the valuation date between a willing buyer and a willing
seller in an arm’s-length transaction after proper marketing and where the parties
had each acted knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion”.

L: RHRRA

M RHIRA
C. JHEfI

I THME
R {E=EH
N/A: ANE A

M2018F3A31H - ANEBA YR AN RN &SR
RAMISARRIRR B FE A B849,899,00070(20174F2 A28
H : B#51,864,0007T) ° sHIBENAFHRENE - WER
REPANENSEESHB L EEA AR GEMILATE
RAARARR EITEA AREE%699,800,0007T(2017
F2H28H : B%633,600,0007T) o [MIHEEIZIEA—
HEESAE BHEEHAEEM  AF CBEETHH
E - TAEEZEAHENE BERTIEANBERT @ ™M
BERARBZETE5E] -
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TSE SUI LUEN JEWELLERY (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

i En IR E (BB ) BRR A Al
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© Copyright Tse Sui Luen Jewellery (International) Limited. All rights reserved.

No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system, or transmitted, in any form or by any means, electronic,
mechanical, photocopying, recording, or otherwise, without the prior written permission of TSL.
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